
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, July 12, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 June 28, 2016 Board Meeting 

 June 30, 2016 Bi County Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

      

Auditor 

a. Canvassing Board Appointment 

Board of Equalization 

b. Appointment of B Clark to the Board of Equalization 

Facilities 

c. Payment to Kone, Inc. for Elevator Malfunction   

Fairgrounds 

d. Contract w/CKJT Architects for Design & Engineering of Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 Renovation 

Human Services 

e. Contract w/Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital for ARNP Services 

f. Agreement w/BF Community Action Connections for WA St Community Development 

Block Grant 

Office of Public Defense 

g. Amended Contract w/E Riley to Reflect Change in Firm Name  

h. Amended Contract w/B Riley to Reflect Change in Firm Name 

i. Contract Renewal w/Lexis.Com for Legal Research Services  

j. Amended Contract w/B Pang for Superior Court Public Defense Services 

Parks  

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126 

Public Safety 

l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 120  

m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 135  

n. Agreement w/Mirror Ministries for Human Trafficking Survivor Services  

Public Works 

o. Updated Road Department Organizational Chart  

p. Purchase of Kennewick Shop Building from Current Expense Capital Improvement Fund  

q. Solid Waste Purchase of Ely Street Road & Vehicle Maintenance Building from ER&R Fund 

r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500 

s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500 

t. Contract w/Grade Worx LLC for Prosser to Grandview Pedestrian & Bicycle Pathway 

Improvement Project  

Sheriff 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

July 12, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

u. Amending Resolution 2014-959, Agreement w/Gall’s LLC for Employee Uniforms 

v. Agreement w/WA St Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force  

Sustainable Development 

w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Fund No. 000 

 

Scheduled Business 

 

Amendment to the Urban Growth Area Applications ~ M Shuttleworth 

 

Countywide Planning Policies Amendments ~ M Shuttleworth 

 

Office of Public Defense ~ E Hsu 

 Supervision & Quality Control Plan 

 2016 1st Quarter Report 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

   Executive Session 

    

   2nd Quarter Litigation Update ~ R Brown  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, June 28, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; 

GIS Manager Mary Phillips; Fred Bowen, Public Services Administrator; Dan Mack, Road 

Department; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; Taylor Ranger, Auditor’s Office; Dale Wilson, 

Animal Control.  

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of June 21, 2016 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

Chairman Small announced they would be changing the order of scheduled business by swapping 

the GIS update with the Candy Mountain Preservation discussion. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “w”.  

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Animal 

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 

Auditor 

b. Letter to State Auditor re 2015 Financial Statements  

c. Surplus of Personal Property  

Clerk 

d. Fund Expenditures from Trial Court Improvement Fund 

  



 - 2 - 

Facilities 

e. 3rd Amended Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project for 

Prosecuting Attorney’s Office & Office of Public Defense 

f. Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Design & Engineering of WSU Extension Office 

g. Purchase of Bench Seating from Keeney’s Office Supply 

Fairgrounds 

h. Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc for Installation of Electrical Pedestals   

Human Services 

i. 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Housing & 

Essential Needs Program 

j. 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Ending 

Family Homelessness Program    

k. 2nd Amended Contract w/J Griffin dba Jet Computer Support for Programming Services 

l. 1st Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities Services    

Juvenile 

m. Contract w/A Campbell for Functional Family Therapy   

n. Contract w/A Campbell for Domestic Violence Family Counseling  

o. 2nd Amendment w/Apollo Heating & Air for Maintenance & Repairs  

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

q. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173 

Office of Public Defense 

r. Termination of Superior Court Indigent Defense Services w/J Chambers 

Personnel  

s. Agreement w/Public Safety Testing, Inc. for Corrections Corporal & Sergeant Testing 

Public Safety 

t. Departmental Name Change to Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 122 

Public Works 

u. Purchase of Guardrail, Terminals & Cables from Coral Sales Company 

v. Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Locust Grove Road Asphalt Repair Project 

Superior Court 

w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

 

Rural County Capital Funds Distribution 

 

David Sparks presented a proposed resolution with the five cities and two ports to establish an 

allocation for the rural county capital funds (.09 sales tax rebate).  He said the Board authorized 

the transfer of funds from the rural county capital fund into the bond fund to repay the remaining 

debt obligation for the 2002 Justice Center expansion, leaving almost $6 million in the fund.  He 

said they met with the different entities to come up with a reasonable allocation; Kennewick and 

Richland have the largest budget and contribute the most sales tax so they would receive the largest 

allocation and the remaining amount would be divided equally.  Additionally, any new monies 

received in the future would be divided according to the same allocation.  The agreement also 

included retaining 15% of the $6 million to fund special projects.   

 

 

 



 - 3 - 

The allocation percentage was as follows: 

18.05% - City of Kennewick 

16.31% - City of Richland 

10.94% - City of West Richland 

10.94% - City of Prosser 

10.94% - City of Benton City 

10.94% - Port of Benton County  

10.94% - Port of Kennewick 

10.94% - Benton County 

 

Additionally, he said they should receive $3.5 to $4 million per year for the next seven years.  He 

indicated that Adam Fyall would be working on the disbursement policy and proposed action for 

each of the entities to rescind the previous agreements so they could move forward.   

 

Chairman Shon Small welcomed West Richland Mayor Brent Gerry, Kennewick City Manager 

Marie Mosley and Richland City Manager Cindy Reents.   

 

Everyone complimented Mr. Sparks and his team for working through this multi-jurisdictional 

issue.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the resolution establishing an allocation 

formula for the rural county capital funds (.09 sales tax rebate).  Commissioner Delvin seconded 

and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Public Works - GPS Equipment 

 

Matt Rasmussen requested the Board authorize the purchase of 24 GPS units and wireless service 

agreement to install on 24 vehicles.  He said the equipment would be used to gather activity 

information, engine hours, mileage, idle time, battery voltage, engine diagnostics and location 

history and would be used for maintenance, safety, response time/dispatching, location verification 

for damage claims, assignment/route accuracy, evaluation for efficiencies and application 

recording for the spray program.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he thought it was a good idea for safety and good use of technology. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to execute a Wireless Service Agreement with PreCise 

MRM, LLC for the purchase of GPS equipment and monitoring services.  Commissioner Beaver 

seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Chairman Small said he agreed with the safety aspect and using it for efficiencies.  

 

Upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

  



 - 4 - 

Engineering Building Update 

 

Fred Bowen said the Board previously approved a contract with CKJT Architects to perform a 

Feasibility Study to determine the structural condition of the Old Engineering Building located 

behind the Courthouse in Prosser.  The report indicated the building structure appeared to be in 

good overall condition and did not see any indication that would prevent the building from being 

safely occupied.  

 

He said the hazardous materials report was limited to the sampled materials and Asbestos-

containing materials, lead-containing paint, PCB’s-all fluorescent light fixtures & mercury light 

tubes were identified throughout the building. 

 

He recommended the Board authorize him to seek bids for the removal of all hazardous materials 

for continued evaluation of the building at the estimated cost of $46,000.   

 

Commissioner Delvin asked if this would make the building hazardous free if they decided to 

move forward and Mr. Bowen said yes that it had to be done either way.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to authorize the Public Services Administrator to seek 

bids from qualified Contractors and Air Monitoring Consultants for the removal of all Hazardous 

Materials for continued evaluation of the building.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, 

the motion carried.   

 

GIS Department Update 

 

Mary Phillips gave a Powerpoint presentation and highlighted the following: 

 

 GIS Deliverables 

o Maps for the Public/County 

o CD’/DVDs 

o Files Emailed/to Remote Dvice 

o Services to County/Agencies 

o Estimated Online Downloads 

o Images Registered 

 GIS Webpage Views (majority were maps, data, and online mapping) 

 Featured Projects 

o Road Department Custom Interactive Web Map 

o Planning Department – Comprehensive Map Update and Atlas 

 

Candy Mountain Preserve 

 

Adam Fyall welcomed Park Board members Robin Emmingham and John Becker, and Friends of 

Badger Mountain members David Comstock, Mark Spinner, and Sharon Grant. 

 

He summarized the project and said there were two landowners willing to sell their land to preserve 

the open space and a local team that worked on the project for five years to acquire the land.   He 



 - 5 - 

said with the Friends of Badger Work, they had an opportunity for a 50% match state grant with 

one shot at it in 2014.  He said they secured the grant of $700,000 and work tirelessly on 

fundraising and received a total of $800,000 to purchase the 186 acres on Candy Mountain.   

 

He said they were now finishing the billings for the RCO grant for reimbursable funds for 

administrative costs, a new parking lot and trail work in the approximate amount of $80,000.   

 

Mr. Fyall presented the resolution creating the Candy Mountain Preserve, which also banked the 

acreage for possible future shrub-steppe mitigation.   

 

Commissioner Delvin thanked Mr. Fyall and David Comstock for their work on the grant and said 

the Friends of Badger had been relentless in seeing this through and he believed it improved the 

quality of life for this area.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the resolution creating the Candy Mountain 

Preserve.  Commissioner Beaver seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Beaver said this was in line with building a better community and the notion you 

could spend quality time without spending money and created an opportunity to enjoy the outdoors 

and a better identity for the Tri-Cities.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

David Comstock presented a check to the Commissioners representing the purchase price of Candy 

Mountain Preserve.  He thanked the Commissioners, Adam Fyall and Friends of Badger and said 

this was about the community showing how important open space preservation and outdoor 

recreation was in the community.  He said it was their goal to put in the parking lot and trail before 

the end of the calendar year.   

 

Other Business 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he attended the Columbia Industries annual meeting with Ms. Smith 

Kelty and Benton County received an award for business partner of the year for the work Josie 

Delvin and Loretta Smith Kelty did on the records and storage project for the Clerk.  

 

Chairman Small reminded the Board about the bi-county meeting on Thursday.   

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 06/21/2016 

 

Warrant #: 141083-141084 

Total all funds: $39.38 

 



 - 6 - 

Check Date:  06/24/2016 

 

Transfers #: 06241601-06241611 

Total all funds: $549,671.53 

 

Warrants #: 141345-141502 

Total all funds:  $610,141.81 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-512: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 137 

2016-513: Surplus of Personal Property  

2016-514: Fund Expenditures from Trial Court Improvement Fund 

2016-515: 3rd Amended Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Tenant Improvement Project 

for Prosecuting Attorney’s Office & Office of Public Defense 

2016-516: Contract w/Meier Enterprises, Inc for Design & Engineering of WSU Extension 

Office 

2016-517: Purchase of Bench Seating from Keeney’s Office Supply 

2016-518: Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc for Installation of Electrical Pedestals   

2016-519: 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for 

Housing & Essential Needs Program 

2016-520: 1st Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for 

Ending Family Homelessness Program    

2016-521: 2nd Amended Contract w/J Griffin dba Jet Computer Support for Programming 

Services 

2016-522: 1st Amended Agreement w/DSHS for Developmental Disabilities Services    

2016-523: Contract w/A Campbell for Functional Family Therapy   

2016-524: Contract w/A Campbell for Domestic Violence Family Counseling  

2016-525: 2nd Amendment w/Apollo Heating & Air for Maintenance & Repairs  

2016-526: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 171 

2016-527: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173 

2016-528: Termination of Superior Court Indigent Defense Services w/J Chambers 

2016-529: Agreement w/Public Safety Testing, Inc. for Corrections Corporal & Sergeant 

Testing 

2016-530: Departmental Name Change to Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 122 

2016-531: Purchase of Guardrail, Terminals & Cables from Coral Sales Company 

2016-532: Contract w/Granite Construction Co. for Locust Grove Road Asphalt Repair 

Project 

2016-533: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

2016-534: Establishing an Allocation Formula for the Rural County Capital Fund 

2016-535: Wireless Service Agreement with Precise MRM LLC for GPS Equipment 

2016-536: Creation of Candy Mountain Preserve  

 

 



 - 7 - 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:51 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



1 
 

 

MINUTES 

 

BOARDS OF BENTON AND FRANKLIN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Special Bi-County Board Meeting 

Thursday, June 30, 2016, 9:00 a.m.  

Benton County Justice Center 

Commissioners Conference Room, 2nd Floor 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA  99336 

 

Benton County 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks 

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County/Bi-County Employees Present: Lexi Wingfield, Personnel Manager; DPA Ryan 

Lukson; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development; Deputy Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Kyle 

Sullivan, Human Services Manager; DPA Ryan Brown; Tammy McKeirnan, Human Services;  

Shyanne Faulconer, Community Programs/PR Coordinator.   

 

Franklin County  

 

Present:   Chairman Rick Miller 

  Commissioner Brad Peck 

  Commissioner Bob Koch   

  County Administrator Keith Johnson 

 

Discussion on Future of Human Services 

 

Chair Rick Miller acknowledged the Boards met in a bi-county meeting three months ago and 

came to an agreement, however, things happened since that time that they needed to review.  The 

Franklin County Board indicated they just saw the contract about two weeks ago and there was no 

hesitation on their part but they needed to review the contract. 

 

Chair Miller said one of the issues was a potential conflict of interest for Rick Weaver.  He said 

he researched Bexar County Texas as the model for a one stop for a mental/behavioral health 

system, their consultant was willing to come to Tri-Cities and it would eliminate any conflict if 

they used him.   

 



2 
 

Commissioner Beaver asked why the conflict of interest wasn’t raised at the bi-county meeting 

where the agreement was unanimously agreed to.  He said the counties were making decisions 

together and then separately making other decisions and the constituents were not being served 

properly. He said it was time to make a decision and move forward. 

 

Commissioner Peck said he shared that sentiment and enough was enough and they needed to 

serve the people, but not if it was the wrong decision. He then referred back to the minutes from 

the last meeting where he made an amendment to the motion stating it was conditioned upon 

review of the contract for services and was immediately after concerns were expressed regarding 

a conflict of interest.  He said he felt they stuck to what they voted on but agreed the entire process 

took longer than it should have. 

 

Additionally, Commissioner Peck stated he didn’t have any relationship with Rick Weaver and 

everything he had heard indicated he was competent and highly respected.  However they had a 

situation where an individual was CEO and president of an organization and simultaneously 

wearing four different hats:  1) a proposal to sign a contract to draft a plan for the future of mental 

health services in this community; 2) he was head of Comprehensive who could bid on those 

contracts for public money to provide those services; 3) he was sitting as a board member on 

GCBH as an alternate that influenced or approved contracts for these same services; and 4) he 

served on the finance committee that reviewed and advised the financial commitments for these 

contracts.  He said it had nothing to do with his competence but it would be smart to avoid these 

potential conflicts so he could provide these services for our community.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he felt the Crisis Response issue should be solved now and proposed 

the counties give a 30 day notice to GCBH to break the contract for Crisis Response and let them 

know they wanted them to decide on a contractor or provider to provide that service so it became 

a stable organization.  After that issue was solved they could deal with the rest of the systems but 

he felt the immediate need was to solve that issue.  If they could not agree, then they would have 

to wait until 2017 when the agreement terminated but he would not take responsibility for what 

happened in the meantime. 

 

Commissioner Peck agreed that was a good idea, the need was urgent and they should move 

forward but he wanted to hear from the audience on concerns about Crisis since it was a public 

meeting.   

 

Chairman Miller said he agreed they needed to move forward on something and agreed with 

hearing from the audience. 

 

The Boards agreed.  Chairman Small said they should limit the comments to two minutes.   

 

Public Comments  

 

Tara Nelson spoke about how she was unable to get the help she needed from Crisis in 2012 before 

her father shot himself; she indicated Crisis was broken.   

 



3 
 

Ronnie Bachelor, community health worker, said she had a child that committed suicide and felt 

that people got the run around from Crisis.  She said when a family was in a crisis was when the 

help was needed; she said they could not do everything but they could do more.  She said 

something needed to happen to support those that were most vulnerable in the community.   

 

Kenneth Taylor said he was working on Claude Oliver’s advocacy team.  He talked about his own 

personal issues and said the system needed to be fixed and warned the Commissioners not to just 

put a contract in place to appease them.  He said his son tried to commit suicide two times and 

Crisis did not help.   

 

Charles Sargent apologized for not speaking sooner on the issue and said his son could not break 

the cycle of addiction.  He asked the Commissioners to sit on the contract once they got it in place 

to make sure it was working.   

 

Desiree Hall, Pasco, talked about her personal experience and that she spent time in a Lourdes 

facility.  She said the mental health system was strained and broken and needed to be addressed.   

 

Barbara Mead, Lourdes Counseling, said she wanted to thank the Commissioners for the idea of 

separating Crisis from the rest of the system.  She said that Crisis Services was the most 

challenging service to provide; it was labor intensive and highly educated people must provide that 

service.  She said did not believe the behavioral health system was broken but that it was 

challenged and mentioned they opened the new Detox Center a week ago; a small but notable 

progress. 

 

Commissioner Peck said that Lourdes was recognized as one of the highly capable providers in 

the area and he wanted to know if Lourdes felt disadvantaged in this process.   

 

There was a discussion regarding the appropriateness of that question and whether the Boards were 

getting off the subject of the special board meeting.  DPA Ryan Brown he was going to leave it up 

to the Board to decide.   

 

Ms. Mead said it was her opinion that if a consultant was brought on to look at the overall 

behavioral health system that it must be very clearly defined to help the group develop an overall 

broad vision; then the consultant would step out and the group would work to define specific action 

plans where the providers were held accountable for those action plans.  She said in the ideal world 

the consultant should be chosen from outside the local providers but also knowledgeable about 

services in the State of Washington.  In response to another question by Commissioner Peck, Ms. 

Mead said that Lourdes had chosen not to be on the funding committee.   

 

Chairman Small asked Ms. Mead if she had seen any favoritism on the funding board and she said 

she could not answer that question and she did not attend all those meetings.   

 

Claude Oliver, former Benton County Commissioner, said they were asked by citizens to address 

this issue in 2004 and they were still at the same place now as they were back then.  He said he 

was in a group that had been meeting for several months and all those members were touched by 

some tragedy.  He said they were looking at finding a fast track to get those services and they 



4 
 

believed Bexar County in San Antonio was on a fast track and were nationally recognized for their 

work on mental health.  He said one of their key components was they had community advisory 

around their board which was a key factor missing here is this community.  He said they also 

wanted to ask Governor Jay Inslee to send his office of State DHS Mental Health to come and 

interview this community and meet with all players.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he reviewed the Commissioner minutes from 2004 but couldn’t find a 

record of what Benton-Franklin CAC came back with.  Mr. Oliver said they did talk about a one-

stop shop back then and in 2008 six commissioners voted to go forward with CAC. 

 

Commissioner Delvin said it was his recommendation to solve the Crisis issue and let GCBH 

contract for the services.  He said currently the two counties were contracting with them to get the 

services so either the counties would need to keep it or let GCBH find someone to provide those 

services.   

 

Claude Oliver said he agreed that sizing up the services that Crisis provided would be the first step 

in getting the system addressed.  He requested the Boards expedite the Bexar County model and 

that Washington DHS also had a responsibility to review the issue.   

 

Commissioner Beaver said the people were saying the counties were not doing a good job so he 

was in favor of giving it to GCBH because the longer it stayed with these six guys, the longer it 

didn’t get fixed. 

 

Commissioner Peck asked Mr. Oliver if he felt that going forward with contracting with Crisis 

would close the door for a one stop.  Mr. Oliver said he believed it could preclude it from being 

part of the system. 

 

Commissioner Koch said he agreed with dealing with the Crisis issue immediately and bringing 

up Bexar County at the same time. 

 

Chairman Miller said he agreed with the Crisis issue being expedited and also wanted to meet with 

Bexar County now to discuss planning for this area.   

 

Franklin County discussed the mental health sales tax issue.   

 

Public Comments - Continued  

 

Chris Kennedy said she did not believe they could separate the two issues and would hate to 

operate Crisis Response because part of the problem was that they had no options.  She asked the 

Boards to look at models that currently worked like the Idaho program and Texas program.   

 

Angi Mantewla said mental health was the same and didn’t look different in other areas.  She said 

her concern was that whoever they contracted with for Crisis Response, they should not think that 

it was fixed; they could do much better but they needed to make sure they were checking up on it. 

 



5 
 

Aaron Beasley asked the Boards to include in their motion to study other options and put a time 

limit on it.   

 

Benton County 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to send a joint letter to the GCBH stating they wanted 

to get out of the contract and request they provide the services in 30 days for the Crisis operations.  

Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   

 

Franklin County 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Koch said he wanted to have the same motion to have a bi-county letter 

sent to GCBH.  Commissioner Peck seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Peck wanted clarification that it was a joint letter from the two boards giving notice 

under the contract of their intent to terminate the contract to provide crisis response services at the 

first opportunity and the motion was only to send that notice.   

 

Benton County indicated that was correct.   

 

Upon vote the motion carried unanimously. 

 

Benton County  

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to appoint the two chairs of the Boards to work with 

Kyle Sullivan on bringing a consultant to our area as soon as possible to look at designing a model 

for mental health.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried 

unanimously.   

  

Commissioner Peck said before they moved forward on any motion based on Benton County’s 

action, he wanted to have a discussion.  He said Benton County said to appoint the two chairs and 

he was sure it wasn’t the intent of Benton County to tell Franklin County who to appoint. 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he would amend his motion and Commissioner Peck indicated that 

Benton County’s motion was not binding on Franklin County.   

 

Commissioner Peck indicated the motion was for two commissioners to work with Kyle Sullivan 

and go out and locate a consultant and he wanted to know if there was a recommendation back to 

the Board whether it was binding to use whomever they found. He said that based on the sense of 

urgency and the fact they had identified a competent, nationally recognized, independent expert in 

Bexar County who was available in the next 30 to 40 days, he recommended the Board move for 

that option instead of having another meeting to study finding someone to come up here.   

 

Chairman Miller agreed.   



6 
 

Franklin County  

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Koch moved to work with Kyle Sullivan bringing the consultant (Leon 

Evans) out of Texas up to give a breakdown of our system at this point.  Commissioner Peck 

seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Peck noted it was a different motion than passed by Benton County and as such 

would bind their representative in those discussions to say this was Franklin County’s decision 

that Leon Evans was the guy and if they wanted to explore other options, they would listen. Upon 

vote, the motion carried unanimously.   

 

Commissioner Delvin said he didn’t have a problem with that.   

 

Chairman Small said he didn’t have a problem with Bexar County but wanted to have Rick Weaver 

involved as well. 

 

Chairman Miller said that Leon Evans asked to work with Rick Weaver if we had this conflict and 

he would reach out to him.   

 

Commissioner Peck said that was not a decision of the Board but he had no opposition to Rick 

Weaver as long as all other providers and recipients of services in the community had equal and 

fair access in the process. 

 

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:10 a.m.   

 

 

_____________________________   _________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board     Chairman 



WEH
Text Box
a. Canvassing Board Appointment





WEH
Text Box
b. Appointment of B Clark to the Board of Equalization



WEH
Text Box
c. Payment to Kone, Inc. for Elevator Malfunction











RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN MATTER OF AWARDING ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES TO CKJT 
ARCHITECTS, PLLC. FOR THE DESIGN AND ENGINEERING OF THE EXHIBIT HALLS 2 
& 3 RENOVATION AT BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 
 
WHEREAS,  resolution 2016-127, authorized CKJT Architects to perform a feasibility study on Exhibit 
Halls 2 & 3 at the Benton County Fairgrounds; and 
 
WHEREAS, the feasibility study recommended that Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 be renovated at an estimated 
cost of $1.62 million; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners approved proceeding with the development of 
construction plans and specifications for the renovation of Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 during the May 17th Board 
Meeting; and  
  
WHEREAS, the Public Services Administrator recommends entering into a contract with CKJT 
Architects, PLLC. for the design and engineering of the Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 renovation; and 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with the 
recommendation and awards the attached Professional Services Contract with CKJT Architects, PLLC. to 
provide architectural and engineering services for the Benton County Fairgrounds Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 
renovation; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
Professional Services Contract with CKJT Architects, PLLC. in an amount not to exceed $148,888.60 
including WSST or 8.5% of final total construction cost; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said contract shall begin immediately upon execution by both 
parties and expires on December 31, 2017, 
 
 
 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

       
Chairman of the Board  

 
       

Chairman Pro Tem  
 

         
Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .      Commissioners of  Benton County, 
 Clerk of the Board      Washington 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
d. Contract w/CKJT Architects for Design & Engineering of Exhibit Halls 2 & 3 Renovation













































WEH
Text Box
e. Contract w/Our Lady of Lourdes Hospital for ARNP Services





































WEH
Text Box
f. Agreement w/BF Community Action Connections for WA St Community Development Block Grant

















































WEH
Text Box
g. Amended Contract w/E Riley to Reflect Change in Firm Name









WEH
Text Box
h. Amended Contract w/B Riley to Reflect Change in Firm Name









WEH
Text Box
i. Contract Renewal w/Lexis.Com for Legal Research Services













WEH
Text Box
j. Amended Contract w/B Pang for Superior Court Public Defense Services























































Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor C. McKenzie

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 126.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 

funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

576-800 3117 Chemicals $100 576-800 1925 Overtime $100

TOTAL $100 TOTAL $100

Explanation:

Prepared by: Cami McKenzie Date:  12-Jul-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

2015-2016 Budget.  To cover a shortage in the overtime budget.  

Parks

Current Expense

126

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 120





Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
PUBLIC SAFETY TAX (3/10 OF 1%) FUND NUMBER 0148-101, DEPARTMENT
NUMBER 135

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 135



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

521.100 1663 PST Coordinator $952 521.100 3508 Computer Replacement $797

521.100 3503 Computer Software $155

TOTAL $952 TOTAL $952

Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  27-Jun-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

This request is based on Resolution 2016-310 for 1/2 the cost of new computer and Adobe Pro for the PST Coordinator.

Public Safety Tax Administration

Public Safety Tax (3/10 of 1%)

135

0148-101



cc: Auditor; Treasurer; PA-Contract Compliance; Mirror Ministries Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND MIRROR MINISTRIES FOR 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING SURVIVOR SERVICES PROPOSAL 

 

WHEREAS, in August, 2014, the voters of Benton County approved Proposition 14-5, a 3/10 

of one percent sales and use tax pursuant to RCW 82.14.450 to fund criminal justice and public 

safety programs in Benton County; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding decisions must fall within the parameters and guidance of the text of 

voter-approve Proposition 14-5 where to “improve public safety and combat criminal gang 

activity and other crime by hiring additional police officers, corrections officers and 

prosecutors; continuing the Metro Drug Task Force; funding gang and crime prevention 

efforts; and funding court and clerk programs including a seventh Superior Court Judge; and 

drug and mental health courts”; and 

 

WHEREAS, funding gang and crime prevention efforts, the Benton County Gang and Crime 

Prevention and Intervention Initiative is to improve the quality of life for the residents of 

Benton County by reducing the incidence of gang-related and other crime in Benton County; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, on April 12, 2016 the Benton County Board of Commissioners approved funding 

for gang and crime prevention efforts, utilizing an Request for Proposal process; and 

 

WHEREAS, Mirror Ministries has proposed a Human Trafficking Survivor Service in the 

annual amount of $5,000.00 for 2016; NOW, THEREFORE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED the amount of $5,000.00, the 2016 annual budgeted amount prorated for 

the remaining six months of 2016, has been approved by the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED each monthly payment will be made payable to Mirror 

Ministries; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this agreement will start July 1, 2016. 

WEH
Text Box
n. Agreement w/Mirror Ministries for Human Trafficking Survivor Services



cc: Auditor; Treasurer; PA-Contract Compliance; Mirror Ministries Faulconer 

Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 20 . . . .  

 

 

       

Chairman of the Board  

 

       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

                

Member 
 

Attest:…………………………….. 

               Clerk of the Board      Constituting the Board of County  

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
                   

 

 

 

  



 

- 1 - 

BENTON COUNTY 

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 

Mirror Ministries, with its principal offices at 8836 W. Gage Blvd. 

204A, Kennewick, WA 99336-7155, (hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 

 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

This Contract consists of the following documents: 

 

a. Terms and Conditions (this document); 

b. Exhibit A, Scope of Work Mirror Ministries Human Trafficking 

Survivor Services; and 

c. Exhibit B, Progress Reporting and Measures; and 

d. Exhibit C, Human Trafficking Survivor Services Budget; and 

e. Exhibit D, Invoice. 

 

 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of this Contract shall begin July 1, 2016, and shall 

expire on December 31, 2016. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all 

services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is 

otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date. 

 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

 

a. A detailed description of the services to be performed by the 

CONTRACTOR for human trafficking education and training is 

set forth in Exhibit "A, Scope of Work", which is attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time 

during the progress of the services performed. In addition, 



 

- 2 - 

when requested by the COUNTY, the CONTRACTOR shall prepare 

and present status reports in the form of Exhibit B 

demonstrating services completed to date. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR: 

 

Tricia MacFarlan 

PO Box 400 

Richland, WA 99352 

Phone: (509)948-8792 

Fax: 

Email: tricia.macfarlan@mirror-ministries.org 

 

b. For COUNTY: 

 

Shyanne Faulconer 

PO Box 190 

Prosser, WA 99350 

Phone :(509)786-5600 x2442 

Fax: (509)786-3080 

Email: Shyanne.Faulconer@co.benton.wa.us 

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be paid 

as follows: 

 

a. A detailed description of the compensation to be paid by the 

COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth 

in Exhibit C, “Program Budget Worksheet”, which is attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Accordingly, for 

the time period of July 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016, 

CONTRACTOR shall be compensated based on the amount of 

expenses set forth in Exhibit C in an amount not to exceed 

five thousand dollars ($5,000).  

 

b. No payment shall be made for any services performed by the 

CONTRACTOR, except for services identified and set forth in 

this Contract. 

 



 

- 3 - 

c. The CONTRACTOR may, in accordance with the amounts set forth 

in Exhibit D, submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than 

once per month during the progress of the services performed 

for partial payment of the services completed to date. The 

COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for services rendered in the 

month following the actual delivery of services and will remit 

payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid for services rendered under 

this Contract unless and until they have been performed to 

the satisfaction of the COUNTY. 

 

e. In the event the CONTRACTOR has failed to perform any 

substantial obligation to be performed by the CONTRACTOR 

under this Contract and such failure has not been cured within 

ten (10) days following notice from the COUNTY, the COUNTY 

may, in its sole discretion, upon written notice to the 

CONTRACTOR, withhold any and all monies due and payable to 

the CONTRACTOR, without penalty, until such failure to 

perform is cured or otherwise adjudicated. "Substantial" for 

the purposes of this Contract means faithfully fulfilling the 

terms of this Contract with variances only for technical or 

minor omissions or defects. 

 

f. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract or any exhibits or 

attachments hereto, the CONTRACTOR will not be paid for any 

billings or invoices presented for services rendered prior to 

the execution of this Contract or after its termination. 

 

6. AMENDMENTS  

 

No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, unless 

set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by both parties. 

Services performed under a Contract Amendment shall not proceed 

until the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the COUNTY. 

 

7. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from 

and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, 

loss, expenses, damages, and judgments of any nature 

whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in 

defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to 

persons or damage to property or business, which are caused 

in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or 

otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, which arise 



 

- 4 - 

in connection with the services performed under this 

Contract, or are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors 

or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of 

the County. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S obligation 

hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, death or 

damage caused by or arising out of the sole negligence of the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY, its officers, 

officials, employees and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing services hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section [7] shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but are 

not limited to, investigating, adjusting and defending all 

claims alleging loss from action, error or omission, or breach 

of any common law, statutory or other delegated duty by the 

CONTRACTOR, the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or 

subcontractors. 

 

8. INSURANCE 

 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 



 

- 5 - 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out of 

or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to 

commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, CONTRACTOR 

waives all rights of subrogation against the COUNTY for 

recovery of damages to the extent they are covered by workers 

compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage for 

such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from any 

actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly employed by or contracting with CONTRACTOR. 

The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits 

shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officials, employees and agents as an Additional Insured and 

an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not 

contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 



 

- 6 - 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude liability 

pursuant to the indemnification requirement under Section 

[7]. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy shall 

provide cross liability coverage, indicating essentially that 

except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights 

or duties specifically assigned in this coverage part to the 

first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 

insured were the only named insured, and separately to each 

insured against whom claims are made or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the Contractor has no owned autos, hired 

(Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 

not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident 

for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect CONTRACTOR 

from claims which may arise from the performance of this 

Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 
primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY, its elected and appointed 

officers, officials, employees and agents. CONTRACTOR’S 

liability insurance policies must be endorsed to show this 

primary coverage. Any insurance, self-insured retention, 

deductible or risk retention maintained or participated 

in by the COUNTY shall be excess and not contributory to 

CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies. 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 

afforded to the COUNTY as an additional insured. 

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 



 

- 7 - 

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the COUNTY, 

its officers, officials, employees or agents. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, 

except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 

liability. 

 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All 

coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 

requirements stated herein. 

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 
required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher limits 

than the minimums required in this contract, the COUNTY 

shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits 

maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 
force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. All liability insurance required under this 

Contract, shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect 
to each insurance policy maintained under this Contract. 

When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition does 

not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a pre-loss agreement 

to waive subrogation without an endorsement, then 

CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 

endorsement. This requirement shall not apply to any 

policy which includes a condition expressly prohibiting 

waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 

coverage should the CONTRACTOR enter into such a waiver 

of subrogation on a pre-loss basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement are expressly conditioned upon CONTRACTOR’S 

strict compliance with all insurance requirements. Payment 

to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in the event of non-

compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of CONTRACTOR’S 

compliance, such payments not otherwise subject to 



 

- 8 - 

withholding or set-off will be released to CONTRACTOR. 

 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by 

companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of 

Washington and have an A. M. Best's rating of at least A-VII or 

better in the most recently published edition of Best’s Reports. 

Any exception to this requirement must be reviewed and approved in 

writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an insurer is not 

admitted to do business within Washington State, all insurance 

policies and procedures for issuing the insurance policy must 

comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284-15 WAC. 

  

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 
than Auto Liability and Workmen’s Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY, its elected officials, 

employees and volunteers as an “Additional Insured” by way 

of endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without 

thirty (30) days written prior notice to the COUNTY. Any 

insurance or self-insurance maintained by the COUNTY, its 

elected and appointed officials, employees and agents 

shall be excess of the CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall 

not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the County’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

 

3. All written notices under this Section [8] and notice of 
cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4. 

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 
and all insurance policies specified in this Contract upon 

request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the following 

address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan 

Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

9. TERMINATION 

 

a. The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part 

whenever the COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that 

such termination is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The 

COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days 

written notice by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that 



 

- 9 - 

event, the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR for all cost 

incurred by the CONTRACTOR in performing the Contract up to 

the date of such notice. Payment shall be made in accordance 

with the Compensation Section of this Contract. 

 

b. In the event that funding for this project is withdrawn, 

reduced or limited in any way after the effective date of 

this Contract, the COUNTY may summarily terminate this 

Contract notwithstanding any other termination provision in 

this Contract. Termination under this paragraph shall be 

effective upon the date specified in the written notice of 

termination sent by COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR. After the 

effective date, no charges incurred under this Contract shall 

be allowed. 

 

c. If the CONTRACTOR breaches any of its obligations hereunder, 

and fails to cure the breach within ten (10) days of written 

notice to do so by the COUNTY, the COUNTY may immediately 

terminate this Contract by so notifying the CONTRACTOR, in 

which case the COUNTY shall pay the CONTRACTOR only for the 

costs of services accepted by the COUNTY, in accordance with 

the Compensation Section of this Contract.  

 

10. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the terms of this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations 

and duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be 

assigned, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or 

firm without the prior express written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has not paid nor has it agreed 

to pay any company, person, partnership, or firm, other than 

a bona fide employee working exclusively for CONTRACTOR, any 

fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or other 

consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or 

making of this Contract. 

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 



 

- 10 - 

 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section [5] of this Contract, 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay, holiday pay, sick leave pay, medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits, fringe benefits, or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall be 

or deem to be or act or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state or local law which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S contract representative or designee. 

 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state and 

local laws, rules and regulations in performing this Contract. 

 

14. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the County upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

 



 

- 11 - 

15. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its assignees, delegates, or subcontractors shall 

not discriminate against any person in the performance of any of 

its obligations hereunder on the basis of age, sex, marital status, 

sexual orientation, race, creed, religion, color, national origin, 

honorably discharged veteran or military status, disability, or 

any other protected status. 

 

16. OWNERSHIP OF MATERIALS/WORKS PRODUCED 

 

a. All reports, drawings, plans, specifications, all forms of 

electronic media, and data and documents produced in the 

performance of the work under this Contract shall be "works 

for hire" as defined by the U.S. Copyright Act of 1976 and 

shall be owned by the COUNTY. Ownership includes the right to 

copyright, patent, register, and the ability to transfer 

these rights. The COUNTY agrees that if it uses any materials 

prepared by the CONTRACTOR for purposes other than those 

intended by this Contract, it does so at its sole risk and it 

agrees to hold the CONTRACTOR harmless there from to the 

extent such use is not agreed to in writing by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

b. An electronic copy of all word processing documents shall be 

submitted to the COUNTY upon request or at the end of the job 

using the word processing program and version specified by 

the COUNTY. 

 

17. PATENT/COPYRIGHT INFRINGEMENT 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend the 

COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees and agents, from and 

against any claimed action, cause or demand brought against the 

COUNTY, where such action is based on the claim that information 

supplied by the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor infringes any patent 

or copyright. The CONTRACTOR shall be notified promptly in writing 

by the COUNTY of any notice of such claim. 

 

18. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes between the CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY, arising under and 

by virtue of this Contract, shall be brought to the attention of 

the COUNTY at the earliest possible time in order that such matters 

may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. Any 

dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY'S Contract Representative or designee. All rulings, orders, 



 

- 12 - 

instructions and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract Representative 

shall be final and conclusive, subject to CONTRACTOR'S right to 

seek judicial relief. 

 

19. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR, its employees, subcontractors, and their employees 

shall maintain the confidentiality of all information provided by 

the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of this 

Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY or 

an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information. 

 

20. CHOICE OF LAW, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

 

a. This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been 

made and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is 

agreed by each party hereto that this Contract shall be 

governed by the laws of the State of Washington, both as to 

its interpretation and performance. 

 

b. Any action at law, suit in equity, or judicial proceeding 

arising out of this Contract shall be instituted and 

maintained only in any of the courts of competent jurisdiction 

in Benton County, Washington. 

 

21. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves, their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

 

22. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal, or invalid in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if this Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 



 

- 13 - 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision. 

 

23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

its terms and conditions. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

 

24. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in the Contract Representatives 

Section of this Contract. Notice may also be given by facsimile 

with the original to follow by regular mail. Notice shall be deemed 

to be given three days following the date of mailing or 

immediately, if personally served. For service by facsimile, 

service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working 

day. 

 

25. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, 

indemnification provisions (Sections [7] and [17]); inspection and 

keeping of records and books (Section [14]); litigation hold notice 

(Section [26]); Public Records Act (Section [27]) and 

confidentiality (Section [19]). 

 

26. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR pursuant to Section [14] of this 

agreement may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend the six (6) year purge schedule as set out 

above in Section [14]. 



 

- 14 - 

 

27. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, it agrees to conspicuously mark the records as 

such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims or causes 

of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of COUNTY’S 

release of records covered under the Public Records Act. COUNTY 

agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in a 

timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

  



 

- 15 - 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Contract to be 

signed by their duly constituted legal representatives and is 

effective on July 1, 2016. 

 

 
Dated:_______________ Dated:______________ 

  

Benton County Board of 

Commissioners 
Mirror Ministries 

  

______________________________ ______________________________ 

Chairman Signature 

  

______________________________ President           __________ 

Member Title: 

  

______________________________ Tricia MacFarlan______________ 

Member PRINTED NAME 

  

Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, 

Washington. 

 

  

  

Attest:_______________________  

        Clerk of the Board  

  

  

Approved as to Form  

  

  

_______________________________  

Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney  

  

 



Original: Road Department        M. Rasmussen 
 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY 
WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE UPDATED BENTON COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT 
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 
 
WHEREAS, a new classification, Engineering Intern, was created per Resolution 2016-452, and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Engineer has determined that the Engineering Intern (Grade 6) is a 
necessary position and should be added to the Road Department Organizational Chart, and 
 
WHEREAS, a revised organizational chart has been prepared reflecting these changes; NOW 
THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the revised Road Department Organizational Chart, attached, be hereby 
approved; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the position of Engineering Intern (Grade 6) be created; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Benton County Commissioners retains the right 
to modify or repeal this determination at their discretion and without prior notification; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution is not intended nor shall be interpreted as 
limiting or compromising the County’s “at will” employer status; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that at the recommendation of the County Engineer the County 
Administrator has the authority to move employees who possess a Professional Engineers 
License (P.E.) up to two (2) grades higher than the established grade for their position. 
 
 
Dated this 12th day of July 2016. 

Chairman of the Board 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, 

Washington Clerk of the Board 
Attest: 

WEH
Text Box
o. Updated Road Department Organizational Chart





WEH
Text Box
p. Purchase of Kennewick Shop Building from Current Expense Capital Improvement Fund







 

 
 AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:      July 12, 2016  

Subject:   Solid Waste Purchase of 

ER&R Road Shop  

Prepared by:               gnd  

Reviewed by:               MSR  
 

 
 TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Agreement               

Pass Resolution                   X  

Pass Ordinance             

Pass Motion                  

Other                          ___________ 

 
 

Consent Agenda               X  

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion                      

2nd Discussion              

Other                             

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Benton County Road Department has been working towards the construction of a new fixed facility for its moderate risk waste 

program since the last facility burned down in 2010. One site that has been considered in previous studies is the Benton County road 

maintenance facility in Kennewick (1709 S Ely Street; parcels 111892020029000 and 111892020046002). Due to certain unique 

characteristics of the property – including its relative nearness to SR-395, its current ownership by a Benton County fund, and the 

construction of a new road maintenance facility in Kennewick that resulted in the current facility being vacated – the Benton County 

Road Department, following a feasibility study on the site produced in June 2015, has proceeded with the process of designing and 

constructing a new moderate risk waste facility (MRWF) at this site (Res. 2015-574). The property is, at this time, still held by the 

Benton County ER&R Fund (0501101). The Benton County Solid Waste Fund (0155101) is currently in a position to receive 

ownership from the ER&R Fund for the one-time cost of $450,000. 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 

The Benton County Solid Waste Fund aims to purchase the existing Benton County Road Department at 1709 S Ely Street in 

Kennewick, Washington. This transaction will be for the establishment of a moderate risk waste facility and will transfer 

$450,000 from the Solid Waste Fund to the ER&R Fund, the current owner of the facility. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

The County Engineer recommends that the Board approve the transfer of $450,000 from the Solid Waste Fund to the ER&R 

Fund for the procurement of the aforementioned facility. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

The Solid Waste Fund (0155101) will transfer $450,000 to the ER&R Fund (0501101). The property at 1709 S Ely Street, 

Kennewick, Washington, composed of two (2) parcels, will be transferred to the Solid Waste Fund. 

 

 

MOTION 
 

Approve as part of the consent agenda. 

WEH
Text Box
q. Solid Waste Purchase of Ely Street Road & Vehicle Maintenance Building from ER&R Fund



Orig.: Public Works  M. Rasmussen 

RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF SOLID WASTE, RE: SOLID WASTE PURCHASE OF ELY STREET ROAD AND VEHICLE 

MAINTENANCE BUILDING FROM THE ER&R FUND 

WHEREAS, the County recently completed construction of a new vehicle and road maintenance facility 

in Kennewick, and 

WHEREAS, the old shop site on Ely Street is no longer needed by ER&R or the Road Department, and 

WHEREAS, the Solid Waste has need of the facility for a Moderate Risk Waste Facility, and 

WHEREAS, the property and improvements were appraised in June 2015 for a total amount of $515,000.  

A portion of the property was declared surplus and sold to a neighboring parcel in May 2016, and 

WHEREAS, the County Engineer deems it in the best interest of the Solid Waste Fund to purchase the 

old Road and Vehicle Maintenance Facility from the ER&R fund; NOW THEREFORE, 

BE IT RESOLVED that the Road and Vehicle Maintenance facility on Ely Street in Kennewick Washington 

be transferred from the ER&R fund to the Solid Waste fund for a one-time payment of $450,000 

Dated this 12th day of July 2016. 

       

 

 

 

 

Attest: 

Clerk of the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

 

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 



WEH
Text Box
r. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
s. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
t. Contract w/Grade Worx LLC for Prosser to Grandview Pedestrian & Bicycle Pathway Improvement Project







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: July 12, 2016       
Subject: Resolution Amendment  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by:  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2014-959 the Board of Benton County Commissioners awarded the purchase agreement 
for the procurement of employee uniforms – Class A and other related items to Gall’s LLC for a two year 
contract with a Board authorized amount not to exceed $70,000 including WSST.  
 
This $70,000 not to exceed amount was just an estimate of what we believe would be spent on Class A 
uniforms and equipment within the two year period.  Due to the new hires and positions, we are getting 
close to the amount not to exceed and will most likely pass that amount before the end of 2016.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
BCSO recommends establishing the authorized amounts based on the rates per item that was 
established in Exhibit A attached to the original agreement and Resolution 2014-959, plus WSST.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures were included in the 2015/16 budget.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
u. Amending Resolution 2014-959, Agreement w/Gall’s LLC for Employee Uniforms



Orig: Sheriff’s Office 
cc:  Auditor, S. Araiza, Gall’s, LLC  
   Prepared by L. Small  

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AMENDING RESOLUTION 2014-959 REGARDING THE PURCHASE 
AGREEMENT FOR THE PROCUREMENT OF EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – CLASS A AND 
OTHER RELATED ITEMS FROM GALL’S LLC FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2014-959 the Board of Benton County Commissioners awarded the purchase 
agreement for the procurement of employee uniforms – Class A and other related items to Gall’s LLC  for 
a two year contract with a Board authorized amount not to exceed $70,000 including WSST; and   
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Resolution 2014-959, as the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is 
approaching the not to exceed amount of $70,000 including WSST for Class A uniforms and other related 
items; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends establishing the authorized amounts based on the rates per 
item established in Exhibit A attached to the original purchase agreement and Resolution 2014-959, plus 
WSST; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, hereby 
concurs with the Sheriff’s Office recommendation and authorizes payment to Gall’s LLC  dba/Blumenthal’s 
Uniforms & Equipment based on the rates outlined in the original purchase agreement, plus WSST attached 
to Resolution 2014-959; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the original contract commences January 1, 2015 and expires 
on December 31, 2016; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Resolution 2014-959 is hereby amended.  
 
 
 
 
Dated this    day of                , 2016 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 
 

            
           Member

           
                      

Member 
    
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington  



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: July 12, 2016    
Subject: Interagency Agreement 

w/ Seattle Police Dept.  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
  
Attached is an interagency agreement between Washington State Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force (WA 
ICAC TF) acting through the City of Seattle Police Department and Benton County, by and for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office.   Whereas, both parties wish to update the task force agreement that was signed by the Sheriff in 
March 2011 with the attached interagency agreement, which will supersede all previous agreements.  
 
The mission of the national ICAC Task Force Program is to assist state and local law enforcement agencies by 
developing an effective response to technology-facilitated child sexual exploitation and Internet crimes against 
children, which assistance encompasses forensic and investigative components, training and technical assistance, 
victim services, prevention, and community education. 
 
The Seattle Police Department (SPD) has been designated by the OJJDP as the “Lead Agency” to oversee the 
multi-jurisdictional WA ICAC TF intended to combat crimes related to the sexual exploitation, enticement and 
victimization of children through the Internet, online communication systems, telecommunications technology and 
other computer technology.  
 
The SPD requires signature from Benton County prior to obtaining their signature.  I will return a fully executed copy 
to the Commissioners office once I receive it.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Interagency Agreement between Washington State Internet Crimes against 
Children Task Force acting through the City of Seattle Police Department and Benton County, by and for the Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office, authorizing the Benton County Sheriff to sign the agreement.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact, as the ICAC Task Force Program picks up all necessary expense.  
 
 
MOTION 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
v. Agreement w/WA St Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force



Orig: Sheriff’s Office  
CC:   Auditor; PA’s Office; SPD                                                                                                               Prepared by:  L. Small 
 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF TO SIGN THE 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE WASHINGTON STATE INTERNET CRIMES 
AGAINST CHILDREN TASK FORCE ACTING THROUGH THE CITY OF SEATTLE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT AND BENTON COUNTY, BY AND FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office signed an interagency agreement in March 2011 between 
the Seattle Police Department and the Benton County Sheriff’s Office to participate with the Washington 
State Internet Crimes against Children Task Force (WA ICAC TF); and  
 
WHEREAS, both parties agree to update the task force agreement with the attached interagency agreement, 
which supersedes all previous agreements; and   
 
WHEREAS, the United States Department of Justice (DOJ) Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency 
Prevention (OJJDP) have created the Internet Crimes Against Children (ICAC) Task Force Program, which 
is a national network of state and local law enforcement cybercrime units; and  
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the national ICAC Task Force Program is to assist state and local law 
enforcement agencies by developing an effective response to technology-facilitated child sexual 
exploitation and Internet crimes against children, which assistance encompasses forensic and investigative 
components, training and technical assistance, victim services, prevention and community education; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Seattle Police Department (SPD) has been designated by the OJJDP as the “Lead Agency” 
to oversee the multi-jurisdictional Washington State Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force (WA 
ICAC TF) intended to combat crimes related to the sexual exploitation, enticement and victimization of 
children through the Internet, online communication systems, telecommunications technology and other 
computer technology; and 
 
WHEREAS, the SPD is the recipient of a Federal grant through the OJJDP to assist in the investigation 
and prosecution of Internet crimes against children and will assist law enforcement agencies in Washington 
State to increase their computer forensic capabilities and receive appropriate training to investigate Internet 
related cases; and 
 
WHEREAS, agencies that agree to work with the SPD as the “Lead Agency” are required to execute the 
attached interagency agreement under the authorization of the proper authority of said agency following all 
of the terms, conditions and tenets contained within the agreement; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, hereby 
concurs with the attached interagency agreement between the Washington State Internet Crimes Against 
Children Task Force acting through the City of Seattle Policy Department and Benton County, by and for 
the Benton County Sheriff’s Office and hereby authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to sign said agreement; 
and  
 
 
 



Orig: Sheriff’s Office  
CC:   Auditor; PA’s Office; SPD                                                                                                               Prepared by:  L. Small 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the attached agreement is effective from July 1, 2016 and 
expires on June 30, 2018. This Interagency Agreement shall automatically be renewed for one (1) additional 
year until such time as federal funding for the ICAC Task Force Program ends, or the Interagency 
Agreement is canceled by either party upon 30 days’ written notice as set forth more fully in Article XII of 
the attached agreement.  
 
 
Dated this _________day of ___________________, 2016.   
 
    

______________________________ 
                            Chairman of the Board 

 
       ______________________________   

          Member 
 

       ______________________________   
          Member 

       Constituting the Board of County Commissioners   
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest:   _______________________               
                      Clerk of the Board 



Page 1 of 7 
 

	
INTERAGENCY	AGREEMENT	

	
BETWEEN		

	
THE	WASHINGTON	STATE	INTERNET	

CRIMES	AGAINST	CHILDREN	TASK	FORCE	
ACTING	THROUGH	THE	CITY	

OF	SEATTLE	POLICE	DEPARTMENT		
	

AND	
	

BENTON	COUNTY	SHERIFF	OFFICE	
	
This	Interagency	Agreement	is	entered	into	by	and	between	the	Washington	State	Internet	
Crimes	against	Children	Task	Force	(WA	ICAC	TF),	acting	through	the	City	of	Seattle	Police	
Department	and	Benton	County,	by	and	for	Benton	County	Sheriff’s	Office	(Affiliate	Agency)	
acting	through	its	duly	authorized	representative.	
	
WHEREAS,	The	United	States	Department	of	Justice	(DOJ)	Office	of	Juvenile	Justice	and	
Delinquency	Prevention	(OJJDP)	have	created	the	Internet	Crimes	Against	Children	
(ICAC)	Task	Force	Program,	which	is	a	national	network	of	state	and	local	law	enforcement	
cybercrime	units.	The	mission	of	the	national	ICAC	Task	Force	Program	is	to	assist	state	
and	local	law	enforcement	agencies	develop	an	effective	response	to	technology‐facilitated	
child	sexual	exploitation	and	Internet	crimes	against	children.	This	assistance	encompasses	
forensic	and	investigative	components,	training	and	technical	assistance,	victim	services,	
prevention	and	community	education.	Due	in	large	part	to	the	technological	aspects	of	
these	cases,	the	ICAC	Task	Force	Program	promotes	a	multi‐jurisdictional,	multi‐agency,	
team	approach	to	investigating	and	prosecuting	ICAC	cases;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	ICAC	Task	Force	Program	is	a	national	network	of	61	coordinated	task	
forces	representing	more	than	3,500	federal,	state,	and	local	law	enforcement	and	
prosecutorial	agencies	with	each	task	force	having	an	agency	designated	by	the	OJJDP	as	
the	“Lead	Agency”	which	is	the	law	enforcement	agency	that	is	awarded	federal	funding	to	
serve	as	the	“Lead”	“Agency”	for	the	corresponding	Task	Force.	
	
WHEREAS,	the	SPD	has	been	designated	by	the	OJJDP	as	the	“Lead	Agency”	to	oversee	the	
multi‐jurisdictional	Washington	State	Internet	Crimes	Against	Children	Task	Force	
(WA	ICAC	TF)	intended	to	combat	crimes	related	to	the	sexual	exploitation,	enticement	
and	victimization	of	children	through	the	Internet,	online	communication	systems,	
telecommunications	technology	and	other	computer	technology;	and	
	



Page 2 of 7 
 

WHEREAS,	the	SPD	is	the	recipient	of	a	Federal	grant	through	the	OJJDP	to	assist	in	the	
investigation	and	prosecution	of	Internet	crimes	against	children;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	the	SPD	will	assist	law	enforcement	agencies	in	Washington	State	to	increase	
their	computer	forensic	capabilities	and	receive	appropriate	training	to	investigate	
Internet	related	cases;	and	
	
WHEREAS,	agencies	that	agree	to	work	with	the	SPD	as	the	“Lead	Agency”	shall	be	
identified	in	the	program	as	an	“Affiliate”	or		“Affiliate	Agency”	will	execute	this	signed	
agreement	under	the	authorization	of	the	proper	authority	of	said	agency	following	all	of	
the	terms,	conditions	and	tenets	contained	herein.	
	
NOW	THEREFORE,	the	parties	hereto	agree	as	follows:	
	
This	Interagency	Agreement	contains	thirteen	(13)	Articles.	
	
ARTICLE	I	 	 TERM	OF	AGREEMENT	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	may	withdraw	from	this	Interagency	Agreement	and	new	Affiliate	
Agencies	may	be	added	by	executing	an	Interagency	Agreement	with	the	SPD	in	
substantially	the	same	form	as	this	Interagency	Agreement.	The	term	of	this	Interagency	
Agreement	shall	be	in	effect	until	terminated	pursuant	to	the	provisions	hereof.		Either	
agency	may	cancel	this	agreement	with	(30)	thirty	days	of	written	notification	to	the	other	
agency.	Said	notification	must	be	provided	from	the	appropriate	authorized	authority	
within	that	agency.	Upon	receipt	of	the	written	notification	the	SPD	will	permanently	
remove	the	agency	from	Affiliate	Agency	status	with	the	ICAC	Program.	
	
	
ARTICLE	II	 		 OPERATIONAL	STANDARDS	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	adhere	to	the	ICAC	Task	Force	Program	Operational	and	
Investigative	Standards,	attached	to	and	made	part	of	this	Agreement,	as	Attachment	A.		The	
undersigned	law	enforcement	agency	agrees	to	investigate	ICAC	cases	within	their	
jurisdiction,	and	assist	other	jurisdictions	to	investigate	these	cases.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	participate	on	the	Washington	Internet	Crimes	Against	Children	
Task	Force	that	is	overseen	by	the	SPD.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	use	only	sworn	law	enforcement	investigators	to	conduct	ICAC	
investigations.	Each	investigator	involved	with	undercover	operations	must	receive	ICAC	
Program	training	prior	to	initiating	proactive	investigations	and	shall	submit	reports	of	all	
undercover	activity	to	the	SPD	ICAC.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	conduct	reactive	investigations	where	subjects	are	associated	
within	the	Affiliate	Agencies	jurisdiction,	including	investigations	of	child	pornography,	
Cybertip	(CT)	referrals	from	the	National	Center	for	Missing	and	Exploited	Children	
(NCMEC),	Internet	Service	Provider	(ISP)	and	law	enforcement	referrals,	and	other	ICAC‐
related	investigations.	Additional	case	initiations	may	develop	from	subject	interviews,	



Page 3 of 7 
 

documented	public	sources,	direct	observations	of	suspicious	behavior,	public	complaints,	
etc.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	record	and	document	all	undercover	online	activity.	Any	
deviations	from	this	policy	due	to	unusual	circumstances	shall	be	documented	in	the	
relevant	case	file,	reviewed	and	authorized	by	the	ICAC	Unit	Commander,	or	equivalent,	for	
that	agency.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	provide	the	SPD	with	access	to	all	ICAC	investigative	files	
including,	without	limitation,	computer	records,	in	order	to	ensure	compliance	with	all	
national	ICAC	standards.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	locate	its	ICAC	investigators	in	secured	space,	to	be	provided	by	
the	Affiliate	Agency,	with	controlled	access	to	all	equipment,	software,	and	investigative	
files.	At	a	minimum,	information	should	be	maintained	in	locked	cabinets	and	under	
control	of	each	Affiliate	Agencies	ICAC	personnel,	with	restricted	access	to	authorized	
personnel.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	conduct	education	and	prevention	programs	to	foster	awareness	
and	provide	practical,	relevant	guidance	to	children,	parents,	educators,	librarians,	the	
business	and	law	enforcement	communities,	and	other	individuals	concerned	about	
Internet	child	safety	issues.	Presenters	shall	not	discuss	ongoing	investigative	techniques	
and	undercover	operations	utilized	by	the	WA	ICAC	TF,	its	Affiliate	Agencies	or	the	national	
ICAC	Program.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	be	responsible	for	proper	maintenance	and	use	of	any	
equipment	purchased	with	OJJDP	Grant	funds	and	loaned	to	an	Affiliate	Agency	by	the	SPD.			
Upon	termination	of	this	Interagency	Agreement,	ownership	of	equipment,	hardware,	and	
other	non‐expendable	items	will	revert	to	the	SPD.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	agree	to	utilize	applicable	State	and	Federal	laws	to	prosecute	criminal,	
civil,	and	forfeiture	actions	against	identified	violators,	as	appropriate.	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	shall	maintain	accurate	records	pertaining	to	prevention,	education	and	
enforcement	activities,	to	be	collected	and	forwarded	not	less	than	monthly	to	the	SPD	
ICAC	Commander,	Seattle	Police	Department,	PO	Box	34986,	Seattle,	WA		98124‐4986,	for	
statistical	reporting	purposes	(form	provided.)	
	
ARTICLE	III	 	 SUPERVISION	
	
Each	Affiliate	Agency	will	be	responsible	for	the	day‐to‐day	operational	supervision,	
administrative	control,	and	personal	and	professional	conduct	of	its	officers	and	agents	
assigned	to	assist	the	WA	ICAC	TF.	WA	ICAC	TF	investigations	are	a	cooperative	effort	and	
investigative	decisions	will	be	a	joint	process	guided	by	the	WA	ICAC	TF	standards.	
	
ARTICLE	IV	 	 JURISDICTION	
	



Page 4 of 7 
 

The	principal	sites	of	WA	ICAC	TF	activities	will	be	in	the	respective	jurisdictional	area	of	
each	Affiliate	Agency.	Nothing	in	this	agreement	shall	otherwise	limit	or	enhance	the	
jurisdiction	and	powers	normally	possessed	by	an	Affiliate	Agency’s	employee(s)	as	a	
member	of	the	WA	ICAC	TF.	Affiliate	Agencies	may	on	occasion	be	referred	investigations	
that	are	outside	of	the	physical	boundaries	of	their	respective	municipalities	due	to	specific	
needs,	capabilities	or	expertise	as	identified	by	the	WA	ICAC	TF	Lead	Agency.	Affiliate	
Agencies	agree	to	take	these	referrals	and	conduct	appropriate	investigations	in	
conformance	with	the	ICAC	Operational	Standards,	investigative	or	operational	training,	
and	their	agency	policing	policies.	
	
ARTICLE	V	 	 EVIDENCE	
	
Seized	evidence	and	any	other	related	forfeiture	will	be	handled	in	a	manner	consistent	
with	the	seizing	law	enforcement	agency’s	policies.	
	
ARTICLE	VI	 	 INSURANCE	AND	LIABILITY	
	
Each	Affiliate	Agency	shall	maintain	sufficient	insurance	coverage	or	a	fully	funded	self‐
insurance	program,	approved	by	the	State	of	Washington,	for	the	protection	and	handling	
of	the	liabilities	including	injuries	to	persons	and	damage	to	property.	Each	Affiliate	Agency	
agrees	to	maintain,	at	its	own	expense,	insurance	or	self‐insurance	coverage	for	all	of	its	
liability	exposures	for	this	Agreement	and	agrees	to	provide	the	City	of	Seattle	with	at	least	
30	days	prior	written	notice	of	any	material	change	in	the	Affiliate	Agency’s	liability	
coverage.		
	
ARTICLE	VII	 REPORTING	STANDARDS	
	
Using	a	process	provided	by	the	SPD,	each	Affiliate	Agency	shall	submit	monthly	statistics	
to	the	SPD	on	all	ICAC	investigations	or	other	investigative	work	pertaining	to	the	sexual	
exploitation	of	children	via	the	Internet.	These	statistics	shall	be	submitted	in	the	
appropriate	format	by	the	10th	day	of	each	successive	month	that	the	statistics	were	
acquired	and	shall	include	data	on	all	related	investigations	opened	or	closed	during	the	
month	in	all	of	the	categories	as	designated	on	the	provided	form.	
	
In	addition,	a	breakdown	or	summary	of	basic	case	data	shall	be	included	for	each	sexual	
exploitation	of	a	minor	(child	pornography)	case,	and/or	criminal	solicitation	of	a	minor	
(enticement/traveler)	case	investigated	by	an	Affiliate	Agency	along	with	references	to	any	
local	media	reporting	on	the	investigation.	The	SPD	will	be	responsible	for	all	required	
reporting	to	the	OJJDP.	
	
ARTICLE	VIII	TRAINING	
	
Affiliate	Agencies	shall	make	every	effort	to	make	investigators	designated	as	Task	Force	
Members	available	for	applicable	specialized	training	provided	through	the	national	ICAC	
Program	and	other	appropriate	training	programs.	The	SPD	will	review	training	requests	
and	provide	funding	for	ICAC‐approved	training	when	appropriate.	This	funding	will	
include,	but	is	not	limited	to;	WA	ICAC	TF	hosted,	or	sponsored	or	facilitated	training	
through	the	national	ICAC	Programs	authorized	vendors.	



Page 5 of 7 
 

	
Affiliate	Agencies	seeking	funding	assistance	will	be	required	to	submit	requests	at	least	
thirty	(30)	days	in	advance	in	writing	and	to	comply	with	the	procedures	set	forth	in	a	
separate	Interagency	Agreement	for	funding	requests.	A	sample	of	this	Interagency	
Agreement	is	available	upon	request	but	in	no	way	is	tacit	or	expressed	authorization	of	
requested	funding	or	financial	assistance	given	in	advance.	Funding	under	the	Interagency	
Agreement	is	limited	to	the	available	funds	that	are	received	by	the	SPD	under	the	OJJDP	
Grant	program	for	the	national	ICAC	program.	
	
ARTICLE	IX	 	 CONFIDENTIALITY	
	
The	parties	agree	that	any	confidential	information	pertaining	to	investigations	of	WA	ICAC	
TF	will	be	held	in	the	strictest	confidence,	and	will	only	be	shared	with	other	Affiliate	
Agencies	or	other	law	enforcement	agencies	not	participating	in	the	WA	ICAC	TF	where	
necessary	or	as	otherwise	permitted	by	federal	and/or	state	law.	
	
ARTICLE	X	 	 COMPLIANCE	WITH	EQUAL	OPPORTUNITY	LAWS	
	
To	the	extent	required	by	law,	the	Affiliate	Agency	shall	comply	with	all	applicable	laws,	
standards,	orders	and	regulations	regarding	equal	employment	which	are	applicable	to	the	
Affiliate	Agency’s	performance	of	this	Interagency	Agreement,	including	Rules	of	Practice	
for	Administrative	Proceeding	to	Enforce	Equal	Opportunity	under	Executive	Order	No.	
11246,	title	41,	subtitle	B,	Chapter	60,	part	60‐30,	which	are	incorporated	herein	by	
reference.	
	
ARTICLE	XI	 	 GOVERNING	LAW	AND	VENUE	
	
This	Interagency	Agreement	is	governed	in	all	respects	by	applicable	local,	State,	and	
Federal	laws	which	shall	supersede	any	provisions	made	in	this	Interagency	Agreement	to	
the	contrary.	Any	provision	effected	will	not	negate	the	rest	of	the	Interagency	Agreement.	
In	case	any	one	or	more	of	the	provisions	contained	in	this	Interagency	Agreement	shall	be	
held	to	be	invalid,	illegal	or	unenforceable	in	any	respect,	such	invalidity,	illegality	or	
unenforceability	shall	not	affect	any	other	provision	thereof	and	this	Interagency	
Agreement	shall	be	construed	as	if	such	invalid,	illegal	or	unenforceable	provision	had	
never	been	contained	herein.	Exclusive	venue	is	in	Seattle,	King	County,	Washington.	
	
ARTICLE	XII	 EFFECTIVE	DATE	
	
This	Interagency	Agreement	shall	be	effective	on	July	1,	2016	and	continue	for	one	(1)	
years.	Upon	expiration	of	the	two	(2)	years	this	Interagency	Agreement	shall	automatically	
be	renewed	for	one	(1)	additional	year	until	such	time	as	federal	funding	for	the	ICAC	Task	
Force	Program	ends	or	the	Interagency	Agreement	is	canceled	by	either	party	upon	30	
days’	written	notice	delivered	to	both	parties’	as	delineated	in	ARTICLE	I	TERM	OF	
AGREEMENT.	This	Interagency	may	be	executed	in	multiple	counterparts,	each	of	which	
shall	be	deemed	to	be	an	original,	but	all	of	which,	taken	together,	shall	constitute	one	and	
the	same	agreement.	
	



Page 6 of 7 
 

The	additional	or	deletion	of	Affiliate	Agencies	to	or	from	this	Interagency	Agreement	shall	
not	affect	the	Interagency	Agreement	with	the	remaining	Affiliate	Agencies.	
	
This	Interagency	Agreement	can	be	amended	or	replaced	in	the	event	of	new	requirements	
under	the	national	ICAC	Task	Force	Program	or	as	designated	by	law	or	other	proper	
lawful	authority.	
	
ARTICLE	XIII	AMENDMENTS	
	
No	modification	or	amendment	of	the	provisions	hereof	shall	be	effective	unless	in	writing	
and	signed	by	authorized	representatives	of	the	parties	hereto.		The	parties	hereto	
expressly	reserve	the	right	to	modify	this	Agreement,	by	mutual	agreement.	
	
	
	 	





LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 1 of 17 

 

 

 
 
 

Internet Crimes Against 
Children Program 

 
OPERATIONAL 

AND 
INVESTIGATIVE 

STANDARDS   



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 2 of 17 

Table	of	Contents	

Definitions of Terms ........................................................................................................... 3 
1.  Purpose of the ICAC Standards ................................................................................. 5 
2.  ICAC National Program  ........................................................................................... 6 
3.  Oversight of the ICAC Program ................................................................................ 7 
4.  Selection and Retention of Task Force Members ...................................................... 8 
5.  Training ...................................................................................................................... 9 
6.  Case Management .................................................................................................... 10 
7.  Task Force Reporting Requirements to OJJDP ....................................................... 11 
8.  Investigations ........................................................................................................... 12 
9.  Work Environment................................................................................................... 14 
10.  Victim Identification ................................................................................................ 15 
11.  Public Awareness and Community Outreach .......................................................... 16 
12.  Media Relations and Media Releases ...................................................................... 17 
 
 
  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 3 of 17 

Definitions of Terms 

 
Applicability of Terms 

Although some of the definitions below may be generally applicable to law enforcement, 
they are intended for use in the interpretation of these Standards.  As such, where any 
term defined below is capitalized in these Standards, the Standards are referring to that 
term as defined below.  By contrast, where any term defined below is not capitalized in 
these Standards, the Standards are referring to that term as it is used generally in the field 
of law enforcement. 
 
“Affiliate” or Affiliate Agency” is an agency that is working with a Lead Agency as part 
of a regional or State ICAC Task Force.  An Affiliate has agreed in writing to adhere to 
these Standards. 

“Authorized Personnel” are Members who themselves lack powers of arrest but have 
been authorized by their respective agency to participate in Investigations and are being 
supervised by Sworn Personnel. 

“Commander” is the Member of a Lead Agency who has been designated by that Lead 
Agency and recognized by OJJDP as the leader of the corresponding Task Force. 

“CEOS” is the Child Exploitation and Obscenity Section of the Criminal Division of the 
DOJ. 

“Crime” is any offense (or group thereof) that involves (or involve) the 
exploitation/victimization of children facilitated by technology. 

“CVIP” is the Child Victim Identification Project operated by NCMEC. 

“CyberTipline” is a reporting mechanism operated by NCMEC that allows for the 
reporting of suspected Crimes. 

“Deconflict” is a process whereby Members are able to submit Investigative information 
to each other and/or to ICAC-related databases in order to determine whether other 
Members or other law enforcement agencies have information concerning the same 
targets or Crimes. 

“DOJ” is the United States Department of Justice. 

“Employee” is a sworn or compensated individual, or any individual working under the 
direction and control of a law enforcement agency.  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 4 of 17 

“Equipment” is any device or tool – including but not limited to computers, phones, and 
online accounts and services -- purchased or obtained for use in ICAC-related matters.  

“ICAC” is the Internet Crimes Against Children Program, a national program composed 
of state and regional Task Forces.  

“Images” are visual depictions in any form (image or video/printed or digital) of child 
sexual exploitation as defined by federal and/or state statute.  

“Investigation” is an investigation into a Crime.  Likewise, “Investigate” “Investigating” 
and “Investigative” are used within the same context. 

“Investigative Persona” – any identity established or created by an Employee to aid an 
Investigation. 

“Investigator” is a Member who is a part of the Sworn Personnel of a Task Force. 

“Lead” or “Lead Agency” is the law enforcement agency that receives the ICAC grant 
and is designated by OJJDP to act as the lead agency for the corresponding Task Force. 

“Member” is a Lead or Affiliate Agency’s employee who is either Sworn Personnel or 
Authorized Personnel and who has been designated to work on ICAC-related matters for 
his/her respective agency and Task Force. 

“National Initiative” is any proposal that relies on the cooperation and resources of a 
significant number of Task Forces and, accordingly, has been approved by OJJDP.  

“NCMEC” is the National Center for Missing and Exploited Children. 

“OJJDP” is the Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention within the DOJ. 

“Supervisor” is a Member who has been designated by his/her respective agency to 
supervise Investigations and other ICAC-related matters. 

“Standards” are all of the provisions of these, the ICAC Operational and Investigative 
Standards.  

“Sworn Personnel” are Members with powers of arrest. 

“Task Force” is the Lead Agency and its Affiliate(s) (combined) as designated by 
OJJDP for a particular state or region. 

  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 5 of 17 

1. Purpose of the ICAC Standards  

These Standards are established by OJJDP to guide administration and operation of ICAC 
and its Members when working on ICAC-related Investigations and matters.   

ICAC Members should make every reasonable effort to comply with these Standards.  
However, since many aspects of Investigations are dynamic and laws vary widely 
between jurisdictions – their genesis; methods for their evidentiary pursuit; and their 
application within court – it is difficult to anticipate every circumstance that might 
present itself.  Thus, reasonable deviations from these Standards may occur depending 
upon various factors (e.g., emergency situations; timing constraints; accessibility 
constraints; resource constraints; technology constraints; perceived conflicts between the 
Standards and statutes, decisional law, and court orders; et cetera). 

Should questions regarding the interpretation of these Standards arise or conflicts occur 
between these Standards and agency policies or law, the subject Commander faced with 
the issue shall seek the guidance of an OJJDP Program Manager.  However, nothing in 
these Standards is meant to interfere with a Commander’s or Supervisor’s lawful tactical 
decision-making. 

Commanders may supplement, but not contradict, these Standards in the written 
agreements they establish with their Affiliates to promote the effective operation of their 
Task Forces.   

 
  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 6 of 17 

2. ICAC National Program  

2.1 Mission of the ICAC Program  

The Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force Program (ICAC) helps state and local 
law enforcement agencies develop an effective response to technology-facilitated child 
sexual exploitation and Internet crimes against children. This support encompasses 
forensic and investigative components, training and technical assistance, victim services, 
prevention and community education. 

2.2 ICAC Background  

The Internet Crimes Against Children Program (ICAC) is a national network of 61 
coordinated task forces representing more than 3,500 federal, state, and local law 
enforcement and prosecutorial agencies. These agencies are engaged in both proactive 
and reactive investigations, forensic examinations, and criminal prosecutions. By helping 
state and local agencies develop effective, sustainable responses to online child 
victimization – including responses to child sexual abuse images (Images), The ICAC 
Program has increased law enforcement’s capacity to combat technology facilitated 
crimes against children at every level. 

The ICAC Program was developed in response to the increasing number of children and 
teenagers using the Internet and other technology, the proliferation of child sexual abuse 
images available electronically, and the heightened online activity by predators seeking 
unsupervised contact with potential underage victims. 

Because ICAC Members understand that arrests alone cannot resolve the problem of 
technology-facilitated child sexual exploitation, the ICAC Program is also dedicated to 
training law enforcement officers and prosecutors, as well as educating parents and youth 
about the potential dangers of online activity.   

 
 

  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 7 of 17 

3. Oversight of the ICAC Program 

3.1 The oversight of the ICAC Task Force Program and the administration of ICAC 
grants is the responsibility of OJJDP.  The oversight of each Task Force falls to its 
Commander.  The oversight of each agency, both Lead and Affiliate, falls to its 
designated Supervisor.  

3.2 Commanders shall ensure there are supervisory systems and protocols in place 
that provide for observation, documentation, and review of ICAC activity. Said systems 
shall comply with the principles of quality case management and shall ensure that ICAC 
activities comply with agency policies and these Standards.  

3.3 Commanders shall ensure that each Member in his/her Lead Agency and each 
Supervisor of an Affiliate Agency receives a copy of the Standards.  

3.3.1 Supervisors shall ensure that each Member in his/her Affiliate Agency 
receives a copy of the Standards.  

3.4 Commanders shall submit all proposed National Initiatives to OJJDP prior to the 
start of the project.  

3.4.1 OJJDP may suggest amendments to the original proposal following 
consultation with the presenting Commander and, as appropriate, 
other federal, state, and local entities.  

3.5 Supervisors shall inform their Members about departmental or Task Force 
employee assistance programs and services available to them.  

 



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 8 of 17 

4. Selection and Retention of Task Force Members 

4.1 When practicable during the selection process of Members, Commanders and 
Supervisors shall evaluate prospective candidates for work histories that indicate prior 
investigative experience, courtroom testimony skills, technical knowledge and ability, an 
ability to prudently handle sensitive information, a genuine interest in the protection of 
children, and an understanding of the effects that Members may experience when 
exposed to Images.  

4.2 Commanders and Supervisors shall acknowledge the potential effects of 
Investigations and exposure to Images.  When practicable, they shall attempt to mitigate 
the potential effects of the work using, for example, the following techniques:  

 Work environment considerations – Commanders and Supervisors are 
encouraged to provide a physical location for the work environment that allows the 
Investigator to conduct discreet Investigations.  
 
 Work flexibility – Commanders and Supervisors are encouraged to allow 
flexibility for Investigators and others who are exposed to Images (e.g., frequent 
breaks, having an open-door policy, etc.). 

 
 Educating colleagues – Commanders and Supervisors are encouraged to teach 
their colleagues that the viewing of Images is serious and restricted. 

 
 Work with Mental Health Providers (MHP) – In compliance with their agency 
guidelines, Commanders and Supervisors are encouraged to work with MHP to 
make recommendations for care of Members and to provide education and training 
designed to minimize the impact of Images.  
 
 Training -- Commanders and Supervisors are encouraged to share or seek out 
best practices for minimization of the impact of Images and to promote attendance 
at trainings regarding methods used to minimize said impact. 



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 9 of 17 

5. Training 

5.1 Carefully-managed Investigations conducted by well-trained Investigators are 
among the most effective techniques available to law enforcement for addressing Crime.  

5.2 All national training curricula supported by ICAC resources shall be conducted 
consistent with the Standards and shall be approved by OJJDP.  

5.3 Commanders shall ensure that nominees to attend any ICAC-sponsored national 
in-person training are current Members.  

5.4 Task Forces may develop and deliver Task Force training. This training shall 
comply with the Standards and shall be approved by the Commander.  All costs to 
develop and deliver the training shall be the responsibility of the Task Force or Affiliate 
providing the Task Force training.  

 



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 10 of 17 

6. Case Management 

6.1 Commanders and Supervisors are responsible for determining Investigative 
priorities and selecting cases for Investigation in their respective agencies.  Those 
determinations shall include an assessment of victim risk, jurisdiction, known offender 
behavioral characteristics, and the likelihood of securing the information necessary to 
pursue each Investigation.  

6.2 Conventional boundaries often are meaningless in today’s digital world where the 
usual constraints of time, place, and distance lose their relevance.  These factors increase 
the possibility of Lead and/or Affiliate Agencies targeting other law enforcement 
personnel, Investigating the same target, or inadvertently disrupting an ongoing 
Investigation. To foster effective case coordination, collaboration, and communication, 
each Member shall make every effort to Deconflict all active Investigations.  

6.3 Lead and Affiliate Agencies shall be subject to their respective agency’s incident 
reporting procedures and case supervision systems.  At a minimum, a unique identifier 
shall be assigned to each case.  

  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 11 of 17 

7. Task Force Reporting Requirements to OJJDP 

7.1 The reports described below do not replace the semi-annual progress report 
required by the Office of Justice Programs’ Financial Guide. 

7.2 Commanders shall compile and submit a Task Force Monthly Performance 
Measures Report to the OJJDP-designated location before the end of the following 
calendar month.  

7.2.1 Affiliates shall report their activity to their respective Commander 
by the 10th of each month using the ICAC Monthly Performance 
Measures Report.  

 
7.3 Commanders shall compile and submit information on all cases referred for local, 
state, or federal prosecution.  Information is required for all cases referred by the Lead 
Agency, as well as all Affiliates that received more than $20,000 a year in OJJDP ICAC 
funding, and any Affiliate the Commander selects to include.  The case reporting 
requirement is ongoing and begins with the prosecutorial agency the case is referred to 
and continues through the final disposition of the case.  

7.3.1 This ongoing quarterly report shall be submitted within 30 days of 
the end of the quarter. 

 
7.4 Commanders shall compile and submit an annual report which details each of 
their Affiliates.  The report shall be submitted in a method determined by OJJDP and 
shall include the following information: 

7.4.1  The name of each Affiliate Agency. 

7.4.2 The staffing level of each Affiliate including the number of 
Investigators, prosecutors, education specialists, and forensic 
specialists dedicated to Investigating and prosecuting Crime. 

7.4.3 This ongoing annual report shall be submitted within 30 days of the 
end of the calendar year.  

  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 12 of 17 

8. Investigations 

8.1  Investigations shall be conducted in a manner consistent with applicable laws and 
constitutional requirements.  

8.2 Only Sworn Personnel shall conduct Investigations.  

8.2.1 Authorized Personnel acting under the direction and supervision of 
Sworn Personnel may participate in Investigations.  

8.2.2 Members shall not approve, condone, encourage, or promote cyber-
vigilanteism by private citizens. As such, Members shall not use 
unauthorized private citizens to proactively seek out Investigative 
targets. 

8.2.3 The above section (8.2.2) shall not preclude the use of information 
related to a Crime provided by victims or public citizens who 
discover evidence (e.g., CyberTip reports, mandated reports from 
professionals, computer repair shop complaints, parental 
complaints, et cetera). Nor does it preclude the use of authorized 
over-hears or other similar investigative methods designed to further 
an Investigation.  

8.3 Investigations shall be documented.  Any departures from this provision due to 
unusual or exigent circumstances shall be documented in the relevant case file and 
reviewed by the Supervisor.  

8.3.1 The retention, storage, security, and disposal of Investigative or case 
information shall be consistent with the subject agency’s policies 
and federal and state law regarding same.  

8.3.2 Access to Investigative case files shall be restricted to Authorized 
Personnel. 

 
8.4 Members shall not electronically upload, transmit, or forward any Images.  

8.4.1 Section 8.4 shall not prohibit the transfer of evidence between 
Investigators as provided for by sections 8.9 and 8.10 of these 
Standards nor shall it prohibit the submission of Images to CVIP as 
provided for by section 10.1 of these Standards.  

 
8.5 Visual depictions of any identifiable person used to represent an investigative 
persona or any identifiable minor, shall be only those of an Employee who has given his 
or her written consent and only if that Employee was at least 18 years old at the time of 
consent.  Further, the depictions themselves may be of that Employee under the age of 18. 



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 13 of 17 

8.6 Absent prosecutorial input to the contrary, during online dialogue, officers shall 
allow the Investigative target to set the tone, pace, and subject matter of the online 
conversation 

8.6.1 The above section (8.6) shall not be construed to prohibit 
Investigators from performing any of the following activities when 
initiating or conducting an Investigation: (a) posting information 
including visual depictions (image or video/printed or digital) to 
establish an online presence, (b) placing advertisements or posts, or 
(c) sending messages.  

 
8.6.2 Members shall familiarize themselves with relevant state and federal law, 

including but not limited to those regarding the defense of entrapment, and 
should confer with relevant prosecutors for legal consultation, as needed. 

 
8.6.3 Members planning large-scale (multi-target) operations shall advise 

the Commander and shall consult relevant prosecutors regarding the 
operation.  

 
8.7 The examination of digital storage devices shall be performed consistent with the 
subject agency’s protocol.  

8.8 Images shall be maintained pursuant to the subject agency’s policy. 

8.8.1 Absent a court order specifically ordering otherwise, evidence 
containing Images shall not be released to any defendant or 
representative thereof.  

 
8.9 Absent exigent circumstances, all Members’ case referrals between jurisdictions 
shall include:  

 Notification to and acceptance by the Commander(s) of both jurisdictions that are 
involved in the referral; 

 A secure (i.e., digitally-protected) copy of the case file; 
 An official Investigative report or affidavit containing case details; and, 
 Documentation, preferably the original, of all legal process conducted and all 

compliance with same, especially those documents related to the issue of 
jurisdiction and identification of suspect(s). 

 
8.10 The transfer of evidence containing Images among law enforcement shall be done 
in a secure manner.  
  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 14 of 17 

9. Work Environment 

9.1 ICAC Equipment shall be reserved for the exclusive use of its Members, and shall 
be used in accordance with their respective agency’s policies.  

9.2 When practicable, Equipment which might be used in undercover aspects of an 
Investigation shall be purchased covertly.  

9.3 No personally-owned Equipment shall be used in Investigations.  

9.4 Software shall be properly acquired and licensed.  

9.5 Investigations shall be conducted in an approved work environment as designated 
by a Commander or Supervisor.  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 15 of 17 

10. Victim Identification 

10.1 Identifying child victims of Crime is a critical element of the ICAC Program.  
DOJ and OJJDP require the Lead Agencies and Affiliates to submit Images to CVIP as a 
means to improve child victim identification.  Absent exigent circumstances, Images 
shall be sent to CVIP pursuant to NCMEC’s standards regarding same.  In addition, Lead 
Agencies and Affiliates are encouraged to collaborate with NCMEC in their effort to 
identify children depicted in Images.  

10.2 Absent exigent circumstances, victim-identifying information shall be protected 
from public disclosure pursuant to the protections set forth in federal and state law.  

10.3 Lead Agencies and Affiliates shall adhere to local, state, and federal laws 
regarding mandated reporting, victim notification, and victim assistance.  

 

  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 16 of 17 

11. Public Awareness and Community Outreach 

11.1 Public awareness activities and community outreach are a critical component of 
ICAC.  Lead and Affiliate Agencies shall foster awareness and shall provide practical 
relevant guidance to children, parents, educators, and others concerned with child safety.  

11.2 Presentations to school personnel, parents, and community groups are excellent 
ways to promote awareness.  These presentations shall not depict identifiable victims nor 
shall they use pornographic or sexually explicit images.  Presenters shall not discuss 
confidential Investigative techniques.  

11.3 Members shall not endorse any product or service without the express written 
consent of an OJJDP Program Manager.  While making public presentations, Members 
may indicate a preference for a product or service, but, where done, shall avoid an 
implicit endorsement and shall include alternatives in the presentation.  

11.4 Materials and presentations shall be consistent with ICAC’s mission and 
background, as enumerated in Section 2 of these Standards.  

 
  



LIMITED OFFICIAL USE ONLY 
LAW ENFORCEMENT SENSITIVE  

  

ICAC Program Operational and Investigative Standards 
FOR ICAC PURPOSES ONLY 

Revised Update: October 16, 2014 
Page 17 of 17 

12. Media Relations and Media Releases 

12.1 Media releases relating to prosecutions, Crime alerts, or other matters concerning 
ICAC operations shall not include information regarding confidential Investigative 
techniques, and shall be coordinated, when applicable, with the law enforcement agencies 
involved with the subject Investigations, in a manner consistent with sound information 
management and sound media relations practices.  

12.2 Commanders and Supervisors may speak to members of the media about their 
own agency’s ICAC-related activities per the terms of their agency’s policy on such 
media relations.  No individual affiliated with ICAC may speak on behalf of the national 
ICAC Program without the express written consent of OJJDP.  

12.3 Commanders shall inform their OJJDP Program Manager if approached by 
national media outlets about the national ICAC Program (as opposed to media seeking 
information about local activities) so that a coordinated national response can be prepared 
by OJJDP.  

12.4 Information provided by Task Forces to the media shall be consistent with 
ICAC’s mission and background, as described in Section 2 of these Standards.  

 
End of ICAC Standards 



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT FUND NUMBER 0135-101, DEPARTMENT
NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
w. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0135-101, Fund No. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

558.610 1652 Community Relations Coordinator $952 558.610 3508 Computer Replacement $797

558.610 3503 Computer Software $155

TOTAL $952 TOTAL $952

Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  27-Jun-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

This request is based on Resolution 2016-367 for 1/2 the cost of new computer and Adobe Pro for the Community Relations Coordinator.

No Department

Sustainable Development

000

0135-101



AGENDA ITEM 
MTG. DATE:  July 12, 2016 
SUBJECT: Urban Growth Area 
Applications 
Memo Date: July 5, 2016 
Prepared By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION  
NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion X 
Other  

Consent Agenda  
Public Meeting X 
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
RCW 36.70A.130(3)(a) requires that the County and Cities review their designated urban growth 
areas, and the densities permitted within both the incorporated and unincorporated portions of 
each urban growth area.  
 
According to BCC 16.14.050(b) applications to amend Urban Growth Area (UGA) boundaries shall 
only be accepted every five (5) years to be acted upon by the Board of County Commissioners 
every fifth year counting from the year 2009 (i.e., 2014, 2019, etc.). Complete applications for 
the five-year review cycle must be received by December 1st of the preceding year (i.e., 
December 1, 2008 for the 2009 UGA review process). 
 
Several of the Planning Departments for Cities within Benton County have asked to be able to 
submit Urban Growth Area Amendments as part of the County’s 2017 Comprehensive Plan Update 
process.  Attached to this memo is a draft resolution that would allow the cities to submit UGA 
amendments by December 31, 2016 to be considered as part of the 2017 update process.  After 
the 2017 Comprehensive Plan update, the UGA amendment application cycle will return to the 
schedule noted in BCC 16.14.050(b). 
 
Any UGA application that is submitted during the update process will require all the information 
for a UGA amendment as noted in BCC 16.14.050(c).  
 
SUMMARY 
Several of the Cities within Benton County have requested the ability to submit amendments to 
their Urban Growth Areas during the County’s 2017 Comprehensive Plan Update process.  The 
Planning Commission considered the request at a public meeting on June 14, 2016 and 
recommended approval of the request to allow the Cities to submit UGA amendments by 
December 31, 2016 for review in 2017.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Planning Commission recommends that the Board adopt the attached resolution allowing each 
City jurisdiction to submit an Urban Growth Area Amendment application as part of the 2017 
Comprehensive Plan Update Process.   
 
MOTION  
The Board adopt the attached resolution agreeing to allow each City jurisdiction to submit an 
Urban Growth Area Amendment application as part of the 2017 Comprehensive Plan Update 
Process. 

WEH
Text Box
Amendment to the Urban Growth Area Applications ~ M Shuttleworth



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: AMENDMENT TO THE BENTON COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN, URBAN GROWTH AREA. 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 1998, the Benton County Commissioners adopted the Benton County Comprehensive 
Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2007, the Benton County Commissioners updated the Benton County Comprehensive 
Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, Washington State Planning law requires continued review and evaluation of the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan and Urban Growth Areas, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130. (5)(c); and, 

WHEREAS, Washington State Planning law requires Benton County to review and evaluate its Comprehensive 
Plan, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130. (5)(c), by June 30, 2017; and, 

WHEREAS, Chapter 16.14 of the Benton County Code provides the process for reviewing and processing of 
Urban Growth Areas; and, 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.130(3)(a) requires the County to review its Urban Growth Areas; and the densities 
permitted within both the incorporated and unincorporated portions of each Urban Growth Area as part of the 
review and evaluation process and, 

WHEREAS, the Cities within Benton County have requested the ability to submit applications to amend their 
Urban Growth Areas as part of the 2017 update process, and,  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission reviewed the resolution at their June 14, 2016 meeting 
and recommended that the proposed resolution be adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, and,  

WHEREAS, the Board finds that it would be in the best interest of the County to allow the Cities to submit 
applications in 2016 for review and decision in 2017 for amendments to their Urban Growth Areas, NOW 
THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS that Benton County will accept 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment applications, from the Cities, to amend the Cities’ Urban Growth Area 
Boundaries, provided said applications comply with the following: 

1. The applications shall contain all the information required in BCC 16.14.060(a), (b) and (c)
for a complete application, and

2. All applications must be submitted and determined to be complete by December 31, 2016.

Dated this 12th day of July, 2016. 

___________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

___________________________ 
Member 

___________________________ 
Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County 

Washington. 
Attest  
Clerk of the Board MES



Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

DATE: MAY 27, 2016 

TO: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

RE: APPLICATIONS FOR URBAN GROWTH AREAS. 

BACKGROUND: 
RCW 36.70A.130(3)(a) requires the County review its designated urban growth area or 
areas, and the densities permitted within both the incorporated and unincorporated 
portions of each urban growth area. In conjunction with this review by the county, each 
city located within an urban growth area shall review the densities permitted within its 
boundaries, and the extent to which the urban growth occurring within the county has 
located within each city and the unincorporated portions of the urban growth areas. 

According to BCC 16.14.050(b) applications to amend Urban Growth Area boundaries shall 
only be accepted every five (5) years to be acted upon by the Board of County 
Commissioners every fifth year counting from the year 2009 (i.e., 2014, 2019, etc.). 
Complete applications for the five-year review cycle must be received by December 1st of 
the preceding year (i.e., December 1, 2008 for the 2009 UGA review process). 

A couple of the Planning Departments for Cities within Benton County have asked to be 
able to submit Urban Growth Area Amendments are part of the 2017 update process. 
Attached to this memo is a draft resolution that would allow the cities to submit UGA 
amendments by December 31, 2016 to be considered as part of the 2017 update process. 
After the 2017 comprehensive plan update, the UGA amendments application cycle will 
return to the schedule in BCC 16.14.050(b).   

The Cities would be required to submit all the information required for a UGA amendment 
as shown in BCC 16.14.050(c).  

STAFF FINDINGS: 
APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: 
16.14.050 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN--AMENDMENTS--APPLICATION PERIOD. (a) 
Subject to the exceptions found in RCW 36.70A.130(2)(a) and 36.70A.130(2)(b), 
applications to amend the Comprehensive Plan shall only be accepted between October 1st 
and December 1st of any year, and all applications will be considered concurrently by the 
Board of County Commissioners in the calendar year that follows the year in which the 
application is submitted.  

PCM 1.1 



_____________________________________________________________________ 
County-Wide Planning Policies   Page 2 of 3.   May 27, 2016 

(b) Except as provided in BCC 16.14.050(c), applications to amend Urban Growth Area 
boundaries shall only be accepted every five (5) years to be acted upon by the Board of 
County Commissioners every fifth year counting from the year 2009 (i.e., 2014, 2019, 
etc.). Complete applications for the five-year review cycle must be received by December 
1st of the preceding year (i.e., December 1, 2008 for the 2009 UGA review process).  

(c) Applications to amend Urban Growth Area boundaries may be submitted annually 
concurrently with all other applications to amend the Comprehensive Plan submitted in 
accordance with BCC 16.14.050(a); provided, such applications may be considered in years 
other than those specified in BCC 16.14.050(b) only if:  

(1) The application submitted under this subsection shall not increase the area 
within the city’s amended Urban Growth Area by an amount exceeding seven (7) 
percent of the total area within the city’s limits prior to the application.  
(2) The area proposed to be added to an Urban Growth Area by an application 
under this subsection must be identified in the city’s adopted comprehensive plan as 
an area designated to be used for industrial use and such area must be so zoned by 
the city upon annexation of such area.  
(3) Prior to the submission of its application, the city shall have received a 
completed development proposal from an applicant that satisfies the criteria set 
forth in BCC 16.14.060(d)(1).  
(4) Prior to the submission of its application, the city shall have adopted a phased 
master plan for the area to which the amendment applies containing at least the 
elements set forth in BCC 16.14.060(d)(2).  
(5) The application shall be submitted only during the application period set forth 
above under BCC 16.14.050(a), and no application may be submitted after 
December 1, 2015.  

RCW 36.70(3)(a) Each county that designates urban growth areas under RCW 
36.70A.110 shall review, according to the schedules established in subsection (5) of this 
section, its designated urban growth area or areas, and the densities permitted within both 
the incorporated and unincorporated portions of each urban growth area. In conjunction 
with this review by the county, each city located within an urban growth area shall review 
the densities permitted within its boundaries, and the extent to which the urban growth 
occurring within the county has located within each city and the unincorporated portions of 
the urban growth areas. 

(b) The county comprehensive plan designating urban growth areas, and the densities 
permitted in the urban growth areas by the comprehensive plans of the county and each 
city located within the urban growth areas, shall be revised to accommodate the urban 
growth projected to occur in the county for the succeeding twenty-year period. The review 
required by this subsection may be combined with the review and evaluation required by 
RCW 36.70A.215. 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.110
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.215


_____________________________________________________________________ 
County-Wide Planning Policies   Page 3 of 3.   May 27, 2016 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is the recommendation of the Planning Department that the 
Planning Commission review the attached Draft Resolution and recommend to the Board 
of County Commissioners that they approve the Draft Resolution as shown in PCM 1.2



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: AMENDMENT TO THE BENTON COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN, URBAN GROWTH AREA. 
 
WHEREAS, on June 22, 1998, the Benton County Commissioners adopted the Benton County Comprehensive 
Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 2007, the Benton County Commissioners updated the Benton County Comprehensive 
Plan; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Washington State Planning law requires continued review and evaluation of the Benton County 
Comprehensive Plan and Urban Growth Areas, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130. (5)(c); and, 
 
WHEREAS, Washington State Planning law requires Benton County to review and evaluate its Comprehensive 
Plan, pursuant to RCW 36.70A.130. (5)(c), by June 30, 2017; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Chapter 16.14 of the Benton County Code provides the process for reviewing and processing of 
Urban Growth Areas; and, 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 36.70A.130(3)(a) requires the County to review its Urban Growth Areas; and the densities 
permitted within both the incorporated and unincorporated portions of each Urban Growth Area as part of the 
review and evaluation process and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Cities within Benton County have requested the ability to submit applications to amend their 
Urban Growth Areas as part of the 2017 update process, and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission reviewed the resolution at their June 14, 2016 meeting 
and recommended that the proposed resolution be adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds that it would be in the best interest of the County to allow the Cities to submit 
applications in 2016 for review and decision in 2017 for amendments to their Urban Growth Areas, NOW 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS that Benton County will accept 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment applications, from the Cities, to amend the Cities’ Urban Growth Area 
Boundaries, provided said applications comply with the following: 
 

1. The applications shall contain all the information required in BCC 16.14.060(a), (b) and (c) 
for a complete application, and  

2. All applications must be submitted and determined to be complete by December 31, 2016. 
 
Dated this __________ day of June, 2016. 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Member 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Member 
 
 Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington. 
Attest       
Clerk of the Board MES 



DATED

PCM 1 PCM 1.1 Staff Memo w/Document A & Document B April 4, 2016
Includes: PCM 1.2 Notice of Public Hearing March 25, 2016

PCH 1 PCH 1.1 Comments from Futurewise April 8, 2016

PCM 2 PCM 2.1 Staff Memo May 27, 2016
PCM 2.2 Comment from the Dept. of Commerce May 11, 2016
PCM 2.3 CWPP Updated Proposed Changes May 27, 2106
PCM 2.4 CWPP Matrix May 27, 2016

BCCM 1 BCCM 1.1 Board of County Commissioners Agenda Sheet July 5, 2016
Includes: BCCM 1.2 Proposed Resolution July 5, 2016

BCCH 1 BCCH 1.1
BCCH 1.2
BCCH 1.3
BCCH 1.4

PCR = Planning Commission Record Exhibits
PCM = Planning Commission Memo Exhibits
PCH = Planning Commission Exhibits submitted 
during Hearing
BCCM = Board of County Commissioners Memo 
Exhibits
BCCH = Board of County Commissioners Hearing 
Exhibits submitted during Hearing

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List - (April 12, 2016 cancelled) May 10, 2016

EXHIBIT LIST FOR 
Countywide Planning Policies  

Board of County Commissioners Staff Memo List - July 12, 2016

Board of County Commissioners Hearing Exhibit List -July 12, 2016

Planning Commission Hearing Exhibit List - May 10, 2016

Planning Commission Staff Memo Exhibit List - Contineud Hearing June 14, 2016

WEH
Text Box
Countywide Planning Policies Amendments ~ M Shuttleworth



AGENDA ITEM     
MTG. DATE:  July 12, 2016 
SUBJECT  Countywide Planning 
Policies 
MEMO DATE: July 5, 2016 
Prepared By: Michael 
Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION  
NEEDED 
Execute Contract  
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion X 
Other  

Consent Agenda  
Public Meeting  X 
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
RCW 36.70a.210 requires the County and Cities within the County to jointly develop 
Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs).  The CWPP is a written policy statement used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and cities 
comprehensive plans are developed and updated.  The Benton County Planning 
Department and the Planning Departments of the Cities have worked over the past year 
on updating these policies.  The original CWPPs were adopted in February of 1993 and 
have not been updated since. 
 
On May 10, 2016 and June 14, 2016, the Benton County Planning Commission conducted 
a public hearing on the revised CWPPs.  Based on the written and oral testimony 
presented at the public hearing the Planning Commission passed a motion recommending 
approval and adoption of the proposed CWPPs to the Benton County Board of County 
Commission.   
 
In order to comply with GMA requirements, City jurisdictions within Benton County must 
agree to the adoption of the revised CWPPs.  In order to facilitate this process, Benton 
County, in consultation with the cities, has developed the following adoption/ratification 
process for the draft CWPPs: 
 
1. The Benton County Planning Commission reviews and makes a recommendation on 

proposed CWPPs. 
 
2. The Benton County Board of Commissioners (BOCC) adopts a resolution agreeing in 

principle to the proposed CWPPs, but acknowledges that changes may need to be 
made based on input from each jurisdiction. The BOCC’s resolution will contain a 
statement requesting that each jurisdiction ratify the CWPPs adopted by Benton 
County and will lay out a schedule for future approval steps. 
 

3.  CWPPs approved by the BOCC are then reviewed by each jurisdiction. 
 
4. The elected body of each jurisdiction must pass a resolution stating that the 

jurisdiction either: (a) supports the CWPPs in their entirety, (b) rejects the CWPPs in 
their entirety, or (c) supports the CWPPs with specific changes. 

BCCM 1.1 



 
5. If specific changes are identified by a jurisdiction in step four, the Benton County 

Planning Department and Planning Commission may amend the CWPPs and attempt 
to reconcile any conflicting changes. 

 
6. The Benton County BOCC adopts, by ordinance, the final CWPPs. 
 
SUMMARY 
The Planning Commission conducted a Public Hearing on Tuesday, May 10, 2016 and 
Tuesday June 14, 2016 and made a recommendation to the Board of County 
Commissioners that the proposed County Wide Planning Policies be approved.  The Board 
of County Commissioners will review and consider the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation at a public meeting and if they agree with the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation adopt the attached resolution.  The resolution will then be sent to the 
Cities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Benton City and Prosser.  Each city will  
pass a resolution which states that they either: (a) approve the CWPPs in their entirety, 
(b) reject the CWPPs in their entirety, (c) or support the CWPPs with specific changes. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Planning Commission recommends that the Board adopt the attached resolution 
agreeing in principle to the proposed CWPPs, but acknowledging that changes may need 
to be made based on input from each jurisdiction.  The BOCC’s resolution will contain a 
statement requesting that each jurisdiction ratify the CWPPs adopted by Benton County. 
 
MOTION  
The Board adopt the attached Resolution agreeing in principle to the proposed CWPPs, 
but acknowledging that changes may need to be made based on input from each 
jurisdiction.  The Board directs the Planning Department to send the resolution and draft 
policies to the Cities for their review and support of the CWPP. 



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: AMENDMENTS TO THE BENTON COUNTY WIDE 
PLANNING POLICIES. 

WHEREAS, RCW 36.0A.210 requires the County adopt a countywide planning policy in 
cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within the county and, 

WHEREAS, on September 28, 1992, the Benton County Commissioners adopted Resolution 
92-296, Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County; and, 

WHEREAS, on March 12, 2007, the Benton County Commissioners updated the Benton 
County Comprehensive Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County have not been reviewed or 
updated since September 28, 1992 and, 

WHEREAS, in 2016, the Planning Departments of the Cities and County reviewed the 
existing Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County and have suggested changes to 
such policies and, 

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission reviewed the proposed changes to the 
Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County and conducted a public hearing on May, 
10, 2016 and June 14, 2016; and,  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission, after considering the public testimony 
presented, did recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that the proposed 
amended  Countywide Planning Policies be adopted by the Board of County Commissioners, 
and,  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Planning Commission, did also recommend to the Board of 
County Commissioners that the proposed amended  Countywide Planning Policies be sent 
to the Cities within Benton County for their review and approval; and,  

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the Cities within Benton County must concur with the 
amended Countywide Planning Policies; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that it would be in the best interest of the County to adopted 
the amended Countywide Planning Policies, and,  

WHEREAS, the Board agrees in principle to the proposed amended Countywide Planning 
Policies for Benton County, but acknowledging that changes may need to be made based 
on input from each jurisdiction; NOW THEREFORE, 

BCCM 1.2 



BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners agrees in principle to the 
proposed amended Countywide Planning Policies for Benton County and directs the Benton 
County Planning Manager to send the proposed amended Countywide Planning Policies for 
Benton County to the Cities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Benton City and 
Prosser for their review and concurrence.    
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED that if the cites have changes to the proposed amended 
Countywide Planning Policies, those changes will be reviewed by the Benton County 
Planning Commission and the Planning Commission will make a recommendation to the 
Board of County Commissioners.   
 
 
Dated this 12th day of July, 2016. 
 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
  
 ___________________________ 
 Member 
 
 ___________________________ 
 Member 
 
  Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington. 
Attest       
 Clerk of the Board 



Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE: MAY 27, 2016 
 
TO:  BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
RE:  DRAFT COUNTY-WIDE PLANNING POLICIES 
  
BACKGROUND: 
RCW 36.70a.210 requires the County and Cities within the County to jointly develop County 
Wide Planning Policies (CWPP).  The CWPP is a written policy statement used solely for 
establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive plans are 
developed and adopted.  Benton County Planning and the Planning Departments of the 
Cities have worked the past year on updating the Benton Countywide Planning Policies.  
The original CWPP’s were adopted in September of 1992 and have not been updated since 
then. 
 
The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on May 10, 2016 and continued the 
hearing to allow additional time to review the proposed Countywide Planning Policies and 
the comments that were received.  The County Planning Department and the City Planners 
have looked at the comments received on this proposal and have made changes based on 
those comments as shown in PCM 2.3. 
 
Also attached is a chart (PCM 2.4) showing the difference between the original Countywide 
Planning Policies adopted in 1992 and those being proposed with this memo.  The Planning 
Department is suggesting that based on comments received, the formula in Policy #4 in 
the 1992 Countywide Policies be put back into the proposed updated polices. 
 
STAFF FINDINGS: 
 
APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: 

1. According to RCW 36.70A.210(3), the countywide planning policy shall at a 
minimum, address the following: 
(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110; 
(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision of 
urban services to such development; 
(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, 
including transportation facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 
47.06.140; 
(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies; 
(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all 
economic segments of the population and parameters for its distribution; 

PCM 2.1 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=47.06.140


County-Wide Planning Policies  Page 2 

(f) Policies for Joint County and city planning within urban growth areas; 
(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must 
include consideration of the future development of commercial and industrial 
facilities; and 
(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is the recommendation of the Planning Department that the 
Planning Commission review the attached Draft Countywide Planning Policies and 
recommend to the Board of County Commissioners that they approve the Countywide 
Planning Policies as shown in Exhibit PCM 2.3.  



STATE OF WASHINGTON 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 
1011 Plum Street SE    PO Box 42525    Olympia, Washington 98504-2525    (360) 725-4000 

www.commerce.wa.gov 

May 11, 2016 

Mr. Michael E. Shuttleworth 

Planning Manager 

Post Office Box 910 

Prosser, Washington  99350 

RE:  Proposed amendments to the Benton County County-wide Planning Policies 

Dear Mr. Shuttleworth: 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the proposed amendments to the Benton County County-

wide Planning Policies.  We received materials associated with this proposal on February 10, 2016 and 

processed the proposal with Material ID No. 22086.  We commend you on your efforts to strengthen the 

framework for planning in Benton County as you begin the periodic review of your comprehensive plan 

required by RCW 36.70A.130(5)(c).  Please consider the following comments regarding the proposed 

changes as you continue to coordinate with local stakeholders, and present recommendations to the 

appointed and elected officials in Benton County. 

We encourage and support the following: 

 The amended policies promote a collaborative approach to support the regional economy and

reflect our agency’s mission to grow and improve jobs in Washington State.  Policy No. 19

strengthens the framework for economic development in Benton County and encourages each

jurisdiction to integrate economic development approaches in their respective comprehensive

plans.

 The amended policies maintain support for the provision of affordable housing for all economic

segments of the population.  We look forward to seeing progress on the quantification and

projection of housing needs by income level and housing types, and the efforts by each

municipality to address the projected county-wide needs.

 Policy No. 10 requires consistency between the Benton County County-wide Planning Policies

and the comprehensive plans of each jurisdiction.

 The policies have been revised to provide a clear process for ratification and any future

amendments.

We have some suggestions for strengthening your County-wide Planning Policies: 

 The existing policies are an appendix to the Land Use Element of the Benton County

Comprehensive Plan.  If you intend to replace the existing policies with the proposed policies,

you should indicate the provisions you are removing and amending in underline strikethrough

format.  This will enable the public and local decision makers to better understand the proposed

changes.

PCM 2.2



Mr. Michael E. Shuttleworth 

May 11, 2016 

Page 2 

 Selecting a county-wide population projection is a fundamental decision in the planning process.

The proposed policies do not indicate the process for selecting a county-wide population

projection.  We recommend clarifying the process for selecting a county-wide population

projection and the specific factors under consideration.  Clarifying the factors you consider when

making such a decision will likely benefit elected and appointed officials, urban service

providers, and members of the public.

You should specify that the projection must fall within the range provided by the Office of 

Financial Management (OFM) and that it covers a twenty-year planning period based on the 

statutory deadline.
1
  You may also consider starting with OFM’s most likely projection for the 

county, the medium range
2
, and making adjustments based on OFM’s assumptions for Benton 

County; along with the three factors which influence demographics – births, deaths, and net 

migration.  You could also specify the role of the county and each jurisdiction in the selection of 

a population projection.  WAC 365-196-310 provides additional guidance on the population 

forecast and its relationship to sizing Urban Growth Areas (UGAs). 

 Policy No. 2 provided factors which the county will consider when allocating the projected

county-wide population growth.  We encourage you to retain the specific factors because they

provide a defensible basis for decisions on allocation of population to UGAs throughout the

county.  If you retain this language, you should also consider the ability to provide urban services

throughout the twenty-year planning period when making allocation decisions; particularly in

regards to the availability of water.  We further recommend that policies provide for the

accommodation of population within the existing UGA and through infill before consideration of

further expansion.
3

 We support the inclusion of language addressing employment projections in Policy No. 4 based

on our previous recommendations.  Considering both population and employment growth, along

with the broad range of needs and services that will accompany that growth, is necessary for

meeting the requirements of selecting and allocating county-wide growth forecasts.
4
  You should

specify the process for developing a county-wide employment forecast and how employment will

be allocated throughout the county.
5
  This should include clarifying any underlying factors used

to forecast land needed for employment.  Additionally, you should consider amending your

policies to ensure the development of a county-wide forecast for commercial and industrial land

needs informs UGA sizing decisions and ensures consistency among the plans of local

jurisdictions.
6

When developing a county-wide employment forecast, you should consider factors such as the 

ratio of forecast jobs to population, and compare that to past levels locally and in other 

comparable regions.  You could also look at economic trends and forecasts produced by other 

agencies or sources such as local port districts or the regional Metropolitan Planning Organization 

(MPO).  Ultimately, a regional approach to economic development, rather than an accumulation 

of local approaches, will encourage further cooperation and success for the municipalities and key 

stakeholders in the region. 

We have concerns about the following that you should address before you adopt the revisions to the 

Benton County County-wide Planning Policies: 

1
 RCW 36.70A.110(2) 

2
 RCW 43.62.035 

3
 WAC 365-196-310(3)(f) 

4
 WAC 365-196-310(4) 

5
 WAC 365-196-310(2)(d) 

6
 WAC 365-196-310(4) 



Mr. Michael E. Shuttleworth 

May 11, 2016 

Page 3 

 The proposed policies direct the county to adopt the OFM high series population projection,

without any clear rationale for why that projection is needed.  As noted earlier, the OFM medium

series projection is the most likely projection provided by demographers at OFM.
7
   The county

has discretion to pick a population figure within the OFM range, but deviation from the middle

series should be supported by demographic analysis and a clear underlying rationale.  The five

factors in Policy No.2 which are being proposed for removal represent data sources or

considerations that could support the county’s desire to deviate from the OFM medium series.

 Policy No. 2 would require the county to use the OFM high series for the current update, and each

subsequent update.  It would also require the allocation of population without considering the

various factors which influence regional growth such as the availability of water, changing

circumstances in the community, or the financial ability to accommodate growth with urban

levels of service.  We recommend that you remove this policy.  It is not necessary to select the

county’s population projection for the current update and could result in costly long-term land use

and infrastructure decisions.

 Policy No. 3 indicates that UGA’s in the county will be established to ensure that there is

sufficient land and service capacity, up to 120 percent of determined need, to meet projected

populations at urban densities and service standards within municipalities.  We recommend that

you revise this policy to more accurately reflect the requirements of RCW 36.70A.110(2) and

WAC 365-196-310, and to clarify that you are using a market factor of 20 percent.

Specifically, UGA sizing decisions should not be based solely on projected populations.  Sizing 

decisions should take into account the projected population and employment growth, along with 

the broad range of needs and uses that will accompany the projected urban growth.  WAC 365-

196-310 provides specific details on the requirements and recommendations for meeting the 

requirements when considering land needed for employment or public purposes. 

 Policy No. 4 has been revised to state “That Urban Growth Areas of each City shall be based

upon official and accepted population projections for minimum of 20 years.”  The Washington

State Supreme Court has interpreted the requirements of RCW 36.70A.110 and determined that

an UGA designation cannot exceed the amount of land necessary to accommodate projected

urban growth, plus a reasonable land market supply factor.
8
  Population projections cover a

twenty-year period and begin on the statutory due date identified in RCW 36.70A.130.

Jurisdictions may choose to adopt a projection that exceeds the twenty-year horizon, but UGA

sizing decisions must be based on the need to accommodate twenty years of growth.
9
  We

recommend that you remove the words “minimum of” from the first sentence of Policy No. 4.

 Policy No. 4 has been amended to exclude the uniform formula for a land capacity analysis

present in the original County-wide Planning Policies.  County-wide Planning Policies are

required to provide specific procedures for governing amendments to UGA’s, including the

review required by RCW 36.70A.130(3).
10

While the policies commit to developing a buildable lands analysis, we are concerned that the 

failure to identify the process for conducting a land capacity analysis could result in 

disagreements between municipal and county stakeholders, and obfuscates the process of 

amending UGA boundaries for members of the public and other interested parties.  The 

assumptions used in a land capacity analysis are very important and should be clearly identified. 

7
 RCW 43.62.035 

8
 Thurston County v. WWGMHB and 1000 Friends of WA No. 80115-1 

9
 RCW 36.70A.110(2) 

10
 WAC 365-196-305(4)(iii) 



Mr. Michael E. Shuttleworth 

May 11, 2016 

Page 4 

We recommend that within your County-wide Planning Policies you identify the process for 

conducting a land capacity analysis, specify the underlying assumptions, and clarify who is 

responsible for conducting the analysis in each UGA. 

We extend our continued support to Benton County in achieving the goals of the Growth Management 

Act and the vision of your community.  Thank you again for the opportunity to comment.   If you have 

any questions or would like technical assistance on any land use issues, please feel free to contact me at 

william.simpson@commerce.wa.gov or 509-280-3602. 

Sincerely, 

William Simpson 

Senior Planner 

Growth Management Services 

WS:lw 

cc: Rick Simon, Development Services Manager, City of Richland 

Gregory McCormick, AICP, Community Planning Director, City of Kennewick 

Aaron Lambert, Community Development Director, City of West Richland 

Steve Zetz, City Planner, City of Prosser 

Stephanie Haug, Clerk/Treasurer, Benton City 

Brian Malley, Executive Director, Benton Franklin Council of Governments 

Jeffrey Wilson, AICP, Senior Managing Director, Growth Management Services 

David Andersen, AICP, Eastern Region Manager, Growth Management Services 

mailto:william.simpson@commerce.wa.gov


  

Please note that this exhibit shows only the May 

10th proposed changes not the original 1992 

policy language and also includes changes 

proposed since the May 10, 2016 public hearing.  

Please see the matrix for the current and 

proposed language changes. 



Page 2 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 
FOR  

BENTON COUNTY  
 
 

Originally adopted September 28, 1992 
Resolution # 92-296 

 
 
 
 

AMENDMENTS: 
 
________, 2016 Ordinance #_______ (Amending Res.# 92-296) Effective Date: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PCM 2.3 



Page 3 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

Benton County 
Countywide Planning Policies 
 

 

Introduction & Overview: 

The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that cities and counties 
adopt comprehensive plans. The GMA further requires that counties adopt Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs), in cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within 
the county.  CWPP establish a countywide framework for developing and adopting county 
and city comprehensive plans.  The role of the CWPP is to coordinate comprehensive plans 
of jurisdictions in the same county for regional issues or issues affecting common borders 
(RCW 36.70A.100).  Under state law, RCW 36.70A.210(1) describes the relationship 
between comprehensive plans and CWPPs.  It says that: 
 

a ‘countywide planning policy’ is a written policy statement or statements used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city 
comprehensive plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this chapter. 
This framework shall ensure that city and county comprehensive plans are 
consistent as required in RCW 36.70A.100. Nothing in this section shall be 
construed to alter the land use powers of the cities. 

 

In order to achieve the objectives above, and to ensure that regional planning efforts and 
governmental actions are consistent with current legal requirements and information, 
substantial revisions to the Benton County CWPPs have been proposed. The development 
of these revisions was a collaborative process between the County and the cities.  
 

History: 
 
In 1991, one year after the Washington State Legislature enacted the Growth Management 
Act (GMA), the GMA was amended to require that Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs) 
be adopted within those counties subject to the GMA. The first Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies were adopted on September 28, 1992.   
 
Amendments and Adoption: 
 
In the years since the last CWPPs were adopted in Benton County, the GMA has evolved 
through amendments and judicial interpretations provided by the GMA and the courts. The 
revised CWPPs attempt to provide procedures for County and city/town coordination to 
address these issues. 
 
The GMA does not specifically address amendments to the CWPPs; however, it has become 
apparent that the Benton County CWPPs should be updated in order to better address 



Page 4 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

countywide planning concerns and coordination between jurisdictions in the County. A 
public hearing was held by the Benton County Planning Commission on April 12, 2016. 
 
Benton County is the lead agency for this proposal and has determined that it does not 
have a significant adverse impact on the environment and a Determination of Non 
Significance was issued on February 10, 2016. 
 
In order to comply with GMA requirements and the adoption/amendment procedures 
identified below, all jurisdictions in Benton County must agree to the adoption of the revised 
CWPPs. This process will involve the planning departments, planning commissions, and 
elected representatives of each jurisdiction. In order to facilitate this process, Benton 
County, in consultation with the cities, has developed the following adoption/ratification 
process for the draft CWPPs: 
 
1. Benton County Planning Commission recommendation on proposed CWPPs. 
 
2. The Benton County Board of Commissioners (BOCC) adopts a resolution agreeing in 

principle to the proposed CWPPs, but acknowledging that changes may need to be 
made based on input from each jurisdiction. The BOCC’s resolution will contain a 
statement requiring that each jurisdiction ratify the CWPPs adopted by Benton County 
and will lay out a schedule for future approval steps. 
 

3.  CWPPs approved by Benton County BOCC reviewed by each jurisdiction’s Planning 
Commission. 

 
4. The elected body of each jurisdiction passes a resolution which states that the 

jurisdiction either: (a) supports the CWPPs in their entirety, (b) rejects the CWPPs in 
their entirety, or (c) supports the CWPPs with specific changes. 

 
5. If specific changes are identified by a jurisdiction in step four, the Benton County 

Planning Department and Planning Commission may amend the CWPPs and attempt 
to reconcile and conflicting changes. 

 
6. The Benton County BOCC adopts, by ordinance, the final CWPPs. 
 
References: 
Benton County. (1992). Countywide Planning Policies. 
Benton County Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
 
 

BENTON COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 
 



Page 5 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

Countywide planning policy is a written policy statement or statements used solely for 
establishing a countywide framework from which County and City comprehensive plans 
are developed and adopted.  This framework will ensure that City and County 
comprehensive plans are consistent with statewide planning policies and as required by 
the Growth Management Act. 
 
POLICIES TO IMPLEMENT RCW 36.70A.110;  
 
Policy #1: The Comprehensive Plans of Benton County and each of the cities therein shall 
be prepared and adopted with the objective to facilitate economic prosperity by 
accommodating growth consistent with the following: 
 
1. Urban Growth.  Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities 
exist or can be provided in a cost efficient manner. 
 
2. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into low density development 
lacking adequate services, injurious to ground and surface water quality, destructive to the 
area's agricultural lands base and less than cost effective relative to public service costs.  
 
3. Transportation.  Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation systems that are based 
on regional priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 
 
4. Property rights.  Private property rights shall not be taken for public use without just 
compensation having been made.  The property rights of land owners shall be protected 
from arbitrary and discriminatory actions. 
 
5. Permits.  Maintain a permit review process that provides for integrated and consolidated 
review. 
 
6. Natural resource industries.  Maintain and encourage natural resource-based industries, 
including agricultural, fisheries and mineral industries.   
 
7. Open space and recreation.  Encourage the retention of open space and the 
development of recreational opportunities, conserve fish and wildlife habitat, and increase 
access to natural resource lands and water. 
 
8. Environment.  Protect the environment and enhance the region's high quality of life, 
including air and water quality and the availability of water. 
 
9. Citizen participation and coordination.  Encourage the involvement of citizens in the 
planning process and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to 
reconcile conflicts. 
 
10. Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those public facilities and services 



Page 6 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

necessary to support development shall be adequate to serve development at the time 
the development is available for occupancy and use without decreasing current service 
levels below locally established minimum standards. With the exception of water, 
sewer, and local access streets, which shall be available at the time of occupancy, the 
term "adequate" shall be defined as either available at the time of occupancy, or shown 
on the current Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), as a funded project within six years. 

 
11. Historic preservation.  Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and 
structures that have historical or archaeological significance. 
 
 
POLICIES FOR PROMOTION OF CONTIGUOUS AND ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT 
AND THE PROVISION OF URBAN SERVICES TO SUCH DEVELOPMENT;  
 
Policy #2:  The County shall allocate future projected populations through the use of 
the latest ‘high series’ population projections published by the Washington State Office of 
Financial Management (OFM). Allocation of future populations shall be based on the 
following distribution:  City of Kennewick 40% of total county population; City of Richland 
28% of total county population; Benton County 19% of total county population; City of 
West Richland 8% of total county population; City of Prosser 3% of total county 
population and City of Benton City 2% of total county population.  At a minimum, theThe 
County, in consultation with the Cities, will review the OFM population projection ranges 
(Low, Medium and High) and allocation percentages whenever OFM publishes new GMA 
population projections. 
 
Policy #3:  The locating of Urban Growth Areas within the County shall be accomplished 
through the use of accepted planning practices which provide sufficient land and service 
capacity, up to 120% of the determined need, to meet projected populations at urban 
densities and service standards within the Cities, and urban densities for those portions of 
the County located within the urban growth areas.   
 
Policy #4:  That Urban Growth Areas of each City shall be based upon official and 
accepted population projections for minimum of 20 years.  The gross undeveloped and 
underdeveloped acreage within the city limits and the Urban Growth Area shall be sufficient 
to meet all the land requirements, for the following: community and essential public 
facilities, population projection, commercial and industrial activities, employment 
projections, infill and to prevent inflation of land cost due to a limited land supply.  The 
County will work with the cities to develop a buildable lands analysis to help determine the 
amount of land available for development.  All jurisdictions comprehensive plans shall 
reflect individuality and not just a regional plan. 
 

a. The jurisdictions within the county shall use a uniform formula for identifying 
the land area necessary per capita for each community.   Each jurisdiction's 
population projection shall be multiplied by its gross per capita land area 



Page 7 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

requirement, which in the aggregate will define total land needs within the Urban 
Growth Area (UGA). 
 

The uniform formula is as follows: 
 
A + B + C + D + E + F + G + H + I + J + K = acreage/per capita (or acreage per dwelling 
unit if per capita is divided by average household size) where: 
 

A = residential land per capita; (or DU) 
B = parks and recreational area per capita; 
C = area required for public facilities (fire stations, jails, etc.,) per capita; 
D= area required for schools per capita; 
E =  commercial area per capita, or per employee; 
F = industrial/manufacturing area per capita; 
G = open space (golf courses, etc.) per capita; 
H = public service lands required for transportation network, easements and 

R.O.W.s per DU; 
I* = use 70% build-out for all residential lands; 
J = add 25% to the total of A Through I for land supply/demand balance; 
K = land credit for undevelopable lands i.e. Critical Areas including steep slopes, 

wetlands, habitat, etc. within the UGA. 
 
* The same factor should be used for all jurisdictions. 
 
Policy #5 :  That within the urban growth area, urban uses shall be concentrated in and 
adjacent to existing urban services or where they are shown on a Capital Improvement 
Plan to be available within 6 years.  
 
Policy #6:  That cities limit the extension of service district boundaries and water and 
sewer infrastructure to areas within each jurisdiction's urban growth area contained in their 
adopted Comprehensive Plan. Utility plans should attempt to reflect possible needs for 50 
years. 
 
Policy #7: Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use Plan for urban growth areas 
shall designate urban densities and indicate the general locations of greenbelt and critical 
areas.   
 
Policy #8: Wherever possible, given consideration of all other variables, such as existing 
unused service infrastructure, the placement of an urban growth line into an area of 
existing commercial agriculture shall be avoided. 
 
Policy #9:  The appropriate directions for the expansion of urban growth areas are those 
which are unincorporated lands with existing service infrastructure and lands adjacent to 
corporate limits.  



Page 8 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

 
Policy #10: All policies within each jurisdiction's Comprehensive Plans shall be modified 
to be consistent with adopted Countywide Policies.  
 
POLICIES FOR SITING PUBLIC FACILITIES OF A COUNTYWIDE OR STATEWIDE 
NATURE;  
 
Policy #11:  The County and Cities, along with public participation shall develop a 
cooperative regional process to site essential public facilities of regional and statewide 
importance.  The objective of the process shall be to ensure that such facilities are located 
so as to protect environmental quality, optimize access and usefulness to all jurisdictions, 
and equitably distribute economic benefits/burdens throughout the region or county. 
 
At the Countywide and multi-county level, the following action should be accomplished: 
 

a. Develop a uniform siting procedure which enables selection of optimum 
project sites and appropriate size and scale relative to intended benefit area. 

 
Policy #12:  Support the existing solid waste program that promotes and maintains a 
high level of public health and safety, protects the natural and human environment of 
Benton County and encourages public involvement by securing representation of the public 
in the planning process. 
 
Policy #13:  Encourage and expand coordination and communication among all 
jurisdictions and solid waste agencies/firms in Benton and Franklin Counties in order to 
develop consistent and cost-effective programs that avoid duplication of effort and gaps in 
program activities. 
 

a. Utilize the existing Benton-Franklin Solid Waste Advisory Committee.  
 
 
POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES AND 
STRATEGIES;  
 
Policy #14:  Maintain active County-City participation in the Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization in order to facilitate City, County, and State coordination in planning 
regional transportation facilities and infrastructure improvements to serve essential public 
facilities including Port District facilities and properties.  
 
POLICIES THAT CONSIDER THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING, SUCH AS 
HOUSING FOR ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION AND 
PARAMETERS FOR ITS DISTRIBUTION;  
 
Policy #15: The County and Cities within shall work together to provide housing for all 



Page 9 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

economic segments of the population.  All jurisdictions shall seek to create the conditions 
necessary for the construction of affordable housing, at the appropriate densities within 
the cities and County. The following actions should be accomplished: 
 

a. Jointly quantify and project total Countywide housing needs by income level 
and housing type (i.e. rental, ownership, senior, farm worker housing, group 
housing.) 

 
b. Establish a mechanism whereby the housing efforts/programs of each 
jurisdiction address the projected Countywide need. 

 
c. Address the affordable housing needs of very low, low, and moderate income 
households, and special needs individuals through the Comprehensive Housing 
Affordability Strategy (CHAS).  

 
d. Develop design standards for implementation within the Comprehensive Plan 
with special attention to be given to the residential needs of low to moderate income 
families.  

 
POLICIES FOR JOINT COUNTY AND CITY PLANNING WITHIN URBAN GROWTH 
AREAS;  
  
Policy #16: Urban growth areas may include territory located outside of a city if such 
territory may be characterized by urban growth or is adjacent to territory already 
characterized by urban growth.  Within urban growth areas, only urban development may 
occur.  For the purposes of locating urban growth areas, and permitting new development 
within them, "Urban" is defined as:  
 
a. Having dedicated and improved (surfaced) streets, with dimension, design and 

construction standards for new development determined by "joint city/county 
standards" and; 

 
b. For new development, road, street and intersection right-of way widths located and 

sized to accommodate projected local and regional average daily traffic (ADT) as 
determined by each jurisdictions Land Use Plan Transportation Element and, where 
relevant, projections of the Benton Franklin Council of Governments.   

 
Policy #17: To encourage logical expansions of corporate boundaries into urban growth 
areas, and to enable the most cost efficient expenditure of public funds for the provision 
of urban services into newly annexed areas.  The County and each City shall jointly develop 
and implement development, land division and building standards, and coordinated permit 
procedures for the review and permitting of new subdivisions within Urban Growth Areas. 
 

a. Joint development standards shall be adopted by all jurisdictions. Standards may 



Page 10 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

vary between the County and various incorporated jurisdictions. 
 
POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND EMPLOYMENT;  
 
Policy #18: Consistent with the protection of public health, safety, welfare, and the use 
of natural resources on a long-term sustainable basis, the ability of service capacity to 
accommodate demands, and the expressed desires of each community, Comprehensive 
Plans shall jointly and individually support the County and region's economic prosperity in 
order to promote employment and economic opportunity for all citizens. 
 
Policy #19: The County and Cities have historically partnered with each other as well as 
with other organizations to achieve economic development throughout the region.  It is 
the intention of the County and Cities to continue to actively pursue mutually beneficial 
partnerships that promote growth in all sectors of business and industry, including but not 
limited to: areas of agriculture, agri-business, industrial, commercial, public schools, 
recreation and tourism.  Key strategies will include promoting family wage jobs, increasing 
income and reducing poverty, increase business formation, expansion and retention, and 
creating jobs and financial investment to improve the economics of our communities. 
 
a. An economic development element should be integrated into the comprehensive 

plan of each jurisdiction.  The economic development element should establish goals 
and policies for each jurisdiction; actively promote employment opportunities for 
family-wage jobs; support the retention and expansion of businesses and industry 
in Benton County; support development of public schools; encourage the 
development of tourist-related businesses, including those that capitalize on area 
agricultural and other resources. 

 
b. Comprehensive Plans should foster and promote a natural environment that will 

contribute to economic growth and prosperity, and a business environment that 
offers diverse economic opportunities for businesses of all types and sizes in the 
region. 

 
c. The County and Cities should encourage public and private agency cooperation and 

participation in the comprehensive planning process.  These agencies should 
cooperatively evaluate trends and opportunities to identify strategies meeting long-
term economic needs for the County region. 

 
d. The County and Cities agree that Benton County may establish economic 

development strategies and implementation criteria for siting major industrial and 
resource based development within rural areas of the County in accordance with 
RCW 36.70A.365. 

 
e. The provision of utilities and other supporting urban governmental services to 

commercial and industrial areas should be coordinated and assigned a high priority 



Page 11 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

by utility purveyors and service providers. 
 
f. A Countywide land use inventory should be established to monitor commercial and 

industrial land supply. 
 
g. Support the development of public schools in areas where present or can be 

extended, is financially supportable at urban densities, where the extension of public 
infrastructure will protect health and safety, as per WAC 365-196-425(3)(b). 

 
AN ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT.  
 
Policy #20: Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use Plans, shall conduct fiscal analyses 
which identify and refine the most cost effective use of regional and local public services.  
This should be accomplished through actions including the following: 
 
a. City's six year CIPs for streets, water, and sewer should show infrastructure sized 

to accommodate build-out of service areas within the 20 year urban growth area, 
at a minimum. 

 
b. Construction design and placement standards for roads, intersections and streets 

(with provisions for storm water conveyance), sewer, water and lighting 
infrastructure, should be determined based upon an analysis which identifies the 
lowest public expenditure over extended periods of time. Utilities should be 
incorporated into such analyses.  

 
c. Build out scenarios should be factored into school, fire and police service demand 

projections. 
 
Policy #21: Support the development of public schools in areas where utilities are present 
or can be extended, is financially supportable at urban densities, where the extension of 
public infrastructure will protect health and safety, and the school locations are consistent 
with the analysis recommended byas per WAC 365-196-425(3)(b). 
 
AMENDING POLICIES. 
 
Policy #22: The Growth Management Act requires counties planning under the Act to 
adopt a countywide planning policy in cooperation with the cities located in the county. 
The countywide planning policy is to be a written policy statement or statements used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive 
plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this [GMA] chapter.” The purpose for the 
Benton County Wide Planning Policies is to meet this requirement of the Act. This document 
is a tool that will provide the necessary guidance to achieve consistency during the 
updating of comprehensive plans for the county and the cities/towns. 
 



Page 12 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

The County Commissioners will review the policies and cause a final proposal to be 
transmitted to the cities for ratification and ultimately back to the Board of Commissioners 
for final action.  The County Wide Planning Policies will be considered adopted when ratified 
by the cities and approved by the Board of Commissioners. Cities agree to take action 
within 45 days of the transmittal of the proposal and to submit resolutions of ratification 
to the county to document the action taken by the city. 
 
The Board of Commissioners agrees to adopt the ratified policies without modification upon 
receipt of notice that at least three cities have acted affirmatively.  The Commissioners will 
convene to consider possible modifications to these policies if ratification is not 
accomplished. 
 
Future amendments to the County Wide Planning Policies may be considered when 
proposed by the County or a City.   
 
LOCATE URBAN GROWTH AREAS 
 
Population Projections 
 
1. Review and comment on preliminary OFM population projections due in Dec. 91. 
2. Legislative bodies of each jurisdiction to review OFM population projections. 
3.  Update the existing land use inventory to reflect current conditions (use county GIS when 

available in 3-92, to provide county-wide land use inventory). 
 
4. GMC derives formula for allocation of OFM population projections -sends formula to 

individual jurisdictions via the BCPPC. 
 

-BCPPC sends to indiv.jurisdictions legislative bodies for review 
-BOCC takes action on pop.allocation 

 
Land Use Element Map 
 
1. Identify accepted uniform planning criteria used for locating Urban Growth Areas: 
 

-natural physical barriers and roads 
-existing service capacity (supply/deficit) 
-projected service capacity (new supply) 
-planning objectives (GMA req.) and; 

 
2. Uniform criteria for insuring adequate land supply within Urban Growth Areas:  
 

-enable growth without creating excess demand for services, congestion etc., 
-discourage sprawl without grossly inflating land costs; 

 
3. Identify uniform, established candidates for the supply of developable land within the Urban 

Growth areas: 
 



Page 13 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

-vacant, underutilized, partially utilized 
 
4. Identify uniform, established candidates for lands to be excluded from development, such 

as lands: 
 

-needed for R.O.W. 
-hazardous, critical, open space etc., 
-too costly to provide services 
-to be zoned agricultural with Transfers of Density Rights (TDRs) 

 
5. Map existing public, private and semi-public service district boundaries and; 
 
6. Inventory all existing capital facilities for public, private and semi-public service providers, 

and transportation network, identify existing capacity: 
 

Water sewer 
fire  police 
schools  ports 
parks  libraries 
hospital communications 

 
7. Confer with BFRC to establish current level transportation data re: inventory 
 

-each jurisdiction to build on BFRC transportation data; define local street conditions, 
capacities, programmed and needed improvements. 

 
8. Inventory housing stock - identify existing supply/demand ratio by housing. 
 
9. Using Population Projections per jurisdiction, accomplish the following: 
 

-project new housing mix/type and occupancy rates; 
-identify projected gross new demands for services identified in item #5, above; 
- equate existing services infrastructure capabilities and C.I. P’s with gross new demands; 
-identify new C.I.s, (supplies of water, sewer, school, rec. fac. etc.,) necessary to meet 
gross new   demands; 
-survey options to meet gross new service with cost effectiveness on essential services (i.e.,    
water and sewer, road maintenance as a priority) and; type, identify present need (use 
Census); 
-with the cost effectiveness of meeting other services demands as a consideration. 

 
10. Contact each utility purveyor.  Solicit participation on LUE advisory committees on relevant 

issues.   
 
11. Inventory facilities/capacities of existing utility services, identify current plans for new 

facilities and capacities including but not limited to electric, telecommunications, natural 
gas. Rely on BFRC data. 

 
12. lands such as: utility and transportation corridors, landfills, sewage treatment facilities, 



Page 14 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 0405/0126/16 

 

recreation, schools etc., 
 

-integrate existing information from comp. plans, needs assessments, pop. projections, into 
one joint list of needed public lands; 
-county must work with state and cities to identify areas of shared need and shall prepare 
a prioritized list with estimated acquisition dates; 
-capital acquisition budget for each jurisdiction with jointly agreed upon priorities and 
schedule. * 

 
13. Identify Open Space Corridors within and between Urban Growth Areas, including: 

-lands used or designated as recreational, wildlife habitat, trails, and "critical areas" as 
defined in sec .3 
-optional: develop a mechanism to purchase fee simple or lesser interests in these open 
spaces using funds authorized by RCW 84.34.230 * 
-develop an acquisitions list for those lands with critical resources imposing extreme 
constraints on development * 

 
14. Draft a procedure, including siting criteria, for locating/approving essential public facilities. 
 

-review list of essential facilities provided by OFM with the objective to identify those 
suitable for location in urban vs rural areas. 

 
15. Consistent with the revised Policies in the Comp. Plan Texts, integrate  population 

projections, land use and capital facilities inventory data, lands necessary for new capital 
facilities, and total land requirements to support population projections densities, open 
space and critical/natural areas (set asides) into new 20 year Urban Growth Areas. 

 
16. Review of Urban Growth Areas by each jurisdiction's legislative body. 
 
17. BOCC adopts Urban Growth Areas, then; 
 
 PREPARE DRAFT LAND USE MAP 
 
Map Designations 
 
1. Prepare Draft Land Use Map with general distribution, location and extent of land uses, 

and:  
 

-Urban Growth Areas and Rural Lands; 
-Open Space; 
-Public Facilities and lands; 
-population densities; 
-building intensities; 
-est. future pop. densities (multiply av. bldg. densities X pers/household re: page 57 of 
1985 Comp. Plan.(update with 1990 census) 

 
 
* not necessary for locating urban growth boundaries 



BENTON COUNTY-WIDE PLANNING POLICIES 

Proposed changes for Planning Commission, June 14, 2016 

Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
Introduction  County-wide planning policy is a written policy 

statement or statements used solely for 
establishing a county-wide framework from 
which county and city comprehensive plans are 
developed and adopted.  This framework will 
insure that city and county comprehensive plans 
are consistent as required by the Growth 
Management Act. 

County-wide planning policy is a written policy 
statement or statements used solely for 
establishing a county-wide framework from 
which county and city comprehensive plans are 
developed and adopted.  This framework will 
insure that city and county comprehensive plans 
are consistent with statewide planning policies 
and as required by the Growth Management Act. 

Policy 1:  The Comprehensive Plans of Benton County and 
each of the cities therein shall be prepared and 
adopted with the objective to facilitate economic 
prosperity by accommodating growth consistent 
with the following: 
 

No changes. 

Policy 1.1:  Urban Growth.  Encourage development in 
urban areas where adequate public facilities 
exist or can be provided in a cost efficient 
manner. 

No changes. 

Policy 1.2:  Avoid sprawl.  Avoid the inappropriate 
conversion of undeveloped land into low density 
development, lacking adequate services, 
injurious to ground and surface water quality, 
destructive to the area's agricultural lands base, 
and less than cost effective relative to public 
service costs. 

  Avoid sprawl. Avoid Reduce the inappropriate 
conversion of undeveloped land into low density 
development, lacking adequate services, 
injurious to ground and surface water quality, 
destructive to the area's agricultural lands base, 
and less than cost effective relative to public 
service costs. 

Policy 1.3:  Transportation.  Encourage efficient multi-
modal transportation systems that are based on 
regional priorities and coordinated with county 
and city comprehensive plans. 

No Changes. 

PCM 2.4 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
Policy 1.4:  Property rights.  Private property rights shall not 

be taken for public use without just 
compensation having been made.  The property 
rights of land owners shall be protected from 
arbitrary and discriminatory actions. 

 

Policy 1.5:  Permits.  Applications for permits shall be 
processed in a timely and fair manner to ensure 
predictability. 

Permits. Maintain a permit review process that 
provides for the integrated and consolidated 

review.. Applications for permits shall be 
processed in a timely and fair manner to ensure 
predictability. 

Policy 1.6:  Natural resource industries.  Maintain and 
enhance natural resource-based industries, 
including productive agricultural, fisheries and 
mineral industries.  Encourage the conservation 
of productive agricultural lands and discourage 
incompatible uses. 

Natural resource industries.  Maintain and 
enhance encourage natural resource-based 
industries, including productive agricultural, 
fisheries and mineral industries.  Encourage the 
conservation of productive agricultural lands and 
discourage incompatible uses. 

Policy 1.7:  Open space and recreation.  Encourage the 
retention of open space and the development of 
recreational opportunities, conserve fish and 
wildlife habitat, increase access to natural 
resource lands and water, and develop parks. 

Open space and recreation.  Encourage the 
retention of open space and the development of 
recreational opportunities, conserve fish and 
wildlife habitat, increase access to natural 
resource lands and water, and develop parks. 

Policy 1.8:  Environment.  Protect the environment and 
enhance the region's high quality of life, 
including air and water quality, and the 
availability of water. 

No Changes. 

Policy 1.9:  Citizen participation and coordination.  
Encourage the involvement of citizens in the 
planning process and ensure coordination 
between communities and jurisdictions to 
reconcile conflicts. 

No Changes. 

Policy 1.10:  Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those 
public facilities and services necessary to 
support development shall be adequate to serve 

Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those 
public facilities and services necessary to 
support development shall be adequate to serve 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
development at the time the development is 
available for occupancy and use without 
decreasing current service levels below locally 
established minimum standards. With the 
exception of water, sewer, streets and power 
services, which shall be available at the time of 
occupancy, the term "adequate" shall be 
defined as either available at the time of 
occupancy, or shown on the current C.I.P. as a 
funded project within six years. 

development at the time the development is 
available for occupancy and use without 
decreasing current service levels below locally 
established minimum standards. With the 
exception of water, sewer and local access 
streets, and power services which shall be 
available at the time of occupancy, the term 
"adequate" shall be defined as either available at 
the time of occupancy, or shown on the current 
C.I.P. as a funded project within six years. 

Policy 1.11:  Historic preservation.  Identify and encourage 
the preservation of lands, sites, and structures 
that have historical or archaeological 
significance. 

No Changes 

Policy 1.12  New Policy Economic development. Encourage economic 
development throughout the County that is 
consistent with adopted comprehensive plans, 
promote economic opportunity for all citizens of 
this County, especially for unemployed and for 
disadvantaged persons, promote the retention 
and expansion of existing businesses and 
recruitment of new businesses, recognize 
regional differences impacting economic 
development opportunities, and encourage 
growth in areas experiencing insufficient 
economic growth, all within the capacities of the 
County's natural resources, public services, and 
public facilities. 
 

Policy 2:  County-wide projected population shall be 
allocated among jurisdictions through the use 
of any or all of the following factors applied to 
each jurisdiction: 
 

The County shall allocate future projected 
populations through the use of the latest 
population projections published by the 
Washington State Office of Financial 
Management (OFM). Allocation of future 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
a. Documented historical growth rates 
over the last decade, the last 2 decades, and 
the last 2 years. 
 
b. Current growth rates. 
 
c. Developing or current planning 
programs which a jurisdiction has, and which 
identify quantitative increases in business and 
industry development, and housing 
construction activity. 
 
d. School enrollments over 2 decades, and 
within the last 2 years. 
 
e. Pending development proposals 
(applications) which would add either jobs or 
new housing units. 

 
f. Intangibles. 
 

populations shall be based on the following 
distribution:  City of Kennewick 40% of total 
county population; City of Richland 28% of total 
county population; Benton County 19% of total 
county population; City of West Richland 8% of 
total county population; City of Prosser 3% of 
total county population and City of Benton City 
2% of total county population.  The County, in 
consultation with the Cities, will review the OFM 
population projection ranges (Low, Medium and 
High) and allocation percentages whenever OFM 
publishes new GMA population projections. 
 
County-wide projected population shall be 
allocated among jurisdictions through the use of 
any or all of the following factors applied to each 
jurisdiction: 
 
a. Documented historical growth rates over 
the last decade, the last 2 decades, and the last 
2 5 or 10 years. 
 
b. Current growth rates. 
 
c. Developing or current planning programs 
which a jurisdiction has, and which identify 
quantitative increases in business and industry 
development, and housing construction activity. 
 
d. School enrollments over 2 decades, and 
within the last 2 5 or 10 years. 
 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
e. Pending development proposals 
(applications) which would add either jobs or 
new housing units. 

 
 

Policy 3:  The locating of urban growth areas within the 
county shall be accomplished through the use of 
accepted planning practices which provide 
sufficient land and service capacity to meet 
projected populations at urban densities and 
service standards within the cities, and urban 
densities for those portions of the county 
located within the urban growth areas.  Such 
planning practices include those on  

The locating of urban growth areas within the 
county shall be accomplished through the use of 
accepted planning practices which provide 
sufficient land and service capacity, up to 
determined need, to meet projected populations 
at urban densities and service standards within 
the cities, and urban densities for those portions 
of the county located within the urban growth 
areas.   

Policy 4:  That Urban Growth Areas of each city shall be 
based upon official and accepted population 
projections for minimum 20 year periods.  The 
gross undeveloped and underdeveloped 
acreage within the city limits and the Urban 
Growth Area shall be sufficient to meet all the 
land requirements, including community and 
essential public facilities, of the population 
projection, including the need to prevent 
inflation of land cost due to a too limited land 
supply.     
 
a.  The jurisdictions within the county shall use 
a uniform formula for identifying the land area 
necessary per capita for each community.   Each 
jurisdiction's population projection shall be 
multiplied by its gross per capita land area 
requirement, which in the aggregate will define 
total land needs within the Urban Growth Area 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
(UGA). 
 

Policy 4 – 
Uniform 
Formula 

 The uniform formula is as follows: 
 
A + B + C + D + E + F + G + H + I + J + K = 
acreage/per capita (or acreage per dwelling unit 
if per capita is divided by average household 
size) where: 
 

A = residential land per capita; (or 
DU) 

B = parks and recreational area per 
capita; 

C = area required for public facilities 
(fire stations, jails, etc.,) per 
capita; 

D= area required for schools per 
capita; 

E =  commercial area per capita, or 
per employee; 

F = industrial/manufacturing area 
per capita; 

G = open space (golf courses, etc.) 
per capita; 

H = public service lands required for 
transportation network, 
easements and R.O.W.s per DU; 

I* = use 70% build-out for all 
residential lands; 

J = add 25% to the total of A 
Through I for land 
supply/demand balance; 

K = land credit for undevelopable 
lands i.e. Critical Areas including 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
steep slopes, wetlands, habitat, 
etc. within the UGA. 

 
* The same factor should be used for all 
jurisdictions. 

Policy 5:  That within the urban growth area urban uses 
shall be concentrated in and adjacent to existing 
urban services or where they are shown on a 
Capital Improvement Plan to be available within 
6 years. 

 

Policy 6:  That cities limit the extension of service district 
boundaries and water and sewer infrastructure 
to areas within each jurisdiction's urban growth 
area of its adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

That cities limit the extension of service district 
boundaries and water and sewer infrastructure 
to areas within each jurisdiction's urban growth 
area of its adopted Comprehensive Plan. Utility 
plans should attempt to reflect possible needs 
for 50 years. 

Policy 7:  Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use 
Plan for urban growth areas shall designate 
urban densities and indicate the general 
locations of greenbelt and open space areas.  To 
the extent made practical by the natural 
features of the land form, open spaces and 
greenbelt shall be contiguous across 
jurisdictional lines, so as to enable their use as 
linked and contiguous recreational resources 
including parks, and bike and riding paths. 

Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use 
Plan for urban growth areas shall designate 
urban densities and indicate the general 
locations of greenbelt and critical areas.  To the 
extent made practical by the natural features of 
the land form, open spaces and greenbelt shall 
be contiguous across jurisdictional lines, so as to 
enable their use as linked and contiguous 
recreational resources including parks, and bike 
and riding paths  

Policy 8:  Wherever possible, given consideration of all 
other variables, such as existing unused service 
infrastructure, the placement of an urban 
growth line into an area of existing or potential 
intensive commercial agriculture shall be 
avoided, unless an adequate open space buffer 
within the urban growth area is provided. 

Wherever possible, given consideration of all 
other variables, such as existing unused service 
infrastructure, the placement of an urban 
growth line into an area of existing potential 
intensive commercial agriculture shall be 
avoided, unless an adequate open space buffer 
within the urban growth area is provided. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
Policy 9:  The appropriate directions for the expansion of 

urban growth areas are those which are 
unincorporated lands substantially engrossed by 
urban development; areas with existing service 
infrastructure; lands adjacent to corporate limits 
and confined on the other side by major 
features such as highways; and existing rural 
residential development characterized by 
compromised agricultural productivity; average 
lot sizes less than 10 acres; and existing streets 
and utility services. 

The appropriate directions for the expansion of 
urban growth areas are those which are 
unincorporated lands substantially engrossed by 
urban development with existing service 
infrastructure and lands adjacent to corporate 
limits.  corporate limits and confined on the 
other side by major features such as highways; 
and existing rural residential development 
characterized by compromised agricultural 
productivity; average lot sizes less than 10 
acres; and existing streets and utility services 

Policy 10:  All policies within each jurisdiction's 
Comprehensive Plans, required by ESHB 2929, 
shall be modified to be consistent with and 
implement adopted County-wide Policies.  
 

All policies within each jurisdiction's 
Comprehensive Plans required by ESHB 2929 
shall be modified to be consistent with adopted 
County-wide Policies.  
 

Policy 11:  The County and cities within, along with public 
participation shall develop a cooperative 
regional process to site essential public facilities 
of regional and statewide importance.  The 
objective of the process shall be to ensure that 
such facilities are located so as to protect 
environmental quality, optimize access and 
usefulness to all jurisdictions, and equitably 
distribute economic benefits/burdens through 
out the region or county. 
 
At the County-wide and multi-county level, the 
following actions should be accomplished: 
 
a. Develop a uniform siting procedure 
which enables selection of optimum project sites 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
and appropriate size and scale relative to 
intended benefit area. 

Policy 12  Support the existing solid waste program that 
promotes and maintains a high level of public 
health and safety, protects the natural and 
human environment of Benton County and 
encourages public involvement by securing 
representation of the public in the planning 
process. 

No Changes. 

Policy 13:  Encourage and expand coordination and 
communication among all jurisdictions and solid 
waste agencies/firms in Benton and Franklin 
Counties in order to develop consistent and 
cost-effective programs that avoid duplication of 
effort and gaps in program activities. 
 
a. Utilize the existing Benton-Franklin Solid 
Waste Advisory Committee. 

No Changes. 

Policy 14:  Maintain active county-city participation in the 
Regional Transportation Policy Organization in 
order to facilitate city, county, and state 
coordination in planning regional transportation 
facilities and infrastructure improvements to 
serve essential public facilities including Port 
District facilities and properties. 

Maintain active county-city participation in the 
Regional Transportation Policy Planning 
Organization in order to facilitate city, county, 
and state coordination in planning regional 
transportation facilities and infrastructure 
improvements to serve essential public facilities 
including Port District facilities and properties. 

:Policy 15  New housing within urban growth areas shall be 
compatible in character and standards with that 
of the adjacent city area. 

New housing within urban growth areas shall be 
compatible in character and standards with that 
of the adjacent city area. 

:Policy 16  That site constructed, modular and 
manufactured housing shall be recognized as 
needed and functional housing types. 

That site constructed, modular and 
manufactured housing shall be recognized as 
needed and functional housing types. 

Policy 15:  The County and cities within shall work together 
to provide housing for all economic segments of 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
the population.  All jurisdictions shall seek to 
create the conditions necessary for the 
construction of affordable housing, at the 
appropriate densities within the cities and 
County. The following actions should be 
accomplished: 
 

a.  Jointly quantify and project total 
county-wide housing needs by income level and 
housing  type (i.e. rental, ownership, 
senior, farm worker housing, group housing.) 
 
b.  Establish a mechanism whereby the housing 
efforts/programs of each jurisdiction address 
the projected county-wide need. 
 
c.  Address the affordable housing needs of very 
low, low and moderate income households, and 
special needs individuals through the 
Comprehensive Housing affordability Strategy 
(CHAS). 

Policy 16:  Urban growth areas may include territory 
located outside of a city only if such territory 
already is characterized by urban growth or is 
adjacent to territory already characterized by 
urban growth.  Within urban growth areas, only 
urban development may occur.  For the 
purposes of locating urban growth areas, and 
permitting new development within them, 
"Urban" is defined as:  
 
a. having dedicated and improved 
(surfaced) streets, with dimension, design and 
construction standards for new development 

Urban growth areas may include territory located 
outside of a city only if ,such territory may be 
already is characterized by urban growth or is 
adjacent to territory already characterized by 
urban growth.  Within urban growth areas, only 
urban development may occur.  For the purposes 
of locating urban growth areas, and permitting 
new development within them, "Urban" is defined 
as:  
 
a. having dedicated and improved 
(surfaced) streets, with dimension, design and 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
determined by "joint city/county standards" 
and; 
 
b. For new development, road, street and 
intersection right-of way widths located and 
sized to accommodate projected local and 
regional average daily traffic (ADT) as 
determined by the Land Use Plans 
Transportation Elements and, where relevant, 
projections of the BFRC Regional System and; 
 
c. having either public sewer or water 
service, with additional service requirements 
(e.g. standards of Policy #19), for new 
development consistent with "joint/city county 
standards." 

construction standards for new development 
determined by "joint city/county standards" and; 
 
b. For new development, road, street and 
intersection right-of way widths located and sized 
to accommodate projected local and regional 
average daily traffic (ADT) as determined by the 
Land Use Plans Transportation Elements and, 
where relevant, projections of the BFRC Regional 
System Benton Franklin Council of Governments 
and; 
 
c. having either public sewer or water 
service, with additional service requirements (e.g. 
standards of Policy #19), for new development 
consistent with "joint/city county standards." 
 

Policy 17:  To encourage logical expansions of corporate 
boundaries into urban growth areas, and to 
enable the most cost efficient expenditure of 
public funds for the provision of urban services 
into newly annexed areas; the County and each 
city shall jointly develop and implement 
development, land division and building 
standards, and coordinated permit procedures 
for the review and permitting of new 
subdivisions within Urban Growth Areas. 
 
a. The joint standards developed, but never 
adopted,  by the County and the cities of 
Richland and Kennewick in 1985 shall be used 
as the basis for the new standards. 
 

To encourage logical expansions of corporate 
boundaries into urban growth areas, and to 
enable the most cost efficient expenditure of 
public funds for the provision of urban services 
into newly annexed areas; the County and each 
city shall jointly develop and implement 
development, land division and building 
standards, and coordinated permit procedures for 
the review and permitting of new subdivisions 
within Urban Growth Areas. 
 
a. The joint standards developed shall be adopted 
by all jurisdictions. Standards may vary between 
the County and various incorporated 
jurisdictions.,  
 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
b. Standards for the following shall be 
developed and adopted: 

1. Street Locations, both major and 
secondary; 
2. Street R.O.W. widths; 
3. Street widths; 
4. Curbs and gutters; 
5. Sidewalks for secondary streets 
only; 

6. Road construction standards ; 
7. Cul De Sacs, location and 
dimensions; 
8. Storm Drainage facilities, 
quantity, quality and discharge 
locations; 
9. Street lights, conduit, fixtures, 
locations; 
10. Sewer, septic regulations, 
private sewer, dry sewer facilities; 

11. Water, pipe sizes, locations, 
construction standards; 
12. Fire protection, station locations, 
fire flows, uniform codes; 
13. All building requirements; 
14. Subdivision and platting 
requirements (in accord with chapter 
RCW 58.17) including parks and open 
space; 
15. Mobile home and manufactured 
home regulations; 
16. Zoning Ordinances: permitted 
uses in Urban Growth Areas, setbacks; 
building heights, lot coverage etc. 

 

a. The joint standards developed, but never 
adopted,  by the County and the cities of Richland 
and Kennewick in 1985 shall be used as the basis 
for the new standards. 
 
b. Standards for the following shall be developed 
and adopted: 

1. Street Locations, both major and 
secondary; 
2. Street R.O.W. widths; 
3. Street widths; 
4. Curbs and gutters; 
5. Sidewalks for secondary streets 
only; 

6. Road construction standards ; 
7. Cul De Sacs, location and 
dimensions; 
8. Storm Drainage facilities, quantity, 
quality and discharge locations; 
9. Street lights, conduit, fixtures, 
locations; 
10. Sewer, septic regulations, private 
sewer, dry sewer facilities; 

11. Water, pipe sizes, locations, 
construction standards; 
12. Fire protection, station locations, 
fire flows, uniform codes; 
13. All building requirements; 
14. Subdivision and platting 
requirements (in accord with chapter RCW 
58.17) including parks and open space; 
15. Mobile home and manufactured 
home regulations; 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
c. As either an alternative, or adjunct to a) 
above, a city and the County may choose to 
enter into an interlocal agreement whereby the 
application of development standards, and the 
authorities and functions of permit review, 
inspection and enforcement are assigned. 

16. Zoning Ordinances: permitted 
uses in Urban Growth Areas, setbacks; 
building heights, lot coverage etc. 

 
c. As either an alternative, or adjunct to a) above, 
a city and the County may choose to enter into 
an interlocal agreement whereby the application 
of development standards, and the authorities 
and functions of permit review, inspection and 
enforcement are assigned. 

 
Policy 18:  Consistent with the protection of public health, 

safety, and welfare, and the use of natural 
resources on a long-term sustainable basis, the 
ability of service capacity to accommodate 
demands, and the expressed desires of each 
community, Comprehensive Plans shall jointly 
and individually support the county and region's 
economic prosperity in order to promote 
employment and economic opportunity for all 
citizens. 

No Changes. 

Policy 19   The County and Cities have historically partnered 
with each other as well as with other 
organizations to achieve economic development 
throughout the region.  It is the intention of the 
County and Cities to continue to actively pursue 
mutually beneficial partnerships that promote 
growth in all sectors of business and industry, 
including but not limited to: areas of agriculture, 
agri-business, industrial, commercial, public 
schools, recreation and tourism.  Key strategies 
will include promoting family wage jobs, 
increasing income and reducing poverty, increase 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
business formation, expansion and retention, and 
creating jobs and financial investment to improve 
the economics of our communities. 
 
a. An economic development element 
should be integrated into the comprehensive plan 
of each jurisdiction.  The economic development 
element should establish goals and policies for 
each jurisdiction; actively promote employment 
opportunities for family-wage jobs; support the 
retention and expansion of businesses and 
industry in Benton County; support development 
of public schools; encourage the development of 
tourist-related businesses, including those that 
capitalize on area agricultural and other 
resources. 
 
b. Comprehensive Plans should foster and 
promote a natural environment that will 
contribute to economic growth and prosperity, 
and a business environment that offers diverse 
economic opportunities for businesses of all types 
and sizes in the region. 
 
c. The County and Cities should encourage 
public and private agency cooperation and 
participation in the comprehensive planning 
process.  These agencies should cooperatively 
evaluate trends and opportunities to identify 
strategies meeting long-term economic needs for 
the County region. 
 
d.     The County and Cities agree that Benton 
County may establish economic development 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
strategies and implementation criteria for siting 
major industrial and resource based development 
within rural areas of the County in accordance 
with RCW 36.70A.365. 
 
e.    The provision of utilities and other supporting 
urban governmental services to commercial and 
industrial areas should be coordinated and 
assigned a high priority by utility purveyors and 
service providers. 
 
f. A Countywide land use inventory should 
be established to monitor commercial and 
industrial land supply. 
 
g. Support the development of public 
schools in areas where present or can be 
extended, is financially supportable at urban 
densities, where the extension of public 
infrastructure will protect health and safety, as 
per WAC 365-195-425(3)(b). 

Policy 20:  Where Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use 
Plans, involve land areas within, or tributary to 
land within the urban growth areas, the County 
and Cities, individually and jointly, shall 
routinely conduct fiscal analyses which identify 
and refine the most cost effective provision of 
regional and local public services and 
infrastructure over the long term.  This should 
be accomplished through actions including the 
following: 
 
a. City's six year C.I.P.s for streets, water, 
and sewer should show infrastructure sized to 

Where Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use 
Plans involve land areas within, or tributary to 
land within the urban growth areas, the County 
and Cities, individually and jointly shall routinely 
conduct fiscal analyses which identify and refine 
the most cost effective provision use of regional 
and local public services and infrastructure over 
the long term.  This should be accomplished 
through actions including the following: 
 
a. City's six year C.I.P.s for streets, water, 
and sewer should show infrastructure sized to 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
accommodate build-out of service areas within 
the 20 year urban growth area, at a minimum. 
 
b. Construction design and placement 
standards for roads, intersections and streets 
(with provisions for storm water conveyance), 
and sewer, water and lighting infrastructure, 
should be determined based upon an analysis 
which identifies the lowest public expenditure 
over extended periods of time. Utilities should 
be incorporated into such analyses.  
 
c. Build out scenarios should be factored 
into school, fire and police service demand 
projections. 
 

accommodate build-out of service areas within 
the 20 year urban growth area, at a minimum. 
 
b. Construction design and placement 
standards for roads, intersections and streets 
(with provisions for storm water conveyance), 
and sewer, water and lighting infrastructure, 
should be determined based upon an analysis 
which identifies the lowest public expenditure 
over extended periods of time. Utilities should be 
incorporated into such analyses.  
 
c. Build out scenarios should be factored into 
school, fire and police service demand 
projections. 
 

Policy 21   Support the development of public schools in 
areas where utilities are present or can be 
extended, is financially supportable at urban 
densities, where the extension of public 
infrastructure will protect health and safety, and 
the school locations are consistent with the 
analysis recommended by  WAC 365-196-
425(3)(b) 

Policy 22.   The Growth Management Act requires counties 
planning under the Act to adopt a countywide 
planning policy in cooperation with the cities 
located in the county. The countywide planning 
policy is to be a written policy statement or 
statements used solely for establishing a 
countywide framework from which county and 
city comprehensive plans are developed and 
adopted pursuant to this [GMA] chapter.” The 
purpose for the Benton County Wide Planning 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
Policies is to meet this requirement of the Act. 
This document is a tool that will provide the 
necessary guidance to achieve consistency 
during the updating of comprehensive plans for 
the county and the cities/towns. 
 
The County Commissioners will review the 
policies and cause a final proposal to be 
transmitted to the cities for ratification and 
ultimately back to the Board of Commissioners 
for final action.  The County Wide Planning 
Policies will be considered adopted when ratified 
by the cities and approved by the Board of 
Commissioners. Cities agree to take action 
within 45 days of the transmittal of the proposal 
and to submit resolutions of ratification to the 
county to document the action taken by the city. 

 
The Board of Commissioners agrees to adopt 
the ratified policies without modification upon 
receipt of notice that at least three cities have 
acted affirmatively.  The Commissioners will 
convene to consider possible modifications to 
these policies if ratification is not accomplished. 
 
Future amendments to the County Wide Planning 
Policies may be considered when proposed by 
the County or a City.   
 

 
AttachmentA 
 

 LOCATE URBAN GROWTH AREAS 
 

 

1.  Review and comment on preliminary OFM 
population projections due in Dec. 91. 

Review and comment on preliminary OFM 
population projections due in Dec. 91. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
2.  Legislative bodies of each jurisdiction to review 

OFM population projections. 
 

No changes 
 

3.  Update the existing land use inventory to reflect 
current conditions (use county GIS when 
available in 3-92, to provide county-wide land 
use inventory) 

Update the existing land use inventory to reflect 
current conditions (use county GIS when 
available in 3-92, to provide county-wide land use 
inventory) 

4.  GMC derives formula for allocation of OFM 
population projections -sends formula to 
individual jurisdictions via the BCPPC. 
-BCPPC sends to indiv. jurisdictions legislative 
bodies for review 
-BOCC takes action on pop. allocation 

No Changes. 

  Land Use Element Map No Changes. 
1.  Identify accepted uniform planning criteria used 

for locating  Urban Growth Areas: 
-natural physical barriers and roads 
-existing service capacity (supply/deficit) 
-projected service capacity (new supply) 

         -planning objectives (GMA req.) and; 

No Changes. 

2.  Uniform criteria for insuring adequate land 
supply within Urban Growth Areas:  

-enable growth without creating excess 
demand for services, congestion etc., 
-discourage sprawl without grossly 
inflating land costs; 

No Changes. 

3.  Identify uniform, established candidates for the 
supply of developable land within the Urban 
Growth areas: 

-vacant, under utilized, partially utilized 
 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
4.  Identify uniform, established candidates for 

lands to be excluded from development, such as 
lands: 

-needed for R.O.W. 
-hazardous, critical, open space etc., 
-too costly to provide services 
-to be zoned agricultural with Transfers 
of Density Rights (TDRs) 

 

No Changes. 

5.  Map existing public, private and semi-public 
service district boundaries and; 
 
 

No Changes. 

6.  Inventory all existing capital facilities for public, 
private and semi-public service providers, and 
transportation network, identify existing 
capacity: 

Water    sewer   
Fire       police 
Schools  ports 
Parks     libraries 
Hospital    communications 

 

No Changes. 

7.  Confer with BFRC to establish current level 
transportation data re: inventory 

-each jurisdiction to build on BFRC 
transportation data; define local street 
conditions, capacities, programmed and 
needed improvements. 

 

No Changes. 

8.  Inventory housing stock - identify existing 
supply/demand ratio by housing. 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
9.  Using Population Projections per jurisdiction, 

accomplish the following: 
 

-project new housing mix/type and 
occupancy rates; 
-identify projected gross new demands 
for services identified in item #5, above; 
- equate existing services infrastructure 
capabilities  and C.I. P.s with gross new 
demands; 
-identify new C.I.s, (supplies of water, 
sewer, school, rec. fac. etc.,)necessary 
to meet gross new   demands; 
-survey options to meet gross new 
service with cost effectiveness on 
essential services (i.e.,    water and 
sewer, road maintenance as a priority) 
and; type, identify present need (use 
Census); 
-with the cost effectiveness of meeting 
other services demands as a 
consideration. 

Using Population Projections per jurisdiction, 
accomplish the following: 
 

-project new housing mix/type and 
occupancy rates; 
-identify projected gross new demands for 
services identified in item #5, above; 
- equate existing services infrastructure 
capabilities  and C.I. P.s with gross new 
demands; 
-identify new C.I.s, (supplies of water, 
sewer, school, rec. fac. etc.,)necessary to 
meet gross new   demands; 
-survey options to meet gross new service 
with cost effectiveness on essential 
services (i.e.,    water and sewer, road 
maintenance as a priority) and; type, 
identify present need (use Census); 

-with the cost effectiveness of meeting other 
services demands as a consideration. 

10.  Contact each utility purveyor.  Solicit 
participation on LUE advisory committees on 
relevant issues. 

No Changes. 

11.  Inventory facilities/capacities of existing utility 
services, identify current plans for new facilities 
and capacities including but not limited to 
electric, telecommunications, natural gas. Rely 
on BFRC data. 

No Changes. 

12. SD lands such as: utility and transportation 
corridors, land fills, sewage treatment facilities, 
recreation, schools etc., 

No Changes. 
 
 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
 

-integrate existing information from 
comp. plans, needs assessments, pop. 
projections, into one joint list of needed 
public lands; 
-county must work with state and cities 
to identify areas of shared need and 
shall prepare a prioritized list with 
estimated acquisition dates; 
-capital acquisition budget for each 
jurisdiction with jointly agreed upon 
priorities and schedule. * 

 

 
. 

13.  Identify Open Space Corridors within and 
between Urban Growth Areas, including: 

-lands used or designated as 
recreational, wildlife habitat, trails, and 
"critical areas" as defined in sec .3 
-optional: develop a mechanism to 
purchase fee simple or lesser interests in 
these open spaces using funds 
authorized by RCW 84.34.230 * 
-develop an acquisitions list for those 
lands with critical resources imposing 
extreme constraints on development * 

 

No Changes. 

14.  Draft a procedure, including siting criteria, for 
locating/approving essential public facilities. 
 
-review list of essential facilities provided by  
OFM with the objective to identify those suitable 
for location in urban vs rural areas. 

No Changes. 



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
15.  Consistent with the revised Policies in the Comp. 

Plan Texts, integrate population projections, 
land use and capital facilities inventory data, 
lands necessary for new capital facilities, and 
total land requirements to support population 
projections (including sec. 15 lands, lands for 
essential facilities RESHB sec 1), densities, open 
space and critical/natural areas (set asides) into 
new 20 year Urban Growth Areas. 
 

Consistent with the revised Policies in the Comp. 
Plan Texts, integrate population projections, land 
use and capital facilities inventory data, lands 
necessary for new capital facilities, and total land 
requirements to support population projections 
(including sec. 15 lands, lands for essential 
facilities RESHB sec 1), densities, open space and 
critical/natural areas (set asides) into new 20 
year Urban Growth Areas. 
 

16.  Review of Urban Growth Areas by each 
jurisdiction's legislative body. 
 

No Changes. 

17.  BOCC adopts Urban Growth Areas, then;  
  PREPARE DRAFT LAND USE MAP  
1. SD Prepare Draft Land Use Map with general 

distribution, location and extent of land uses, 
and:  
 

-Urban Growth Areas and Rural Lands; 
-Open Space; 
-Public Facilities and lands; 
-population densities; 
-building intensities; 
-est. future pop.  densities (multiply av. 
bldg. densities X pers/household re: 
page 57 of 1985 Comp. Plan.(update 
with 1990 census) 

 
 
* not necessary for locating urban growth 
boundaries 

 

    



Number Commenter Existing Policies Proposed Amendment/Comment 
Policy    
    
    
    
    
    
Policy   Support the development of public schools in 

areas where present or can be extended, is 
financially supportable at urban densities, where 
the extension of public infrastructure will protect 
health and safety, as per WAC 365-195-
425(3)(b) 

 











































Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

DATE: APRIL 4, 2016 

TO: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM: BENTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

RE: DRAFT COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 

BACKGROUND: 
RCW 36.70A.210 requires the County and Cities within the County to jointly develop 
Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs).  The CWPPs is a written policy statement used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive 
plans are developed and adopted.  The original CWPPs were adopted in September 28, 
1992 and have not been updated since then.  The Benton County Planning Department and 
the Planning Departments of the Cities have worked over the past year to update the 
Benton Countywide Planning Policies.  

APPLICABLE DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS: 
1. According to RCW 36.70A.210(3), the countywide planning policy shall at a
minimum, address the following: 
(a) Policies to implement RCW 36.70A.110; 
(b) Policies for promotion of contiguous and orderly development and provision 
of urban services to such development; 
(c) Policies for siting public capital facilities of a countywide or statewide nature, 
including transportation facilities of statewide significance as defined in RCW 
47.06.140; 
(d) Policies for countywide transportation facilities and strategies; 
(e) Policies that consider the need for affordable housing, such as housing for all 
economic segments of the population and parameters for its distribution; 
(f) Policies for Joint County and city planning within urban growth areas; 
(g) Policies for countywide economic development and employment, which must 
include consideration of the future development of commercial and industrial 
facilities; and 
(h) An analysis of the fiscal impact. 

In March, the Planning Commission reviewed the draft CWPPs at a workshop.  The CWPPs 
were also sent out to reviewing agencies for their comments.  As of the date of this memo 
we have received comments from Washington State Department of Commerce and 
Futurwise.  The Benton County Planning Department and the Planning Departments of the 
cities met and discussed the comments and based on that discussion, changes were made 
to the CWPP’s.  Those changes are as follows: 

PCM 1.1

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A.110
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=47.06.140


_____________________________________________________________________ 
Draft CWWPs     Page 2 of 2.    April 4, 2016 

1. A process for approving and amending the CWPP was added. 
2. Policy #2 was amended to define how the population projection from OFM 

would be allocated to the jurisdictions. 
3. Information about employment projections and the development of buildable 

land analysis was added to Policy #4. 
 

There are two documents attached to this memo.  Document A is the CWPPs with the 
change made since the workshop in red and Document B is a cleaned up version of the 
draft CWPPs. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
The Planning Commission is scheduled to conduct a public hearing on Tuesday, April 12, 
2016.  The notice for the public hearing was published in the Tri City Herald on March 31, 
2016.  Planning Staff is recommending that the Planning Commission conduct the public 
hearing and make a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to either 
approve, approve with changes or reject the proposed Countywide Planning Policies.  The 
Board of County Commissioners will then review the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission, will consider the policies at a public meeting and adopt a resolution.  The 
resolution will be sent to the Cities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, Benton City, 
and Prosser.  Each city will need to pass a resolution which states that they either: (a) 
approve the CWPPs in their entirety, (b) reject the CWPPs in their entirety, (c) or support 
the CWPPs with specific changes.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is the recommendation of the Planning Department that the 
Planning Commission conduct the public hearing, consider all testimony and make a 
recommendation for approval to the Board of County Commissioners on the attached Draft 
Countywide Planning Policies.  



COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 
FOR  

BENTON COUNTY 

Originally adopted September 28, 1992 

Resolution # 92-296 

AMENDMENTS: 

2016 Ordinance #_______ (Amending Res.# 92-296) Effective Date: ________ 

DOCUMENT A 



Page 2 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 04/01/16 

 

Benton County 
Countywide Planning Policies 
 
 

 
Introduction & Overview: 

The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that cities and counties 
adopt comprehensive plans. The GMA further requires that counties adopt Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs), in cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within 

the county.  CWPP establish a countywide framework for developing and adopting county 
and city comprehensive plans.  The role of the CWPP is to coordinate comprehensive plans 
of jurisdictions in the same county for regional issues or issues affecting common borders 
(RCW 36.70A.100).  Under state law, RCW 36.70A.210(1) describes the relationship 
between comprehensive plans and CWPPs.  It says that: 
 

a ‘countywide planning policy’ is a written policy statement or statements used solely 
for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive 
plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this chapter. This framework shall 
ensure that city and county comprehensive plans are consistent as required in RCW 
36.70A.100. Nothing in this section shall be construed to alter the land use powers of 
the cities. 

 
In order to achieve the objectives above, and to ensure that regional planning efforts and 
governmental actions are consistent with current legal requirements and information, 
substantial revisions to the Benton County CWPPs have been proposed. The development 
of these revisions was a collaborative process between the County and the cities.  
 
History: 
 
In 1991, one year after the Washington State Legislature enacted the Growth Management 
Act (GMA), the GMA was amended to require that Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs) 
be adopted within those counties subject to the GMA. The first Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies were adopted on September 28, 1992.   
 
Amendments and Adoption: 
 
In the years since the last CWPPs were adopted in Benton County, the GMA has evolved 
through amendments and judicial interpretations provided by the GMA and the courts. The 
revised CWPPs attempt to provide procedures for County and city/town coordination to 
address these issues. 
 
The GMA does not specifically address amendments to the CWPPs; however, it has become 
apparent that the Benton County CWPPs should be updated in order to better address 
countywide planning concerns and coordination between jurisdictions in the County. A 
public hearing was held by the Benton County Planning Commission on April 12, 2016. 



Page 3 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

Benton County is the lead agency for this proposal and has determined that it does not 
have a significant adverse impact on the environment and a Determination of Non 
Significance was issued on February 10, 2016. 

In order to comply with GMA requirements and the adoption/amendment procedures 
identified below, all jurisdictions in Benton County must agree to the adoption of the revised 
CWPPs. This process will involve the planning departments, planning commissions, and 
elected representatives of each jurisdiction. In order to facilitate this process, Benton 
County, in consultation with the cities, has developed the following adoption/ratification 
process for the draft CWPPs: 

1. Benton County Planning Commission recommendation on proposed CWPPs.

2. The Benton County Board of Commissioners (BOCC) adopts a resolution agreeing in
principle to the proposed CWPPs, but acknowledging that changes may need to be
made based on input from each jurisdiction. The BOCC’s resolution will contain a
statement requiring that each jurisdiction ratify the CWPPs adopted by Benton County
and will lay out a schedule for future approval steps.

3. CWPPs approved by Benton County BOCC reviewed by each jurisdiction’s Planning
Commission. 

4. The elected body of each jurisdiction passes a resolution which states that the
jurisdiction either: (a) supports the CWPPs in their entirety, (b) rejects the CWPPs in
their entirety, or (c) supports the CWPPs with specific changes.

5. If specific changes are identified by a jurisdiction in step four, the Benton County
Planning Department and Planning Commission may amend the CWPPs and attempt
to reconcile and conflicting changes.

6. The Benton County BOCC adopts, by ordinance, the final CWPPs.

References: 
Benton County. (1992). Countywide Planning Policies. 
Benton County Comprehensive Plan. 

BENTON COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 

Countywide planning policy is a written policy statement or statements used solely for 
establishing a countywide framework from which County and City comprehensive plans 



Page 4 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

are developed and adopted.  This framework will ensure that City and County 
comprehensive plans are consistent with statewide planning policies and as required by 
the Growth Management Act. 

POLICIES TO IMPLEMENT RCW 36.70A.110; 

Policy #1: The Comprehensive Plans of Benton County and each of the cities therein shall 
be prepared and adopted with the objective to facilitate economic prosperity by 
accommodating growth consistent with the following: 

1. Urban Growth.  Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities
exist or can be provided in a cost efficient manner. 

2. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into low density development
lacking adequate services, injurious to ground and surface water quality, destructive to the 
area's agricultural lands base and less than cost effective relative to public service costs.  

3. Transportation.  Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation systems that are based
on regional priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 

4. Property rights.  Private property rights shall not be taken for public use without just
compensation having been made.  The property rights of land owners shall be protected 
from arbitrary and discriminatory actions. 

5. Permits.  Maintain a permit review process that provides for integrated and consolidated
review. 

6. Natural resource industries.  Maintain and encourage natural resource-based industries,
including agricultural, fisheries and mineral industries. 

7. Open space and recreation.  Encourage the retention of open space and the
development of recreational opportunities, conserve fish and wildlife habitat, and increase 
access to natural resource lands and water. 

8. Environment.  Protect the environment and enhance the region's high quality of life,
including air and water quality and the availability of water. 

9. Citizen participation and coordination.  Encourage the involvement of citizens in the
planning process and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to 
reconcile conflicts. 

10. Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary
to support development shall be adequate to serve development at the time the 
development is available for occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels 



Page 5 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

below locally established minimum standards. With the exception of water, sewer, and 
local access streets, which shall be available at the time of occupancy, the term "adequate" 
shall be defined as either available at the time of occupancy, or shown on the current 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), as a funded project within six years. 

11. Historic preservation.  Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and
structures that have historical or archaeological significance. 

POLICIES FOR PROMOTION OF CONTIGUOUS AND ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT 
AND THE PROVISION OF URBAN SERVICES TO SUCH DEVELOPMENT;  

Policy #2:  The County shall allocate future projected populations through the use of the 
latest ‘high series’ population projections published by the Washington State Office of 
Financial Management (OFM). Allocation of future populations shall be based on the 
following distribution:  City of Kennewick 40% of total county population; City of Richland 
28% of total county population; Benton County 19% of total county population; City of 
West Richland 8% of total county population; City of Prosser 3% of total county population 
and City of Benton City 2% of total county population.  At a minimum, the County, in 
consultation with the Cities, will review the OFM population projection ranges (Low, 
Medium and High) and allocation percentages whenever OFM publishes new GMA 
population projections. 
Countywide projected population shall be allocated among jurisdictions through the use of 
any or all of the following factors applied to each jurisdiction: 

a. Documented historical growth rates over the last decade, the last 2 decades, and
the last 5 or 10 years. 

b. Current growth rates.

c. Developing or current planning programs which a jurisdiction has, and which
identify quantitative increases in business and industry development, and housing 
construction activity. 

d. School enrollments over 2 decades, and within the last 5 or 10 years.

e. Pending development proposals (applications) which would add either jobs or new
housing units. 

Policy #3:  The locating of Urban Growth Areas within the County shall be accomplished 
through the use of accepted planning practices which provide sufficient land and service 
capacity, up to 120% of determined need, to meet projected populations at urban densities 
and service standards within the Cities, and urban densities for those portions of the 
County located within the urban growth areas.   



Page 6 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

Policy #4:  That Urban Growth Areas of each City shall be based upon official and 
accepted population projections for minimum of 20 years periods and no more than a 50 
year period.  The gross undeveloped and underdeveloped acreage within the city limits 
and the Urban Growth Area shall be sufficient to meet all the land requirements, for the 
following: community and essential public facilities, population projection, commercial and 
industrial activates activities, employment projections, infill and to prevent inflation of land 
cost due to a limited land supply.  The County will work with the cities to develop a 
buildable lands analysis to help determine the amount of land available for development. 
All jurisdictions comprehensive plans shall reflect individuality and not just a regional plan. 

Policy #5 :  That within the urban growth area, urban uses shall be concentrated in and 
adjacent to existing urban services or where they are shown on a Capital Improvement 
Plan to be available within 6 years.  

Policy #6:  That cities limit the extension of service district boundaries and water and 
sewer infrastructure to areas within each jurisdiction's urban growth area contained in their 
adopted Comprehensive Plan. Utility plans should attempt to reflect possible needs for 50 
years. 

Policy #7: Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use Plan for urban growth areas 
shall designate urban densities and indicate the general locations of greenbelt and critical 
areas.   

Policy #8: Wherever possible, given consideration of all other variables, such as existing 
unused service infrastructure, the placement of an urban growth line into an area of 
existing commercial agriculture shall be avoided. 

Policy #9:  The appropriate directions for the expansion of urban growth areas are those 
which are unincorporated lands with existing service infrastructure and lands adjacent to 
corporate limits.  

Policy #10: All policies within each jurisdiction's Comprehensive Plans shall be modified 
to be consistent with adopted Countywide Policies.  

POLICIES FOR SITING PUBLIC FACILITIES OF A COUNTYWIDE OR STATEWIDE 
NATURE;  

Policy #11:  The County and Cities, along with public participation shall develop a 
cooperative regional process to site essential public facilities of regional and statewide 
importance.  The objective of the process shall be to ensure that such facilities are located 
so as to protect environmental quality, optimize access and usefulness to all jurisdictions, 
and equitably distribute economic benefits/burdens throughout the region or county. 

At the Countywide and multi-county level, the following action should be accomplished: 



Page 7 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

a. Develop a uniform siting procedure which enables selection of optimum
project sites and appropriate size and scale relative to intended benefit area.

Policy #12:  Support the existing solid waste program that promotes and maintains a 
high level of public health and safety, protects the natural and human environment of 
Benton County and encourages public involvement by securing representation of the public 
in the planning process. 

Policy #13:  Encourage and expand coordination and communication among all 
jurisdictions and solid waste agencies/firms in Benton and Franklin Counties in order to 
develop consistent and cost-effective programs that avoid duplication of effort and gaps in 
program activities. 

a. Utilize the existing Benton-Franklin Solid Waste Advisory Committee.

POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES AND 
STRATEGIES;  

Policy #14:  Maintain active County-City participation in the Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization in order to facilitate City, County, and State coordination in planning 
regional transportation facilities and infrastructure improvements to serve essential public 
facilities including Port District facilities and properties.  

POLICIES THAT CONSIDER THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING, SUCH AS 
HOUSING FOR ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION AND 
PARAMETERS FOR ITS DISTRIBUTION;  

Policy #15: The County and Cities within shall work together to provide housing for all 
economic segments of the population.  All jurisdictions shall seek to create the conditions 
necessary for the construction of affordable housing, at the appropriate densities within 
the cities and County. The following actions should be accomplished: 

a. Jointly quantify and project total Countywide housing needs by income level and
housing type (i.e. rental, ownership, senior, farm worker housing, group housing.) 

b. Establish a mechanism whereby the housing efforts/programs of each jurisdiction
address the projected Countywide need. 

c. Address the affordable housing needs of very low, low, and moderate income
households, and special needs individuals through the Comprehensive Housing 
Affordability Strategy (CHAS).  



Page 8 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

d. Develop design standards for implementation within the Comprehensive Plan
with special attention to be given to the residential needs of low to moderate income 
families.  

POLICIES FOR JOINT COUNTY AND CITY PLANNING WITHIN URBAN GROWTH 
AREAS;  

Policy #16: Urban growth areas may include territory located outside of a city if such 
territory may be characterized by urban growth or is adjacent to territory already 
characterized by urban growth.  Within urban growth areas, only urban development may 
occur.  For the purposes of locating urban growth areas, and permitting new development 
within them, "Urban" is defined as:  

a. Having dedicated and improved (surfaced) streets, with dimension, design and
construction standards for new development determined by "joint city/county
standards" and;

b. For new development, road, street and intersection right-of way widths located and
sized to accommodate projected local and regional average daily traffic (ADT) as
determined by each jurisdictions Land Use Plan Transportation Element and, where
relevant, projections of the Benton Franklin Council of Governments.

Policy #17: To encourage logical expansions of corporate boundaries into urban growth 
areas, and to enable the most cost efficient expenditure of public funds for the provision 
of urban services into newly annexed areas.  The County and each City shall jointly develop 
and implement development, land division and building standards, and coordinated permit 
procedures for the review and permitting of new subdivisions within Urban Growth Areas. 

a. Joint development standards shall be adopted by all jurisdictions. Standards may
vary between the County and various incorporated jurisdictions. 

POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND EMPLOYMENT; 

Policy #18: Consistent with the protection of public health, safety, welfare, and the use 
of natural resources on a long-term sustainable basis, the ability of service capacity to 
accommodate demands, and the expressed desires of each community, Comprehensive 
Plans shall jointly and individually support the County and region's economic prosperity in 
order to promote employment and economic opportunity for all citizens. 

Policy #19: The County and Cities have historically partnered with each other as well as 
with other organizations to achieve economic development throughout the region.  It is 
the intention of the County and Cities to continue to actively pursue mutually beneficial 
partnerships that promote growth in all sectors of business and industry, including but not 
limited to: areas of agriculture, agri-business, industrial, commercial, public schools, 



Page 9 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

recreation and tourism.  Key strategies will include promoting family wage jobs, increasing 
income and reducing poverty, increase business formation, expansion and retention, and 
creating jobs and financial investment to improve the economics of our communities. 

a. An economic development element should be integrated into the comprehensive
plan of each jurisdiction.  The economic development element should establish goals
and policies for each jurisdiction; actively promote employment opportunities for
family-wage jobs; support the retention and expansion of businesses and industry
in Benton County; support development of public schools; encourage the
development of tourist-related businesses, including those that capitalize on area
agricultural and other resources.

b. Comprehensive Plans should foster and promote a natural environment that will
contribute to economic growth and prosperity, and a business environment that
offers diverse economic opportunities for businesses of all types and sizes in the
region.

c. The County and Cities should encourage public and private agency cooperation and
participation in the comprehensive planning process.  These agencies should
cooperatively evaluate trends and opportunities to identify strategies meeting long-
term economic needs for the County region.

d. The County and Cities agree that Benton County may establish economic
development strategies and implementation criteria for siting major industrial and
resource based development within rural areas of the County in accordance with
RCW 36.70A.365.

e. The provision of utilities and other supporting urban governmental services to
commercial and industrial areas should be coordinated and assigned a high priority
by utility purveyors and service providers.

f. A Countywide land use inventory should be established to monitor commercial and
industrial land supply.

g. Support the development of public schools in areas where present or can be
extended, is financially supportable at urban densities, where the extension of public
infrastructure will protect health and safety, as per WAC 365-1965-425(3)(b).

AN ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT. 

Policy #20: Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use Plans, shall conduct fiscal analyses 
which identify and refine the most cost effective use of regional and local public services. 
This should be accomplished through actions including the following: 



Page 10 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

a. City's six year CIPs for streets, water, and sewer should show infrastructure sized
to accommodate build-out of service areas within the 20 year urban growth area,
at a minimum.

b. Construction design and placement standards for roads, intersections and streets
(with provisions for storm water conveyance), sewer, water and lighting
infrastructure, should be determined based upon an analysis which identifies the
lowest public expenditure over extended periods of time. Utilities should be
incorporated into such analyses.

c. Build out scenarios should be factored into school, fire and police service demand
projections.

Policy #21: Support the development of public schools in areas where utilities are present 
or can be extended, is financially supportable at urban densities, where the extension of 
public infrastructure will protect health and safety, as per WAC 365-1965-425(3)(b). 

AMENDING POLICIES. 

Policy #22: The Growth Management Act requires counties planning under the Act to 
adopt a countywide planning policy in cooperation with the cities located in the county. 
The countywide planning policy is to be a written policy statement or statements used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive 
plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this [GMA] chapter.” The purpose for the 
Benton Countywide Planning Policies is to meet this requirement of the Act. This document 
is a tool that will provide the necessary guidance to achieve consistency during the 
updating of comprehensive plans for the county and the cities/towns. 

The County Commissioners will review the policies and cause a final proposal to be 
transmitted to the cities for ratification and ultimately back to the Board of Commissioners 
for final action.  The Countywide Planning Policies will be considered adopted when ratified 
by the cities and approved by the Board of Commissioners. Cities agree to take action 
within 45 days of the transmittal of the proposal and to submit resolutions of ratification 
to the county to document the action taken by the city. 

The Board of Commissioners agrees to adopt the ratified policies without modification upon 
receipt of notice that at least three cities have acted affirmatively.  The Commissioners will 
convene to consider possible modifications to these policies if ratification is not 
accomplished. 

Future amendments to the Countywide Planning Policies may be considered when 
proposed by the County or a City.   



COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 
FOR  

BENTON COUNTY 

Originally adopted September 28, 1992 

Resolution # 92-296 

AMENDMENTS: 

________, 2016 Ordinance #_______ (Amending Res.# 92-296) Effective Date: ________ 

DOCUMENT B 



Page 2 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

Benton County 
Countywide Planning Policies 

Introduction & Overview: 
The Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA) requires that cities and counties 
adopt comprehensive plans. The GMA further requires that counties adopt Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs), in cooperation with the cities located in whole or in part within 
the county.  CWPP establish a countywide framework for developing and adopting county 
and city comprehensive plans.  The role of the CWPP is to coordinate comprehensive plans 
of jurisdictions in the same county for regional issues or issues affecting common borders 
(RCW 36.70A.100).  Under state law, RCW 36.70A.210(1) describes the relationship 
between comprehensive plans and CWPPs.  It says that: 

a ‘countywide planning policy’ is a written policy statement or statements used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city 
comprehensive plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this chapter. 
This framework shall ensure that city and county comprehensive plans are 
consistent as required in RCW 36.70A.100. Nothing in this section shall be 
construed to alter the land use powers of the cities. 

In order to achieve the objectives above, and to ensure that regional planning efforts and 
governmental actions are consistent with current legal requirements and information, 
substantial revisions to the Benton County CWPPs have been proposed. The development 
of these revisions was a collaborative process between the County and the cities.  

History: 

In 1991, one year after the Washington State Legislature enacted the Growth Management 
Act (GMA), the GMA was amended to require that Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs) 
be adopted within those counties subject to the GMA. The first Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies were adopted on September 28, 1992.   

Amendments and Adoption: 

In the years since the last CWPPs were adopted in Benton County, the GMA has evolved 
through amendments and judicial interpretations provided by the GMA and the courts. The 
revised CWPPs attempt to provide procedures for County and city/town coordination to 
address these issues. 

The GMA does not specifically address amendments to the CWPPs; however, it has become 
apparent that the Benton County CWPPs should be updated in order to better address 
countywide planning concerns and coordination between jurisdictions in the County. A 
public hearing was held by the Benton County Planning Commission on April 12, 2016. 



Page 3 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

Benton County is the lead agency for this proposal and has determined that it does not 
have a significant adverse impact on the environment and a Determination of Non 
Significance was issued on February 10, 2016. 

In order to comply with GMA requirements and the adoption/amendment procedures 
identified below, all jurisdictions in Benton County must agree to the adoption of the revised 
CWPPs. This process will involve the planning departments, planning commissions, and 
elected representatives of each jurisdiction. In order to facilitate this process, Benton 
County, in consultation with the cities, has developed the following adoption/ratification 
process for the draft CWPPs: 

1. Benton County Planning Commission recommendation on proposed CWPPs.

2. The Benton County Board of Commissioners (BOCC) adopts a resolution agreeing in
principle to the proposed CWPPs, but acknowledging that changes may need to be
made based on input from each jurisdiction. The BOCC’s resolution will contain a
statement requiring that each jurisdiction ratify the CWPPs adopted by Benton County
and will lay out a schedule for future approval steps.

3. CWPPs approved by Benton County BOCC reviewed by each jurisdiction’s Planning
Commission. 

4. The elected body of each jurisdiction passes a resolution which states that the
jurisdiction either: (a) supports the CWPPs in their entirety, (b) rejects the CWPPs in
their entirety, or (c) supports the CWPPs with specific changes.

5. If specific changes are identified by a jurisdiction in step four, the Benton County
Planning Department and Planning Commission may amend the CWPPs and attempt
to reconcile and conflicting changes.

6. The Benton County BOCC adopts, by ordinance, the final CWPPs.

References: 
Benton County. (1992). Countywide Planning Policies. 
Benton County Comprehensive Plan. 

BENTON COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES 

Countywide planning policy is a written policy statement or statements used solely for 
establishing a countywide framework from which County and City comprehensive plans 



Page 4 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

are developed and adopted.  This framework will ensure that City and County 
comprehensive plans are consistent with statewide planning policies and as required by 
the Growth Management Act. 

POLICIES TO IMPLEMENT RCW 36.70A.110; 

Policy #1: The Comprehensive Plans of Benton County and each of the cities therein shall 
be prepared and adopted with the objective to facilitate economic prosperity by 
accommodating growth consistent with the following: 

1. Urban Growth.  Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities
exist or can be provided in a cost efficient manner. 

2. Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into low density development
lacking adequate services, injurious to ground and surface water quality, destructive to the 
area's agricultural lands base and less than cost effective relative to public service costs.  

3. Transportation.  Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation systems that are based
on regional priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 

4. Property rights.  Private property rights shall not be taken for public use without just
compensation having been made.  The property rights of land owners shall be protected 
from arbitrary and discriminatory actions. 

5. Permits.  Maintain a permit review process that provides for integrated and consolidated
review. 

6. Natural resource industries.  Maintain and encourage natural resource-based industries,
including agricultural, fisheries and mineral industries. 

7. Open space and recreation.  Encourage the retention of open space and the
development of recreational opportunities, conserve fish and wildlife habitat, and increase 
access to natural resource lands and water. 

8. Environment.  Protect the environment and enhance the region's high quality of life,
including air and water quality and the availability of water. 

9. Citizen participation and coordination.  Encourage the involvement of citizens in the
planning process and ensure coordination between communities and jurisdictions to 
reconcile conflicts. 

10. Public facilities and services.  Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary
to support development shall be adequate to serve development at the time the 
development is available for occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels 



Page 5 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

below locally established minimum standards. With the exception of water, sewer, and 
local access streets, which shall be available at the time of occupancy, the term 
"adequate" shall be defined as either available at the time of occupancy, or shown on the 
current Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), as a funded project within six years. 

11. Historic preservation.  Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and
structures that have historical or archaeological significance. 

POLICIES FOR PROMOTION OF CONTIGUOUS AND ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT 
AND THE PROVISION OF URBAN SERVICES TO SUCH DEVELOPMENT;  

Policy #2:  The County shall allocate future projected populations through the use of the 
latest ‘high series’ population projections published by the Washington State Office of 
Financial Management (OFM). Allocation of future populations shall be based on the 
following distribution:  City of Kennewick 40% of total county population; City of Richland 
28% of total county population; Benton County 19% of total county population; City of 
West Richland 8% of total county population; City of Prosser 3% of total county population 
and City of Benton City 2% of total county population.  At a minimum, the County, in 
consultation with the Cities, will review the OFM population projection ranges (Low, 
Medium and High) and allocation percentages whenever OFM publishes new GMA 
population projections. 

Policy #3:  The locating of Urban Growth Areas within the County shall be accomplished 
through the use of accepted planning practices which provide sufficient land and service 
capacity, up to 120% of determined need, to meet projected populations at urban densities 
and service standards within the Cities, and urban densities for those portions of the 
County located within the urban growth areas.   

Policy #4:  That Urban Growth Areas of each City shall be based upon official and 
accepted population projections for minimum of 20 years.  The gross undeveloped and 
underdeveloped acreage within the city limits and the Urban Growth Area shall be sufficient 
to meet all the land requirements, for the following: community and essential public 
facilities, population projection, commercial and industrial activities, employment 
projections, infill and to prevent inflation of land cost due to a limited land supply.  The 
County will work with the cities to develop a buildable lands analysis to help determine the 
amount of land available for development.  All jurisdictions comprehensive plans shall 
reflect individuality and not just a regional plan. 

Policy #5 :  That within the urban growth area, urban uses shall be concentrated in and 
adjacent to existing urban services or where they are shown on a Capital Improvement 
Plan to be available within 6 years.  

Policy #6:  That cities limit the extension of service district boundaries and water and 
sewer infrastructure to areas within each jurisdiction's urban growth area contained in their 



Page 6 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

adopted Comprehensive Plan. Utility plans should attempt to reflect possible needs for 50 
years. 

Policy #7: Within each Comprehensive Plan, the Land Use Plan for urban growth areas 
shall designate urban densities and indicate the general locations of greenbelt and critical 
areas.   

Policy #8: Wherever possible, given consideration of all other variables, such as existing 
unused service infrastructure, the placement of an urban growth line into an area of 
existing commercial agriculture shall be avoided. 

Policy #9:  The appropriate directions for the expansion of urban growth areas are those 
which are unincorporated lands with existing service infrastructure and lands adjacent to 
corporate limits.  

Policy #10: All policies within each jurisdiction's Comprehensive Plans shall be modified 
to be consistent with adopted Countywide Policies.  

POLICIES FOR SITING PUBLIC FACILITIES OF A COUNTYWIDE OR STATEWIDE 
NATURE;  

Policy #11:  The County and Cities, along with public participation shall develop a 
cooperative regional process to site essential public facilities of regional and statewide 
importance.  The objective of the process shall be to ensure that such facilities are located 
so as to protect environmental quality, optimize access and usefulness to all jurisdictions, 
and equitably distribute economic benefits/burdens throughout the region or county. 

At the Countywide and multi-county level, the following action should be accomplished: 

a. Develop a uniform siting procedure which enables selection of optimum
project sites and appropriate size and scale relative to intended benefit area.

Policy #12:  Support the existing solid waste program that promotes and maintains a 
high level of public health and safety, protects the natural and human environment of 
Benton County and encourages public involvement by securing representation of the public 
in the planning process. 

Policy #13:  Encourage and expand coordination and communication among all 
jurisdictions and solid waste agencies/firms in Benton and Franklin Counties in order to 
develop consistent and cost-effective programs that avoid duplication of effort and gaps in 
program activities. 

a. Utilize the existing Benton-Franklin Solid Waste Advisory Committee.



Page 7 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 04/01/16 

 

 
POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE TRANSPORTATION FACILITIES AND 
STRATEGIES;  
 
Policy #14:  Maintain active County-City participation in the Regional Transportation 
Planning Organization in order to facilitate City, County, and State coordination in planning 
regional transportation facilities and infrastructure improvements to serve essential public 
facilities including Port District facilities and properties.  
 
POLICIES THAT CONSIDER THE NEED FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING, SUCH AS 
HOUSING FOR ALL ECONOMIC SEGMENTS OF THE POPULATION AND 
PARAMETERS FOR ITS DISTRIBUTION;  
 
Policy #15: The County and Cities within shall work together to provide housing for all 
economic segments of the population.  All jurisdictions shall seek to create the conditions 
necessary for the construction of affordable housing, at the appropriate densities within 
the cities and County. The following actions should be accomplished: 
 

a.  Jointly quantify and project total Countywide housing needs by income level and 
housing type (i.e. rental, ownership, senior, farm worker housing, group housing.) 

 
b.  Establish a mechanism whereby the housing efforts/programs of each jurisdiction 
address the projected Countywide need. 

 
c.  Address the affordable housing needs of very low, low, and moderate income 
households, and special needs individuals through the Comprehensive Housing 
Affordability Strategy (CHAS).  

 
d.  Develop design standards for implementation within the Comprehensive Plan 
with special attention to be given to the residential needs of low to moderate income 
families.  

 
POLICIES FOR JOINT COUNTY AND CITY PLANNING WITHIN URBAN GROWTH 
AREAS;  
  
Policy #16: Urban growth areas may include territory located outside of a city if such 
territory may be characterized by urban growth or is adjacent to territory already 
characterized by urban growth.  Within urban growth areas, only urban development may 
occur.  For the purposes of locating urban growth areas, and permitting new development 
within them, "Urban" is defined as:  
 
a. Having dedicated and improved (surfaced) streets, with dimension, design and 

construction standards for new development determined by "joint city/county 
standards" and; 



Page 8 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 04/01/16 

 

 
b. For new development, road, street and intersection right-of way widths located and 

sized to accommodate projected local and regional average daily traffic (ADT) as 
determined by each jurisdictions Land Use Plan Transportation Element and, where 
relevant, projections of the Benton Franklin Council of Governments.   

 
Policy #17: To encourage logical expansions of corporate boundaries into urban growth 
areas, and to enable the most cost efficient expenditure of public funds for the provision 
of urban services into newly annexed areas.  The County and each City shall jointly develop 
and implement development, land division and building standards, and coordinated permit 
procedures for the review and permitting of new subdivisions within Urban Growth Areas. 
 

a. Joint development standards shall be adopted by all jurisdictions. Standards may 
vary between the County and various incorporated jurisdictions. 

 
POLICIES FOR COUNTYWIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AND EMPLOYMENT;  
 
Policy #18: Consistent with the protection of public health, safety, welfare, and the use 
of natural resources on a long-term sustainable basis, the ability of service capacity to 
accommodate demands, and the expressed desires of each community, Comprehensive 
Plans shall jointly and individually support the County and region's economic prosperity in 
order to promote employment and economic opportunity for all citizens. 
 
Policy #19: The County and Cities have historically partnered with each other as well as 
with other organizations to achieve economic development throughout the region.  It is 
the intention of the County and Cities to continue to actively pursue mutually beneficial 
partnerships that promote growth in all sectors of business and industry, including but not 
limited to: areas of agriculture, agri-business, industrial, commercial, public schools, 
recreation and tourism.  Key strategies will include promoting family wage jobs, increasing 
income and reducing poverty, increase business formation, expansion and retention, and 
creating jobs and financial investment to improve the economics of our communities. 
 
a. An economic development element should be integrated into the comprehensive 

plan of each jurisdiction.  The economic development element should establish goals 
and policies for each jurisdiction; actively promote employment opportunities for 
family-wage jobs; support the retention and expansion of businesses and industry 
in Benton County; support development of public schools; encourage the 
development of tourist-related businesses, including those that capitalize on area 
agricultural and other resources. 

 
b. Comprehensive Plans should foster and promote a natural environment that will 

contribute to economic growth and prosperity, and a business environment that 
offers diverse economic opportunities for businesses of all types and sizes in the 
region. 



Page 9 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

 DRAFT 04/01/16 

 

 
c. The County and Cities should encourage public and private agency cooperation and 

participation in the comprehensive planning process.  These agencies should 
cooperatively evaluate trends and opportunities to identify strategies meeting long-
term economic needs for the County region. 

 
d. The County and Cities agree that Benton County may establish economic 

development strategies and implementation criteria for siting major industrial and 
resource based development within rural areas of the County in accordance with 
RCW 36.70A.365. 

 
e. The provision of utilities and other supporting urban governmental services to 

commercial and industrial areas should be coordinated and assigned a high priority 
by utility purveyors and service providers. 

 
f. A Countywide land use inventory should be established to monitor commercial and 

industrial land supply. 
 
g. Support the development of public schools in areas where present or can be 

extended, is financially supportable at urban densities, where the extension of public 
infrastructure will protect health and safety, as per WAC 365-196-425(3)(b). 

 
AN ANALYSIS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT.  
 
Policy #20: Capital Improvement Plans and Land Use Plans, shall conduct fiscal analyses 
which identify and refine the most cost effective use of regional and local public services.  
This should be accomplished through actions including the following: 
 
a. City's six year CIPs for streets, water, and sewer should show infrastructure sized 

to accommodate build-out of service areas within the 20 year urban growth area, 
at a minimum. 

 
b. Construction design and placement standards for roads, intersections and streets 

(with provisions for storm water conveyance), sewer, water and lighting 
infrastructure, should be determined based upon an analysis which identifies the 
lowest public expenditure over extended periods of time. Utilities should be 
incorporated into such analyses.  

 
c. Build out scenarios should be factored into school, fire and police service demand 

projections. 
 
Policy #21: Support the development of public schools in areas where utilities are present 
or can be extended, is financially supportable at urban densities, where the extension of 
public infrastructure will protect health and safety, as per WAC 365-196-425(3)(b). 



Page 10 Benton County Planning  
2017 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

DRAFT 04/01/16 

AMENDING POLICIES. 

Policy #22: The Growth Management Act requires counties planning under the Act to 
adopt a countywide planning policy in cooperation with the cities located in the county. 
The countywide planning policy is to be a written policy statement or statements used 
solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county and city comprehensive 
plans are developed and adopted pursuant to this [GMA] chapter.” The purpose for the 
Benton Countywide Planning Policies is to meet this requirement of the Act. This document 
is a tool that will provide the necessary guidance to achieve consistency during the 
updating of comprehensive plans for the county and the cities/towns. 

The County Commissioners will review the policies and cause a final proposal to be 
transmitted to the cities for ratification and ultimately back to the Board of Commissioners 
for final action.  The Countywide Planning Policies will be considered adopted when ratified 
by the cities and approved by the Board of Commissioners. Cities agree to take action 
within 45 days of the transmittal of the proposal and to submit resolutions of ratification 
to the county to document the action taken by the city. 

The Board of Commissioners agrees to adopt the ratified policies without modification upon 
receipt of notice that at least three cities have acted affirmatively.  The Commissioners will 
convene to consider possible modifications to these policies if ratification is not 
accomplished. 

Future amendments to the Countywide Planning Policies may be considered when 
proposed by the County or a City.   



Benton County Planning Department 
Planning Annex, P.O. Box 910, 1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350, Phone: (509) 786-5612 or (509) 736-3086, Fax (509) 786-5629 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

NOTICE OF HEARINGS before the Benton County Planning Commission, in the matter of County 
Planning:  

Benton County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - File No. CPA 2016-001, a proposal to change the 
Land Use Designation from Rural Lands 5 Acre to Heavy industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal 
site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter 
in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of 
Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant:  Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Zone Change Request – ZC 2016-001, a proposal to change the Land use zoning from Rural Lands 5 
to Heavy Industrial on a 40 acre parcel.  The proposal site is located on at 228812 E. Game Farm 
Road in the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter in Section 23, Township 8 North, Range 30 
East, W.M., one half mile east of the intersection of Game Farm Road and SR 397.  Applicant: 
Kennewick Game Farm LLC 

Countywide Planning Policies – Amendments are being made to the Benton County Countywide 
Planning Policies (CWPPs) adopted in February of 1993.  The Countywide Planning Policies are 
written policy statements used solely for establishing a countywide framework from which county 
and city comprehensive plans are developed and adopted.  

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that public comment will be taken on the above proposals on Tuesday, 
April 12, 2016 at 7:00 p.m., in the Benton County Planning Annex Hearing Room at 1002 Dudley 
Avenue in Prosser.  CPA 2016-001 & ZC 2016-001 have been reviewed under the requirements of 
the State Environmental Policy Act (RCW 43.21C) and a Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) 
was issued on February 17, 2016. 

Comments regarding the proposals or the SEPA determination may be made at the above-mentioned 
hearing, submitted in writing to the Benton County Planning Department; P.O. Box 910, Prosser, WA 
99350; Faxed to (509) 786-5629; or sent via the County website at 
http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback.  Written, faxed, or website comments must be received by 
5:00 p.m. on April 11, 2016.  Information regarding the proposals or a copy of the DNS may be 
obtained free of charge by calling the Benton County Planning Department at (509) 736-3086 (from 
Tri Cities) or 786-5612 (Prosser) or by accessing the website at http:/tinyurl.com/cpadocs. 

It is Benton County’s policy that no qualified individual with a disability shall by reason of such 
disability be excluded from participation in public meetings.  If you wish to use auxiliary aids or 
require assistance to comment at this public meeting, please contact the ADA Coordinator or the 
Benton County Planning Department at the above stated phone numbers and/or address no later 
than 48 hours prior to the date of the meeting. The Request for Reasonable Accommodation form is 
available online at www.co.benton.wa.us or from the Planning Department. 

Dated this 25th day of March 2016. 

Martin Sheeran, Chairman 
Benton County Planning Commission 

Michael Shuttleworth, Planning Manager 
Benton County Planning Department 

PUBLISH Thursday March 31, 2016 

PCM 1.2

http://tinyurl.com/CPAresidentfeedback
http://tinyurl.com/cpadocs
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/


  

BENTON COUNTY 

OFFICE OF PUBLIC 
DEFENSE 

SUPERVISION AND QUALITY 

CONTROL PLAN 

Quality Representation – Fiscal Accountability 

Benton County Office of Public Defense 

7122 W Okanogan PL, Bldg A 

Tel (509) 222-3700 

Fax (509) 222-3717 

BentonCountyDefense.org 

 

WEH
Text Box
Supervision & Quality Control Plan ~ E Hsu



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Contents 

Introduction & Purpose _________________________________________________________________________________ 1 

Overview _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 2 

On-Boarding ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 3 

Performance Standards Monitoring - Data Collection ________________________________________________ 4 

Performance Standards Monitoring - Court Observation _____________________________________________ 9 

Training __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 12 

Complaint Investigation & Resolution _________________________________________________________________ 14 

Exit Interviews __________________________________________________________________________________________ 16 

Conclusion _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 17 

 



INTRODUCTION & PURPOSE 

Page 1        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Introduction & Purpose 

At the core of the Mission of Benton County Office of Public Defense (“OPD”) is the fulfilling of the legal 

right to public defense counsel by providing well-trained, diligent, competent, public defenders when 

required by law.  The nature of OPD’s staffing is such that the majority of the public defense services it 

provides are done so through contracts with private attorneys1.  While there are many advantages of 

providing public defense services through private attorney contracts (including flexibility, ability to attract 

talent, and cost effectiveness) it can be difficult sometimes to monitor the effectiveness and quality of the 

public defense services being provided.   

To promote high levels of competence and quality with public defense services, OPD has implemented a 

number of programs aimed at providing management with relevant and useful data and information by 

which to make strategic decisions, engage in short and long term planning, and make contract related 

decisions. 

                                                                    
1 The current staffing model has three fully employed staff defenders and over 40 contract defenders 
providing the OPD’s legally mandated public defense services. 



OVERVIEW 

Page 2        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Overview 

Quality control for public defense contract holders in Benton County will be accomplished by a number of 

interlinked programs.   

 

 

Together these programs, which are explained in further detail in the remainder of this whitepaper, form 

the overall quality control strategy by which Benton County Office of Public Defense will advance its 

mission of providing quality representation with fiscal accountability. 

 

On-Boarding 
Program

Data-
Collection 
Program

In-Court 
Observation 

Program
Training

Exit 
Interview 
Program

Complaint Investigation & Resolution Program 

Performance Standards Monitoring 



ON-BOARDING 

Page 3        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

On-Boarding  

WHAT IS ON-BOARDING 

Unlike starting as a new employee, new contract defenders, while qualified to take on public defense cases 

by virtue of education and experience, can have a hard time getting acquainted with both OPD’s culture and 

expectations, as well as the processes (and even personalities or idiosyncrasies) of practicing public 

defense law in Benton County.  The On-Boarding program is designed to be an orientation that will help 

new contract defenders transition effectively into their new roles so as to make it as smooth as possible 

both for them and for their clients. 

ON-BOARDING PROCESS 

The on-boarding process consists of the following: 

1. An orientation session and plan with supervisory staff at OPD which includes personal 

introductions to judges, prosecutors, and other public defenders, and an introduction to key court 

processes, docket responsibilities and forms with which new contractors should be familiar. 

2. Providing the contract attorney with a comprehensive Contract Defender Manual which provides 

important information about contract obligations, OPD procedures, public defender resources, and 

court processes, including embedded hyperlinks to associated forms and documents.  The Contract 

Defender Manual is constantly updated as necessary to make sure that incoming contract defenders 

always have the most current information about changes as they come about. 

3. Pairing new contract attorneys with more experienced attorneys as necessary and requested, to 

provide mentorship resources and promote professional growth and retention. 

 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - DATA 
COLLECTION 

Page 4        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Performance Standards Monitoring - Data Collection 

WHAT IS DATA COLLECTION 

The Data Collection Program uses the collection and review of multiple data points to provide a broad 

picture of public defender effectiveness and competence both on a general system-level basis and on an 

individual attorney basis. 

WHAT DATA IS COLLECTED 

A comprehensive set of Performance Standards data is collected from a number of different sources.  The 

data points collected are all relevant to the quality of public defense services both as stated in the court’s 

opinion in Wilbur v. Mt. Vernon, and in various other national studies. 

DATA COLLECTED 

DATA POINT SOURCE IMPORTANCE 

Caseloads Reports from public 
defenders as well as from 
the various courts. 

Contractual obligations as well as 
Washington Public Defense 
Standards require that public 
defenders not exceed certain 
caseloads. 

Jail and Juvenile Detention 
visits 

Data received directly 
from Benton County Jail 
and Benton/Franklin 
Juvenile Detention Facility 

It is critically important that public 
defenders visit their incarcerated 
clients so that they can keep them 
informed about their cases and so 
that the clients can ask questions or 
express concerns about the 
proceedings. 

Trials held Billings from defenders for 
contractually mandated 
trial per diems. 

It is well understood that the 
decision whether or not proceed to 
trial is always that of the client so 
this is an indicator that is not entirely 
within the control of public 
defenders.  Nevertheless, a 
nonexistent or extremely low 
number of cases going to trial can be 
an indication that public defenders 
are not effectively and aggressively 
defending cases. 

RCW 10.77 Mental Health 
Evaluation motions filed 

Reported directly by 
public defenders.   

The number of private mental health 
evaluations by themselves are not 
per se indicative of the quality of 
public defense representation.  



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - DATA 
COLLECTION 

Page 5        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

However, this data point is being 
tracked because it is indicative of the 
higher complexity of cases and the 
accompanying need for additional 
professional, fiscal and training 
resources and is therefore useful for 
planning and forecasting. 

Disposed of at trial readiness Reported directly by 
public defenders 

Quite often, even though public 
defenders have prepared to take a 
case to trial, prosecutors will make a 
more favorable offer (such as a 
Stipulated Orders of Continuance2 or 
Deferred Prosecution Agreements) 
which will be accepted at that time.  
Unless data regarding the number of 
such “Disposed of at readiness” cases 
is collected, then the number of trials 
held will not fairly represent the 
amount of effort public defenders are 
putting into defending their cases. 

Key motions filed Reported directly by 
public defenders. 

Whether or not public defenders are 
regularly filing key motions (defined 
as motions that may be dispositive of 
the case or that may otherwise result 
in a significant advantage for the 
client in resolution of the case) is 
indicative of how much work they 
are putting into defending cases.  
While this is a strategic decision and 
therefore within the public 
defender’s exclusive decision-making 
authority, most public defenders 
defer to their clients when deciding 
whether to file motions since plea 
offers can change significantly when 
motions are filed. 

Investigator usage Collected through billings 
by investigators. 

The effective defense of many felony 
cases, as well as some serious 
misdemeanors, requires the use of 
investigative services.  Benton 
County provides investigative 

                                                                    
2 A Stipulated Order of Continuance (“SOC”) is a resolution that continues the case for a defined period of 
time at the end of which it would be dismissed, conditioned upon certain actions by the defendant as well 
as obedience to the law.  SOCs are quite similar to Deferred Prosecution Agreements. 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - DATA 
COLLECTION 

Page 6        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

services to support public defenders 
at no cost to them.   

Private Mental health 
evaluations 

Collected through billings 
by evaluators. 

This data point measures the number 
of times public defenders have been 
dissatisfied with the “initial” 
evaluation conducted by Eastern 
State Hospital and request funding 
for a second “private” evaluation.  As 
with the number of RCW 10.77 
mental health evaluations, the 
number of private mental health 
evaluations by themselves are not 
per se indicative of the quality of 
public defense representation.  
However, this data point is being 
tracked because it is indicative of the 
higher complexity of cases and the 
accompanying need for additional 
professional, fiscal and training 
resources and is therefore useful for 
planning and forecasting. 

Expert usage (including 
mental health experts) 

Collected through billings 
by experts.   

The effective defense of some felony 
cases, and the occasional serious 
misdemeanor (or misdemeanor 
involving mental health issues) 
requires the use of expert services.  
Benton County provides expert 
services to support public defenders 
at no cost to them. 

Time spent on public defense 
cases 

Collected directly from 
public defenders. 

 

Complaints filed against 
public defenders 

Collected through OPD 
records. 

Obviously formal complaints filed 
against public defenders by clients 
have the potential to be indicative of 
serious problems.  All formal 
complaints (defined as complaints in 
writing by a client, stating a specific 
concern with a public defender’s 
performance in a case) are 
investigated by OPD and corrective 
or disciplinary action is taken as 
necessary. 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - DATA 
COLLECTION 

Page 7        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

HOW DATA IS REPORTED 

To make the collected data more understandable, and to also account for caseload volume factors, the 

collected data is converted to “indices” as shown in the following table, and reported in OPD’s Quarterly 

Reports.   

DATA CONVERSION    

DATA POINT CONVERTED INTO WHAT IT MEANS 

Caseload Not converted n/a 

Jail and Juvenile Detention 
Visits 

Jail Visits Index  How many visits were made per 
thousand cases appointed. 

Trials Held Trials Index How many trials were held per 
thousand cases appointed. 

RCW 10.77 motions filed 10.77 Motions Index How many RCW 10.77 motions 
were filed per thousand cases 
appointed. 

Disposed of at Trial Readiness Disposed of at Trial Readiness 
Index  

How many cases per thousand 
were disposed of atrial 
readiness with a favorable 
resolution. 

Key Motions Held Motions Index How many key motions were 
filed per thousand cases 
appointed. 

Investigator Usage Investigator Index How many investigators were 
used per thousand cases 
appointed. 

Mental Health Evaluations Mental Health Evaluation Index How many independent mental 
health evaluations were 
conducted per thousand cases 
appointed. 

Expert Usage Experts Index How many experts were used 
per thousand cases appointed. 

Time Spent on Public Defense 
Cases 

Time Index How much time was spent per 
case on average. 

Complaints Against Public 
Defenders 

Complaints Index How many complaints were 
filed per thousand cases 
appointed. 

 

Note on Calculating Performance Indices – Indices can be divided into two categories for purposes of 

calculation: No Lag Indices where there is little delay between the time of case appointment and the event 

being measured by the index, and Lag Indices where there is usually significant delay (60 to 90 days) 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - DATA 
COLLECTION 

Page 8        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

between the time of case appointment and the event being measured by the index3.  No Lag Indices are 

calculated using the caseload of the current quarter.  For better accuracy, and to account for the lag, Lag 

Indices are calculated using the caseload of the previous quarter.   

NO LAG INDICES 

Jail Visits Index 

Detention Visits Index 

Complaints Index 

Motions Index  

10.77 (mental health) Motions Index 

Disposed at Trial Readiness Index 

 

LAG INDICES 

Mental Health Evaluations Index   

Investigative Services Index 

Expert Services Index  

Trials Index   

 

For example: Investigative Services Index is a Lag Index.  Therefore, in calculating the Investigative Services 

Index for Q2 2015, the number of investigative services bills paid in Q2 2015 would be divided by the caseload 

from the previous quarter (Q1 2015) and multiplied by 1,000 for the index.  On the other hand the Jail Visits 

Index is a No Lag Index.  Therefore, in calculating the Jail Visits Index for the same Q2 2015, the number of jail 

visits for Q2 2015 would be divided by the caseload from the same quarter (Q2 2015) and multiplied by 1,000 

for the index. 

 

                                                                    
3 Since the numbers underlying these indices are collected based on billings, the time between 
appointment and the time services are rendered (averaging 30 days, possibly more with trial numbers) and 
the time between when services are rendered and billing is received (45-60 days) add up to usually result 
in billing occurring in the next quarter after case appointment. 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - 
COURT OBSERVATION 

Page 9        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Performance Standards Monitoring - Court Observation 

As useful as objective data may be in evaluating performance, it is not complete without actual observation 

of public defender in-court performance.  Therefore, the second prong to the Performance Standards 

Monitoring Program is Court Observation.  

WHAT IS COURT OBSERVATION 

Court Observation is the actual in-court observation and evaluation of public defenders conducted by the 

Public Defense Manager or designee and is designed to ensure that each public defender has his/her in-

court performance observed at least once per quarter. 

WHAT IS EVALUATED DURING COURT OBSERVATION 

Court Observation is conducted in a uniform manner and records are kept about the performance of public 

defenders both on a general docket and attorney/case-specific basis. 

During each Court Observation session, the following information is recorded and performance criteria 

evaluated: 

GENERAL DOCKET CRITERIA 

CRITERIA IMPORTANCE 

Are all assigned defenders present (or, if not 
present, have they notified OPD and made 
arrangements for coverage)? 

It is important for good client service, as well as 
for docket and judicial efficiency, that public 
defenders are in court when required. 

Are all assigned defenders generally prepared and 
calling cases in an orderly fashion (Superior 
Court) or ready when their cases are called (other 
jurisdictions)? 

 

Does there appear to be excessive discussions in 
court with in-custody or out-of-custody clients 
prior to calling cases? 

Public defenders are expected to meet with their 
clients in advance of court sessions.  Meeting with 
clients in court not only disrupts the flow of court 
proceedings, but also increases the risk that 
clients have insufficient time to discuss issues or 
consider options.  It is understood, however, that 
factors including uncooperative clients or shifting 
time frames, may make it difficult to meet with 
clients before court appearances. 

Are any defenders not in the courtroom when 
required? 

Clearly public defenders must be in court when 
required. 

Are defenders sharing in responsibility of being 
available to stand in for arraignments or other 
“general duties” when needed? 

Some “general docket” responsibilities are 
expected to be shared by public defenders on the 
docket.  This usually relates to cases that are 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - 
COURT OBSERVATION 

Page 10        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

called before there is a formal assignment to a 
specific attorney (such as arraignments called in 
Superior Court). 

ATTORNEY/CASE-SPECIFIC CRITERIA 

CRITERIA IMPORTANCE 

In or Out-of-custody? Cases where the client is in-custody always 
require more diligence and quicker action since 
speedy trial timeframes are shorter and 
continued incarceration has significant impacts 
on clients and their families. 

Status of case Careful attention is paid (and records kept) on the 
purpose of the hearing and what was (or wasn’t) 
accomplished.   

Was the case continued without much action 
taken and if so was there a reasonable 
justification? 

Particular attention is paid to cases where 
nothing much is accomplished and the case is 
simply continued to another date.  Excessive 
continuing of cases can be indicative of 
insufficient efforts to handle the case or other 
issues relating to attorney competence or efforts.  
Reasons for continuances are always noted and 
evaluated if provided on the record. 

Any indication that client meetings outside of 
courtroom have taken place? 

It is important that public defenders are meeting 
with clients before court.   

Does defender appear prepared? This indicator often goes hand in hand with 
indicators of client meetings before court.  
Obviously being prepared for court (and whatever 
transaction or action is being planned) is of 
paramount importance in effective 
representation. 

Does defender appear effective in advocating for 
client? 

Public defenders will be evaluated on their 
willingness and effectiveness in advocating for 
their clients.  This includes, for example, their 
effectiveness in arguing for bail, addressing 
sentencing issues, and especially in advancing 
their client’s interests when unexpected issues 
arise on the fly. 

Any significant problems noted? If any significant issues of concern are noted, then 
the time, case name and number, and details are 
noted for further follow up. 

 

All Court Observation records are archived and indexed for easy retrieval.  Contract public defenders are 

informed about the Performance Standards Monitoring Program and advised that the results of both the 

Data Collection and Court Observation prongs of the Program will be used to assist with contract award, 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - 
COURT OBSERVATION 

Page 11        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

transfer, and promotional decisions.  When significant client complaints are received, the records collected 

through the Performance Standards Monitoring Program are also anticipated to be useful in resolving them 

appropriately. 



TRAINING 

Page 12        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Training 

Benton County OPD has, and will continue to be, committed to supporting its public defenders by providing 

them with local, free, training on topics that relevant and helpful to their public defense practice through 

the OPD In-House Training Program.  Training is always approved by the Washington State Bar Association 

for Continuing Legal Education (“CLE”) credits since OPD is an approved CLE training provider, and is also 

always provided at no cost to the taxpayers due to a fee waiver by the Bar Association and a network of 

attorneys and professionals who provide training at no cost. 

TRAINING TOPICS 

Training topics have included the following, in both classroom and workshop settings: 

 Trial advocacy (various topics) 

 Mental health resources and programs 

 Working with mentally ill clients (including interviewing tips) 

 Computer forensics 

 Immigration law 

 Crime scene forensics (including blood spatter and other forensics associated with violent crime) 

 Arson forensics 

 Audio forensics 

 Juvenile dependency cases 

 Defending legal financial obligation cases 

 Presentation skills 

 Defending DUI cases 

 Cross-examination skills 

 Using investigators in public defense cases 

 Case law updates 

 Dealing with the emotional stress of public defense work 

NUMBER OF TRAINING HOURS 

The number of training hours each year has been reported in the office’s Annual Reports.  Since the 

inception of the program in 2010, over 80 hours of training has been provided through the OPD In-House 

Training Program 



TRAINING 

Page 13        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

 
 

 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(Projected)

Hours of Continuing Legal Education Training 
Offered



COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION & RESOLUTION 

Page 14        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Complaint Investigation & Resolution 

OPD has developed a very well-defined complaint resolution program for client complaints against public 

defenders.  The program is intended to strike a balance between the many competing interests when it 

comes to complaints, including: 

1. Accessibility to clients of complaint process 

2. Limitation of complaint process to legitimate complaints only (ie weeding out complaints by 

anyone else other than clients except when clients are incapacitated or mentally ill) 

3. Encouragement of clients and public defenders to take steps toward better working relationships 

before formal complaints are considered by clients 

4. Facilitation of better client/public defender communication without a need for a formal complaint 

(and therefore preserving attorney-client relationships and leading to better representation and 

outcomes) 

5. Thoroughness of investigations 

6. Facilitation of quick and appropriate resolutions 

7. Communication with clients 

It features multiple and well-publicized ways for complaints to be received, a defined process (including 

timeframes) for investigation, and a clear resolution to each.  More information about OPD’s Complaint 

Investigation & Resolution Program can be found on the Client Complaint page of our website. 

PROGRAM SUCCESS 

The success of this program is apparent in the fact that unfounded complaints now comprise a significantly 

lower percentage of overall formal complaints than before with a number of recent founded complaints 

resulting in appropriate disciplinary action against contract defenders4.  OPD has even received 

compliments from the State Office of Public Defense who has informed us that they even suggest other 

jurisdictions review OPD’s Client Complaint Page when working on putting together their own policies and 

procedures. 

                                                                    
4 In addition to outright contract termination, sometimes contract defenders are also offered contract 
caseload limitations or transfers to a more appropriate contract as a means of addressing problems raised. 

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=4985&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=4985&catid=45


COMPLAINT INVESTIGATION & RESOLUTION 

Page 15        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

 

 

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16
18
20

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(YTD
June)

Formal Complaints Against
Public Defenders

Founded

Unfounded



EXIT INTERVIEWS 

Page 16        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Exit Interviews 

The final piece to the quality control equation is conducting exit interviews with outgoing contract 

defenders and staff defenders (who are leaving on good terms).  Through experience, it is quite apparent 

that feedback received is much more honest and candid when contract and continued employment 

considerations are no longer a factor.  Still a work in progress, the ultimate goal of exit interviews is to use a 

combination of in-person interviews and on-line questionnaires to gather as much information as possible 

about what OPD is doing well and should continue doing, what OPD is not doing well and should 

discontinue or do differently, and what practices OPD may want to consider incorporating. 



CONCLUSION 

Page 17        OPD Supervision and Quality Control Plan 

Conclusion 

Ensuring the quality of public defense services is the number one priority at the Benton County Office of 
Public Defense.  This whitepaper has outlined OPD’s multi-faceted approach to monitoring public 
defense quality.  As Benton County and OPD’s needs change and evolve, and as the legal landscape of 
public defense in Washington State changes, modifications will be made to this approach.  If you are 
interested in learning more about OPD’s operations or changes to its public defense quality monitoring 
efforts, please visit OPD’s website (BentonCountyDefense.org) and review its Annual Reports and 
Strategic Plans.   

Special note about Performance Standards Monitoring: The results of the Data Collection prong of 
Performance Standards Monitoring are published in OPD’s Quarterly Reports.  Quarterly Reports are 
posted on OPD’s website after they have been presented formally to the Benton County Board of County 
Commissioners.     

http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=802&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=4957&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=4957&catid=45
http://www.co.benton.wa.us/pView.aspx?id=7831&catid=45


  

BENTON COUNTY 

OFFICE OF PUBLIC 

DEFENSE 

Q1 2016 QUARTERLY REPORT 

Quality Representation – Fiscal Accountability 

Benton County Office of Public Defense 

7122 W Okanogan Pl, Bldg A 

Tel (509) 222-3700 

Fax (509) 222-3717 

BentonCountyDefense.org 

 

WEH
Text Box
2016 1st Quarter Report ~ E Hsu 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Contents 

Introduction ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 1 

Performance Standards Monitoring - Background ____________________________________________________ 2 

Performance Standards Monitoring – Results _________________________________________________________ 5 

Caseloads ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 11 

Financials ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 16 

Conclusion _______________________________________________________________________________________________ 18 

 



INTRODUCTION 

Page 1 

Introduction 

WHAT IS THIS REPORT 

This is a quarterly report of the Benton County Office of Public Defense (“BCOPD”) and provides important 

insight into performance standards met by public defenders; public defense caseloads during the 

quarter, and financial status for the biennium-to-date. 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING 

To ensure the quality of representation provided by Benton County public defenders, BCOPD utilizes 

Performance Standards Monitoring.  The portion of this report dedicated to Performance Standards 

Monitoring provides information both on the methodology utilized as well as actual numbers for the 

quarter. 

CASELOADS 

Having a manageable caseload is a foundational factor in effective public defense representation.  This 

report will provide an in-depth analysis of caseloads for the first quarter of 2016 including trends, 

comparisons with previous years, and correlation with public defense caseload standards. 

FINANCIALS 

The financial analysis contained in this report is for the biennium-to-date and provides both a break-down 

of spending and indication of whether spending is above or below predicted/planned levels. 

 

 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - 
BACKGROUND 

Page 2 

Performance Standards Monitoring - Background 

Benton County Office of Public Defense is committed to providing quality public defense services to its 

clients.  In order to monitor public defense service quality and to continually seek opportunities for 

improvement, BCOPD utilizes a Performance Standards Monitoring system 

This system consists of two parts: collection of Performance Metrics and In-Court Observation. 

For more information about Performance Standards Monitoring, please see OPD’s Supervision and 

Quality Control Plan. 

PERFORMANCE METRICS 

Utilizing the opinion in Wilbur v. Mt. Vernon and the important public defense quality factors identified in 

that case, as well as materials from the State Office of Public Defense, BCOPD has identified the following 

metrics as important in evaluating public defender performance and collects them either directly from 

public defenders or from alternative reliable sources: 

METRIC DESCRIPTION 

Jail visits Visits to adult inmates at the Benton County Jail. 

Detention visits Visits to, or phone calls with, juveniles detained at 
the Juvenile Detention Center. 

Mental health evaluations Number of public defense funded mental health 
evaluations either for a “second opinion” 
competency evaluation (if the public defender 
disagrees with the Eastern State Hospital 
evaluation result) or for a capacity evaluation (to 
determine whether lack of mental capacity to 
commit the charged crime should be a defense. 

Complaints Number of complaints that are “formal.”  In order 
to be considered formal, a complaint must state a 
particular problem or issue, being in writing, and 
be made directly by a client. 

Investigative services Number of cases where a private investigator is 
assigned and does work on the case1. 

Expert services Number of cases where an expert is retained, and 
does work on the case. 

Trials Number of cases that go to trial. 

Disposed of at Readiness Number of cases that are resolved in a manner 
favorable to the defendant (such as with a 
Stipulated Order of Continuance or deferral) at 
trial readiness. 

                                                                    
1 This is estimated using billings without regard to multiple billings for the same case (which is rare). 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - 
BACKGROUND 

Page 3 

Motions  Number of cases where the public defender files 
certain (usually dispositive) key motions 
including motions to suppress evidence or 
statements. 

Hours worked 

This is collected only and not reported 

Number of hours expended by public defenders 
on different categories of work related to 
individual cases. 

 

Conversion into Performance Indices 

To make the collected metrics more understandable and correlated with caseloads (which would obviously 

have a bearing on the metrics) they have each been converted into an index, representing their equivalent 

per 1,000 cases appointed.   

For example: if, during a given quarter, there were 20 cases with investigators appointed, and the relevant 

caseload was 250 cases, then the Investigative Services Index for that quarter would be 80 (meaning that for 

every 1,000 cases appointed, 80 were appointed investigators. 

Calculating Performance Indices – Indices can be divided into two categories for purposes of calculation: 

No Lag Indices where there is little delay between the time of case appointment and the event being 

measured by the index, and Lag Indices where there is usually significant delay (60 to 90 days) between 

the time of case appointment and the event being measured by the index2.  No Lag Indices are calculated 

using the caseload of the current quarter.  For better accuracy, and to account for the lag, Lag Indices are 

calculated using the caseload of the previous quarter.   

NO LAG INDICES 

Jail Visits Index 

Detention Visits Index 

Complaints Index 

Motions Index  

10.77 (mental health) Motions Index 

Disposed of at Readiness Index 

 

LAG INDICES 

Mental Health Evaluations Index   

Investigative Services Index 

Expert Services Index  

                                                                    
2 Since the numbers underlying these indices are collected based on billings, the time between 
appointment and the time services are rendered (averaging 30 days, possibly more with trial numbers) and 
the time between when services are rendered and billing is received (45-60 days) add up to usually result 
in billing occurring in the next quarter after case appointment. 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING - 
BACKGROUND 

Page 4 

Trials Index   

 

For example: Investigative Services Index is a Lag Index.  Therefore, in calculating the Investigative Services 

Index for Q2 2015, the number of investigative services bills paid in 2015 would be divided by the caseload 

from the previous quarter (Q1 2015) and multiplied by 1,000 for the index.   

IN-COURT OBSERVATION 

Regular unscheduled observation is conducted for all court jurisdictions and specialty dockets where 

BCOPD provides public defense services.  Observation is conducted primarily by the Public Defense 

Manager though it may sometimes be delegated to other Staff Defenders who have supervisory duties.  

Observations are recorded in an electronic, searchable, database and include key observations about the 

docket as a whole as well as individual public defender performance.  The actual criteria used for in-court 

observation is published in OPD’s Supervision and Quality Control Plan.  Future Quarterly Reports will 

publish the number of In-Court Observation sessions conducted. 

 



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING – 
RESULTS 

Page 5 

Performance Standards Monitoring – Results 

MULTI-JURISDICTIONAL DATA 

The data in this section is aggregate data for all Superior Court and District Court adult cases. 

 

 

0.0 50.0 100.0 150.0 200.0 250.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Jail Visits Index
(visits per 1,000 cases appointed)

0.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 4.00 5.00 6.00

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Mental Health Evaluations Index
(evaluations per 1,000 cases appointed



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING – 
RESULTS 

Page 6 

SUPERIOR COURT DATA 

Data for the Motions Index, 10.77 Motions Index and Disposed at Trial Readiness Index has only been 

available for one quarter so will not be displayed until 2016 Q2. 

 

 

0.0 20.0 40.0 60.0 80.0 100.0 120.0 140.0 160.0 180.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Superior Court Investigative Services Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Superior Court Expert Services Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING – 
RESULTS 

Page 7 

 

DISTRICT COURT DATA 

Data for the Motions Index, 10.77 Motions Index and Disposed at Trial Readiness Index has only been 

available for one quarter so will not be displayed until 2016 Q2. 

 

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Superior Court Trials Index
(trials per 1,000 cases appointed)

0.0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

District Court Investigative Services Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING – 
RESULTS 

Page 8 

 

 

JUVENILE COURT DATA 

Data for the Motions Index, 10.77 Motions Index and Disposed at Trial Readiness Index and Detention 

Visits Index has only been available for one quarter so will not be displayed until 2016 Q2. 

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

District Court Expert Services Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)

0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 10.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

District Court Trials Index
(trials per 1,000 cases appointed)



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING – 
RESULTS 

Page 9 

 

 

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Juvenile Court Investigative Services Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Juvenile Court Expert Services Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)



PERFORMANCE STANDARDS MONITORING – 
RESULTS 

Page 10 

 

 

 

 

0.0 10.0 20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0 60.0 70.0 80.0

2015-Q1

2015-Q2

2015-Q3

2015-Q4

2016-Q1

2016-Q2

2016-Q3

2016-Q4

Juvenile Court Trials Index
(usage per 1,000 cases appointed)



CASELOADS 

Page 11 

Caseloads 

SOURCE OF CASELOAD DATA 

Caseload data is obtained from a number of different sources and cross-checked to ensure maximum 

accuracy. 

CASELOAD DATA SOURCES 

Individual attorney reports 

Reports provided directly by the court 

State published reports on Administrative Office of 
the Courts (“AOC”) website 

CASELOAD UPDATE 

All data in this caseload update is current as of the end of the first quarter, 2016 (March 31, 2016). 

Superior Court Caseload – trend vs historical average 

 

Superior Court Caseload – available capacity vs projected year-end caseload 

The calculations for this analysis are based on the following number of defenders in Superior Court with 

the listed corresponding contract capacities. 

CASE CAP NUMBER OF CONTRACTS 

140 cases per year (contractor) 5 

125 cases per year (contractor) 2 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Benton County Superior Court
2016 Appointment Trend

2016 2010-2015 Avg

The caseload in 

Benton County 

Superior Court is trend 

right at or slightly 

below historic 5-year 

average levels.  The 

Prosecutor’s Office has 

recently hired an 

additional felony 

prosecutor, however, 

so an upward trend is 

anticipated for the rest 

of the year. 



CASELOADS 

Page 12 

135 cases per year (staff defender 
with supervisory duties) 

2 

150 cases per year (staff defender 
without supervisory duties) 

1 

Additional assumptions are: 

 No contractors terminate their contracts before end of 2016 (caseload transitions can skew 

projections) 

 Between the hiring of the additional felony prosecutor and the significant increase in law 

enforcement hiring in the county due to the Public Safety Sales Tax, caseloads from May until the 

end of the year will be an average of 10% above 2011-2015 averages 

 
1310 1320 1330 1340 1350 1360 1370 1380

Projected

Available

Caseload Capacity vs Projected Caseload



CASELOADS 

Page 13 

District Court Caseload – trend vs historical average 

 

District Court Caseload – available capacity vs projected year-end caseload 

Current capacity of contractors is as follows: 

CASE CAP NUMBER OF CONTRACTS 

390 cases per year (contractor) 10 

345 cases per year (contractor) 1 

300 cases per year (contractor – 
incoming, effective July 18, 2016) 

1 

200 cases per year (contractor) 1 

 

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Benton County District Court
2016 Appointments Trend

2016 2012-2015 Avg

The caseload in 

Benton County District 

Court is persistently 

above recent four-year 

average and this trend 

is fully expected to 

persist in light of 

Public-Safety Sales Tax 

driven law 

enforcement hiring. 



CASELOADS 

Page 14 

 

Additional assumptions are: 

 No contractors terminate their contracts before end of 2016 (caseload transitions can skew 

projections) 

 The current, above-average rate of appointments persists and does not increase before year’s end 

 The contractor scheduled to start July 18, 2016 with a caseload of 300 cases annually, does in fact 

start on time 

4600 4620 4640 4660 4680 4700 4720 4740 4760

Projected

Available

District Court Caseload Capacity vs 
Projected Caseload



CASELOADS 

Page 15 

Juvenile Court Caseload – trend vs historical average 

3 

 

 

                                                                    
3 All juveniles charged with criminal offense are presumed to be indigent and entitled to public defense 
counsel.  Therefore, no differentiation is made, in record-keeping at OPD, between number of cases filed 
and number of cases appointed to public defense counsel. 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Benton County Juvenile Offender Filings

2016 2011-2015 avg

The caseload in 

Benton County 

Juvenile Court is 

significantly below 

recent five-year 

average and this trend 

is fully expected to 

persist.  Actions taken 

in response to this 

trend have included 

reduction of contracts 

from five to four. 



FINANCIALS 

Page 16 

Financials 

This section outlines OPD finances in each of its major categories along with a projection for year-end 

surplus or deficit. 

FINANCIAL UPDATE AS OF END OF MARCH 31, 2016 

Superior Court Contract Services 

 

Superior Court Professional Services 

 

$1,738.81 

$1,086.75 

$906.28 

 $-  $500.00  $1,000.00  $1,500.00  $2,000.00

Total Budgeted

Planned Usage

Actual Usage

Thousands

Superior Court Contracts Biennium-
to-date Mar, 2016

$563.64 

$352.27 

$288.20 

 $-  $200.00  $400.00  $600.00

Total Budgeted

Planned Usage

Actual Usage

Thousands

Superior Court Prof Services 
Biennium-to-date Mar, 2016



FINANCIALS 

Page 17 

District Court Contracts 

 

District Court Professional Services 

 

$1,828.26 

$1,142.66 

$1,265.55 

 $-  $500.00  $1,000.00  $1,500.00  $2,000.00

Total Budgeted

Planned Usage

Actual Usage

Thousands

District Court Contract Services
Biennium-to-date Mar, 2016

$20.00 

$12.50 

$9.86 

 $-  $5.00  $10.00  $15.00  $20.00  $25.00

Total Budgeted

Planned Usage

Actual Usage

Thousands

District Court Prof Services
Biennium-to-date Mar, 2016



CONCLUSION 

Page 18 

Conclusion 

Thank you for your interest in the Benton County Office of Public Defense.  The Quarterly Report series, in 

combination with the Annual Report and Strategic Plan (usually published in the first quarter of each year) 

serve to provide information to stakeholders and the public about OPD’s operational statistics and 

commitment to quality public defense services as well as fiscal accountability. 


	CA - Fairgrounds d.pdf
	Resolution 7-12-16.pdf
	Chairman of the Board
	Member
	Constituting the Board of County



	CA - Public Safety m.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	CA - Sustainable Development w.pdf
	Resolution
	Form

	Timed - 1 UGA Apps.pdf
	AGENDA ITEM
	Prepared By: Michael Shuttleworth
	Consent Agenda 

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION
	uga p c  replace memo for 6-14-16 meeting .pdf
	Benton County Planning Department


	Timed - 2 Planning Policies.pdf
	Sheet1
	CWPP PC memo for 6-14-16 meeting .pdf
	Benton County Planning Department

	CWPP-draft policy 4 changes for PC review 6-14-16.pdf
	Introduction & Overview:
	History:
	Amendments and Adoption:
	References:

	BOCC AG CWPP 7-12-16 .pdf
	AGENDA ITEM    
	Prepared By: Michael Shuttleworth
	Consent Agenda 

	SUMMARY
	RECOMMENDATION

	PC 04 12 16 PKT.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department
	BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	1002 Dudley Avenue, Prosser WA 99350

	PC Minutes 3-8-16.pdf
	BENTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION
	Regular Meeting, 3/8/2016

	PC PKT 3-8-16.pdf
	CPA2016-001 Exhibit Master List
	Sheet1

	CPA 2016-001 PC MEMO 2-17-16
	CH4 land Use Map 4.0 rev 2015
	Ch4 Land Use Map 4.6 rev 2015
	CPA 2016-001 1998 photo 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 2004 photo 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 2012 photo 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 COMP PLAN 2-16-16
	CPA 2016-001 Zoning 2-16-16
	EA2015-030 CPA dns
	CWPPS
	2016 CPA Docket 
	Benton County Planning Department
	Benton County Planning Department

	April 2016 PC Lgl 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department


	ZC 2016-001 PC MEMO PKT 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department
	ZC 2016-001 Exhibit Master List.pdf
	Sheet1

	April 2016 PC Lgl 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department


	PC memo CWPP 4-12-16 .pdf
	Benton County Planning Department
	DOC A CWPP red line draft 04-01-16.pdf
	Introduction & Overview:
	History:
	Amendments and Adoption:
	References:

	DOC B CWPP-draft 04-01-16.pdf
	Introduction & Overview:
	History:
	Amendments and Adoption:
	References:


	SA 2016-001 PC memo 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department


	PC memo CWPP 4-12-16 .pdf
	Benton County Planning Department
	DOC A CWPP red line draft 04-01-16.pdf
	Introduction & Overview:
	History:
	Amendments and Adoption:
	References:

	DOC B CWPP-draft 04-01-16.pdf
	Introduction & Overview:
	History:
	Amendments and Adoption:
	References:


	April 2016 PC Lgl 4-12-16.pdf
	Benton County Planning Department





